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CHAl RMAN HANCE: Good eveni ng | adi es and
gentl enen. Welcone to the Gty of Canden Zoning
Board of Adjustnent regular schedul ed neeting of
Septenber 9, 2024. Reading of the Sunshine Law. In
conformance with the Sunshi ne Law of New Jersey,
noti ce of the neeting was posted in the Minici pal
Clerk's office on Wednesday, Septenber 4, 2024. Rol
call.

MR EINGORN:  Chai r man Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Here

MR, ElI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.
Presently absent.

MR EINGORN: Karen Merricks. Presently
absent. Marizta Al ston.

ALSTON:  Here.

El NGORN:  Ysbal Nunez.
NUNEZ: Here.

El NGORN: CGuy Still.
STILL: Here.

El NGORN:  Taneeka Mason.
MASON:  Here.

25333530

El NGORN: Good eveni ng, everyone.
Wel cone to the Zoni ng Board of Adjustnent. A
rem nder that everybody should silence their cell

phones and take any conversations into the hallway.
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It is difficult sonetines for the Board and the
public to hear, especially for the public when the
applicant's are speaking this way. The nore qui et
t he audi ence can be, the better off everybody el se
wll be so we can all hear and get out of here
expeditiously with 13-ish itens on the agenda
t oni ght .

Let's start with a notion to adopt the
m nutes for August 2024. Do | have a notion?

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | nake a notion to
adopt .

MR, EINGORN: Do we have a second?

MR STILL: Second.

MR EINGORN: |1'Ill take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
NUNEZ:  Yes.
EI NGORN: M. Still.
STILL: Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2P 33235353

EI NGORN: Al right. Modtion passes.
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|"mgoing to read the list. |f you hear
your application, just raise your hand and give a
holl er and | et us know you're here. The first
matter, 1060 Bergen Avenue, LLC. Not present.

The first matter of New Business, Vision
Capital Managenent, LLC, 505 Rand Street.

MR WLTSEY: Here.

MR EINGORN:. Good evening. I'mgoing to
but cher this nane and | apol ogi ze i n advance,
Lyubom r Knet.

MR, KMET: Here.

MR, EINGORN: Cannabi sta, LLC, 2035
Adm ral W1 son Boul evard.

MR LARIO W're still waiting for them

MR EINGORN: No worries. W're waiting
on two nore al so.

Next is M&S Broadway, 617 Broadway.

MR RUSH:. Here.

MR EI NGORN: Macedoni a Bapti st Church,
812- 814 Kai ghns Avenue.

MR PLATT: W are ready.

MR EINGORN:. Canmden Conmunity G owt h,
LLC, 3300 Federal Street.

MR PLATT: Ready.

MR, EI NGORN:  Abraham | tuah, 400 Jackson
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Street.

MR | TUAH. Ready.

MR EINGORN:  Yordys Peralta, 1575 Louis
Street.

MR |1ZZO  Ready.

MR EINGORN: Arelis Marero, 661 G ant
Street.

MR 1ZZO  Ready.

MR EINGORN: Dev. Ghanshyam LLC, 14 S

35th Street.

MR GHANSHYAM  Ready.

VR.  El NGORN: Phi | adel phia 76ers, L.P.,
3 Banner Way/9 Legends Lane.

MR FLOYD: Present.

MR EINGORN: Jose C. Otiz Morales.

MR MORALES: Here.

MR EINGORN. Emett Tayl or.

MR TAYLOR  Here.

MR, EINGORN: Just a rem nder, silence
all cell phones, please. So right now we do have
five Board nenbers. |If you require a use vari ance,
you W ll require a unani nous vote of the Board. W
do potentially expect one or two nore Board nenbers
tonight. W know at | east one is running | ate.

W will call the first nmatter tonight,
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1060 Bergen Avenue, LLC. |Is anybody here for that
matter? This is AOd Business. W addressed this
with M. Calzaretto's partner last nonth. This is
the third tinme that he has m ssed w t hout sayi ng
anything. That would be ny recomendation at this
time for the Board to vote to deny this application
w t hout prejudice for failure to prosecute. Let the
record reflect that M. Cooper is now present.

(At which tinme, Charles Cooper arrives to
the neeting at 5:40 p.m)

CHAl RVAN HANCE: | nake a notion that we
deny w t hout prejudice.

MR EINGORN. W have a notion to deny
wi t hout prejudice. Do we have a second?

MS. ALSTON:  Second.

MR EINGORN: |1'Ill take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
NUNEZ:  Yes.

25 30 3

EI NGORN: M. Still.
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STI LL: Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mason.
MASON: Yes.

25 35

EINGORN: Al in favor. So the
noti on passes. That application has been denied
wi t hout prejudice.

The first item on New Business, Vision
Capi tal Managenent, LLC -- oh, before we do that, is
anybody here tonight for 2907 Craner Street. That
notice was deficient for the record. It won't be
heard tonight in case anybody did show up.

Now we' I | take Vision Capital Managenent,
LLC, 505 Rand Street.

MR WLTSEY: Good eveni ng everyone.
Brett Wltsey from Gobernmayer here on behalf of the
applicant. This property is |located at 505 Rand
Street, Block 1254, Lot 163. W are asking for
several variances. One is a use variance and sone
bul k variances, lot depth and width fromthose. W
are not changing the building size. | think the
maj ority of our presentation will be focused on the
bul k area and use vari ance.

| do have several wi tnesses. | don't
know if I"mgoing to need all of themto testify

but 1'd like to swear themall in, if that's okay
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with you, M. Solicitor.

MR EINGORN: Yes, | think that's great.
You want to swear themall now and then?

MR WLTSEY: And we can testify.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease?

MATTHEW WANAMAKER, P. P.; GREGORY SNEAD,
LAMONT 3 LMORE, having first been duly
sworn/ affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanes and
addresses for the record.

MR SNEAD: M/ nane is Gregory Snead,
1237 Patrick Henry Pl ace, Phil adel phia, PA 19122.

MR G LMORE: M nane is Lanont G | nore,
1257 Sheridan Street, Canden, New Jersey.

MR EINGORN: Gentl enen, you're just
going to have to speak a little | ouder so we can all
hear you.

MR, WANAMAKER:  Mat t hew Wanamaker, 2937
Canbri dge Street, Phil adel phi a.

MR, WLTSEY: The last witness is

Vat t hew Wanamaker and he's from Pennoni . He has
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previously testified as an expert in Canden before.
So a little background. Wat we have
currently is a duplex. There's two 2-bedroom
apartnments that exist in this building. M client
wi shes to add a third unit. That would be a
1-bedroomunit in the basenent. There is no parking
at the site at all existing currently, so we would be
addi ng that 1-bedroom
| do have clients that are wlling to
testify. | can proffer that the reason why they
decided to go for the third unit is because there's
lots of parking in this area so parking, they don't
believe is an issue. They think parking will be fine
and that's why we decided to add anot her unit here.
|"mgoing to turn it over to our expert
pl anner to tal k about how the Minicipal Land Use Law
applies to this application and his expert opinion as
to whether or not we've satisfied our obligations to
i nprove Positive and Negative Criteria. His
testinmony will be very brief. And then |I woul d open
up any questions the Board may have. WMatt Wananaker.
MR. WANAMAKER: Good afternoon. So this
property is located in the R-2 Zone which is a
resi dential zone where a single-famly detached

dwel I'i ng, sem -detached dwel ling, duplex dwellings
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and townhouse dwellings are permtted but not
triplexes specifically. However, this particular

property is suitable for this use. There won't be

maj or changes to the exterior. |It's vacant property
so it will be returning a structure into productive
use.

The increase in density is appropriate
for the site. There are currently a m x of
typol ogi es on the block, a use of densities
t hr oughout the bl ock in that neighborhood. So
overall, it won't be detrinental to the block or
detrinmental to the neighborhood and it wll renovate
an underutilized abandoned home and bring it back to
the community. Any questions?

MR EINGORN. You said the property is
now vacant ?

MR WANAMAKER: Yes. That's correct.

MR WLTSEY: The client is in the
process of renovating all the units. That's the two
2-bedroons upstairs as well as if we get approval for
the third unit in the basenent.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  That's the
property there?

MR, WLTSEY: That's correct.

MR, EINGORN:. O her than this one
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phot ogr aph, do we have anything el se to show the
parking as it is on the street or anything that's
avai | abl e?

MR WLTSEY: Just our testinony.

MR, EINGORN: It |ooks like there's --
| don't know if you' re noving for everything at
once. There's bulk variances requested. This is a
townhone in the mddl e of the bl ock?

MR WLTSEY: Yes.

MR EINGORN. So it shares party walls on
bot h si des?

MR WLTSEY: That's correct.

MR EINGORN. So then the side yards
woul d be deficient on both sides but that would be a
conformng --

MR WLTSEY: Correct.

MR EINGORN: -- preexisting
nonconformty?

MR, WLTSEY: Yes. That's what |
nmenti oned on the bul k variances. W're not changi ng
the footprint of the building at all.

MR, EINGORN: |Is there exterior access to
t he basenent? How would that work?

MR WLTSEY: So |I have a general

contractor to answer any questions. You can see in
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the picture that you have there in front of you, that
you all have in front of you, there's the red steps
that seemto go into the unit. They're currently
renoved. There's going to be an entranceway there
for the first floor. To the right side, there's an
entranceway going into the second fl oor.

Access to the basenent will be, and you

see this little foyer, that little foyer is going to

be cut in half and it'll be about five or six feet
into the yard and the steps will go down and there
will be railings around it. And that's how they'|l

get their own private access to the basenent
apart nent .

CHAl RMAN HANCE: This is going to be the
front entrance?

MR WLTSEY: That's the front entrance,
yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So where is the rear?

MR WLTSEY: | don't have any pictures
of the rear.

MR EINGORN. | hate to do this to you
guys but it's really hard to nake a determ nation
fromthis one picture. W're going to need a | ot
nor e phot ographs for the Board to nake a

determ nation as to whether or not it's appropriate
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under the circunstances.

us.
MR WLTSEY:
MR El NGORN:
phot os, exterior photos,
aeri al ;

street phot os,

sonet hi ng where the Board can at

| think it protects you and

Ckay.
So | think we need rear
maybe an

| east nmke a

determ nation of what's around the area and see what

t he parking | ooks |ike at
do it to you but

phot o.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE: |

t oday.
MR W LTSEY:

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:

into the front of this house or to the rear of

your gas neters?
MR WLTSEY:
any access to the rear of
MR d LMORE:

back in the rear.

MR El NGORN:
doors; the kind that open

MR G LMORE:

MR El NGORN:

the very least. | hate to

it's really hard just with this one

did go past there

' m seei ng what you' re show ng ne here.

Under st ood.
Does your gas go

It

Access currently, is there
t he hone.
Yeah, a trap door in the

So like the Bilco-type
up like a butterfly?
Yeah.

Just quickly. I'mtrying

to get as nmuch in the record as possible so that they
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can just back with the pictures. Wat about the
utilities, the water heaters, electrical panels,
where are they | ocated?

MR G LMORE: The electrical panels are
goi ng to be individual in each apartnent.

MR, EINGORN: I n each unit.

MR G LMORE: And the gas in the front,
the neter as well as electric neters.

MR EI NGORN:  About what the water
heat er s?

MR G LMORE: The water heaters are going
to be electric heaters. New units.

MR EINGORN: So there won't be a need
for like a separate utility roonf

MR G LMORE: Yeah, there will be a
separate utility roomfeeding to that, to each one.

MR EINGORN: And where will that be; in
t he basenent ?

MR. G LMORE: The basenent.

MR EINGORN: Maybe a fl oor plan of the
| ayout of the basenent will be hel pful too.

MR WLTSEY: Yes.

MR EINGORN. M. Still?

MR STILL: On the aerial of the rear two

bl ocks over, there are trap doors so there's an
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entryway to the honme but there's alleyway to the back
so there needs to be pictures to show that there's
access not only to the hone but to the yard space as
wel | .

MR EINGORN: Maybe sonet hing from Googl e
Maps where you zoomin. That would be hel pful.
Sorry to adjourn you.

MR, WLTSEY: | understand.

MR EINGORN. So the next neeting is
Cctober the 7th at 5:30 p.m

So for everybody in the public, this
matter, Vision Capital Investnent, 505 Rand Street is
going to be heard on Cctober 7th, the continuation of
this neeting. |If you're here for that tonight,
public portion will be heard at that tine. There is
no further notice. This is the notice of that
adj ournnent. Thank you, Counsel.

MR WLTSEY: | appreciate it.

MR EINGORN:. The next natter is Lyubomr
Knet, 459 Atlantic Avenue.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

LYUBOM R KMET, having first been duly

sworn/ affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
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fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR KMET: M nanme is Lyubomr Knet, 1302
Bl akesl ee Drive, Phil adel phia 19116.

MR EINGORN: The applicant is Lyubomr
Knet, 459 Atlantic Avenue, Canden, New Jersey. The
property is located at 459 Atlantic Avenue in the
LI-1 Zoning District. The |ot has a frontage of
1,338 feet and a depth of 75 feet. There's one
building on the lot; two stories tall. It's a
single-famly and the applicant is proposing
a rehab. The applicant is requesting a Certificate
of Nonconforming Use. 1Is this a preexisting
single-famly hone?

MR KMET: Correct.

MR EINGORN: And do you know when it was
built?

MR KMET: 1900.

MR EINGORN: 1900. And what are you
pl anni ng on doing to the house?

MR KMET: M original plan is to nove
here once it's done.

MR EINGORN:. So you're fixing up the
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house for your own use?

MR KMET: Correct.

MR EINGORN. GCot it. And you've
submtted to the Board, |ooks |like a permt
application, sone photographs. Did you take these
phot ogr aphs?

MR KMET: Correct. Yes.

MR EINGORN: And that's the condition
that house is currently in?

MR KMET: It's cleaned up a little bit.

MR EINGORN:. Cleaned up a little bit.
Are you doing the work yourself or you have a
contractor?

MR KMET: |'mdoing the work nysel f.

MR EINGORN: Doing the work yourself.

MR KMET: And there's water already
installed at the property.

MR EINGORN: Water has been install ed.

MR EINGORN:  And you said the property
was constructed in 19007?

MR KMET: Correct.

MR. EI NGORN: Does the Board have
gquestions regarding this request for a Certificate of

Nonconform ng Use? It's a single-famly hone built
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in 1900.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COCPER:  Yes, |'ve been by
the property and it's an attached rowhone. There's
properties both sides, correct?

MR, KMET: Just on the one side. On the
left is the church.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER  Right. Gay. And
you're going to rehab it to nove into it so...

CHAI RVAN HANCE: That's the Zion Church
next to the property?

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

M5. MASON: | just have a question. |
know a lot of tines when fol ks are rehabbi ng, they
have sonme type of disposal. | don't know what it's
actual ly call ed.

MR EINGORN:. Li ke a dunpster.

M5. MASON: Yeah, |ike a dunpster or
container. Are you using that to --

MR. KMET: | do have a container back
there and | hauled the trash and it's basically
cleared out of the property. It's enpty. |[|'ve
al ready done that.

MR EINGORN: That would be a code
enf orcenent issue anyway.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So basically, he needs a
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COto go in and do the work, correct?

MR EINGORN: You're trying to get a
permt to do the work?

MR KMET:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions? No.
Open to the public. Anybody here in the public
tonight that |like to be heard on 459 Atlantic
Avenue, the applicant's request for a Certificate of
Nonconform ng Use? Hearing none, we'll close the
public portion.

It's the Board's tine to do a quick
di scussi on and nmake a determ nation as to whether or
not this house, constructed in the 1900's as a
single-famly house, is applicable for a Certificate
of Nonconforming Use. It would be ny professional
opinion that it does appear to be appropriate in this
i nstance. So a quick discussion and then a notion.

VI CE-CHAIRMAN COOPER: | think it's a
good thing that he's willing to cone back into the
City and rehab one of our vacant hones here. The
houses that are on that block that's vacant, mybe
you can acquire those sonmehow.

MR EINGORN. Let's get himinto the City
before we start pushing nore properties on him

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COCPER: Yeah. But still,
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you know, | think it's a good thing, himtrying to
rehab the area there.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | ' m goi ng to piggyback
on you and say that there's a | ot of new construction
in Canden also and it's already a hone. Mne is 200
years old, okay, and I'mliving init. | think it's
a smart nove to rehab. I1t's right beside the church.
And |"'m sure they'd be happy to see it rehabbed. And
it'll keep the honel ess out of there and less fires
in Canden. So | think it's a great idea.

MR KMET: Thank you.

MR EI NGORN:  Mbti on.

VI CE- CHAIl RVAN COOPER:  Mbtion to
accept .

MR, EINGORN: Do we have a second?

M5. MASON:  Second.

MR EINGORN: I'll take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
NUNEZ:  Yes.

25 30

EI NGORN: M. Still.
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STI LL: Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mason.
MASON: Yes.

25 35

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
none opposed, the notion passes. Congratul ati ons.

MR KMET: Thank you

MR EINGORN: Have a nice night.

The next matter is Cannabista, LLC, are
you guys ready to go?

MR LARIO  Yes.

Good eveni ng, M. Chairman and nenbers of
the Board. M nane is Mchael Lario. [|'man
attorney at the firmof Nehnad, Davis & ol dstein.
"' m here this evening on behalf of Cannabista, LLC
This is an application concerning property at Bl ock
1221, Lot 3. It's 2035 Admral WIson Bl vd. It's an
application for use variance belief, conditional use
variance relief, prelimnary and final major site
pl an approval and all variance relief in connection
Wi th the construction establishnment and mai nt enance
of a new Class 5 Cannabis retail dispensary at the
subj ect site.

This sight currently is inproved with the
Gol den Pear| Takeout Restaurant. |It's been on the

site for many years. The applicant, Cannabista, LLC,
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through its principal, M. Jose Brito, they own this
site. He's the proposed operator of this Cass 5
facility. And what Cannabista -- what M. Brito is
proposi ng here, is to go in and to construct a new
approxi mately 3,400-square foot Class 5 retail

di spensary at the subject site, in addition to that
exi sting approxi mately 800-square foot takeout
rest aur ant.

The site right now, again, it would
allowits permtted use, that takeout restaurant, the
site is actually zoned to permt a Class 5 as a
conditional permtted use, but it's zoned to permt
a Cass 5 retail Cannabis dispensary. Wen you
conbi ne the two principal uses in separate buildings
on the sanme lot, it triggers the need for use
vari ance relief under the "d(1)" Criteria.

W' re al so seeking "d(3)" variance relief
as | stated. Retail dispensaries are a conditional
use. There's a long list of conditions wthin your
ordi nance. W do not neet a nunber of those
conditions, many of which are attributed to the fact
that it is a slightly undersized lot. |In order to be
a permtted conditional use, you have to satisfy al
the bul k standards in the zone which we do not and,

therefore, we require that "d(3)" variance relief.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

25

| would note that, again, the site has
been zoned to allow this type of use, this classified
use. An application was nade to the Cty of Canden's
Cannabis Conmittee for review They recomended it
to City Council that a Resol ution of Support be
adopted. It was. W have -- that resol ution was
i ncl uded as part of our application package. And,
again, just briefly, that application entails a
review by the City of the applicant principal,
financial wear-with-all, the plans thenselves to
determ ne whether or not it is a feasible project for
it. Qoviously, it still requires this Board to
review it and adjudi cate whether or not it can go

forward but it's that prelimnary step in the

process.
Addi tional ly, an application has been

filed wwth the state. | nentioned in classified and

you'll hear a lot of testinony as to a classified

facility. That's the |icense nunber that we are
proposing. That's the retail dispensary. That
application has been filed with the New Jersey
Cannabi s Regul atory Comm ssion. The application has
been deened conplete and we're waiting to be put on
an agenda, as you heard, as to the state |license.

And, obviously, that state license will be a
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requirenent in order to operate this classified
facility at the subject site.

The building itself, |I nmentioned the
classified retail dispensary. |It's a three-story
building is what's being proposed and second and
third story are open | easable areas in the future.

M. Brito, the applicant, they actually don't have a
tenant for those spaces now. So what we'd like to
propose is, that we are allowed to construct that
three-story building and when, hopefully soon, a
tenant is found, we would cone back to this Board and
present what that tenant is, the demands of that use.
Because obvi ously, there's an unknown aspect here
that | think it would be unfair to require this Board
and ask this Board to adjudicate a use that is not
known at this tine.

So, again, we would agree it's a
condition to cone back once that second and third
story tenants were found. Again, you'll hear
testinony fromour planner that, obviously, we
bel i eve there are conpati ble uses to that second and
third story as well. That's, again, a very broad
overvi ew of the application for you tonight. W wth
| have the principal of Cannabista, LLC, M. Jose

Brito. | have Sean Brown. He's a consul tant who has
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been hired by Cannabista to process the application
both to the Gty and to the state. | have M. Dani el
Patterson, the applicant's engineer. | have

M. El Donaldo, Vid Al, the applicant's architect. |
have M. Mark Rensa, the applicant's planner to
provi de professional planning testinony.

| f the Board would like to swear them all
at once, that may be easier. Thank you, M.
Chai r man.

MR EINGORN: |I'Il swear in Dena Moore
Johnson first. Wuld you raise your right hand,
pl ease.

DENA MOORE JOHNSQN, PE., CWVE, havi ng
first been duly sworn/affirnmed, was exam ned and
testified as follows:

MR EINGORN:. If the applicant's
W t nesses woul d pl ease stand and be sworn. Pl ease
rai se your right hand.

DANI EL PATTERSON, PE.; NMARK REMSA, PP,
LLA, AICP, ASLA;, EL DONALDO F. VID, AL, Al A ; SEAN
BROAWN, JOSE BRI TO, having first been duly

sworn/ affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
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fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Maybe we'll just get nanes
and addresses as they cone up. Does that work?

MR LARIO Yes. |I'Ill call up the
applicant for sone quick questions. |If you could,
coul d you pl ease give your nanme and address to the
Boar d.

MR BRITO Jose M Brito. | live at
1120 N. 23rd Street, Canden, New Jersey 08105.

MR LARIO As | stated, you're the
princi pal of Cannabista, LLC, the applicant?

MR BRI TO  Yes.

MR LARIO And you al so own and contr ol
the site as well?

MR BRI TO  Yes.

MR LARIO And you' ve been working
t hrough the application process with the state for
Cannabi sta and obviously the Cty in order to
establish this use at the subject site?

MR BRI TO  Yes.

MR LARIO You have been working with
M. Brown, as your consultant, through that
application process?

MR BRI TO Yes.
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MR LARIO Those are all the questions |
have for M. Brito.

MR EINGORN:. Geat. Thank you.

MR LARIO Next, I'mgoing to ask for
M. Brown.

MR EINGORN:. M. Brown, can you state
your nanme and address for the record, please?

MR BROWN. My nane is Sean Brown, 412 N.
40t h Street, Canden, New Jersey.

MR LARIO M. Brown, before we begin
about this specific application, can you just give
the Board a little idea as to sonme of your experience
i n processing these types of applications?

VR. BROMN: Sur e. In 2021 and 2022, |
was the Borough Adm nistrator for the Borough of
Penns Grove where we were open to receiving all
application Casses 1 through 6. And | was in the
position of working with our attorneys, our engi neers
and others to receive those applications and i ssue
Letters of Support. In that process | was able to go
to training with the New Jersey Cannabi s Regul atory
Comm ssion, and the business associations as wel .

When | left that position, | went back to
runni ng nmy conpany and supported applicants who were

submtting their applications and going through the
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regul atory process here in the Gty of Canden and a
few other nmunicipalities as well.
MR LARIO So you're famliar with the

application process both at the state and the | ocal

| evel ?

MR, BROMN:  Yes.

MR LARIO So let's start with the
state. | nentioned an application has been filed

wth the New Jersey Cannabis Regul atory Conmm ssion
Can you give the Board a little bit of an update as
to where that stands right now?

MR BROWN. Sure. So the CRCis
notoriously takes a long tinme to process these
applications, and no fault of anybody in this room
But it's a very thorough application of what they ask
for, including security plans, other standard
operating procedures for their expectations, how the
verification that the place wll be used as state
regulations require. And the application that has
been submitted is under review and we actual ly expect
a decision fromthe CRCto cone in the next new
nont hs.

M5. MOORE: | have a question as to when
the application was subm tted?

MR BROWN. The application was submtted
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Decenber of 2023.

MR LARIO Right now I'm handi ng out the
Resol uti on of Support. And as | nentioned, an
application has also been filed to the City. This is
the nenorialization of that Resol ution of Support
t hat was adopted by the Gty.

MR EI NGORN. A-17?

MR LARIO A1, yes. So, again, just
obvi ously as the Board nenbers are |ooking at it now,
can you just speak a little bit as to the | ocal
i censing application process?

MR BROWN: Yes. So really the first and
nost inportant step that any applicant that wants to
get a license has to do is get approval, fromright
inthis room fromCty Council. So the mayor and
t he busi ness adm ni strator have a process first where
we have to submt a whole bunch of answers to
questions about who M. Brito is as a |l eader; what is
hi s experiences are in running businesses; what the
busi ness will be; where it would be; howit wll
oper at e.

It's not that different that the state's
process. And then M. Brito's application was able
to get through that first process given a Letter of

Support from-- excuse ne -- first to be approved by
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t he Cannabis Committee that the City has. And then
it was approved by Council which allowed us to nowto
go through approval fromthe state.

MR LARIO Let's turn to the operations
of this proposed use because, obviously, the state
regul ations and both local regulations will dictate
t hose day-to-day operations greatly. Can you speak a
little bit as to the typical hours of operation; the
nunber of enpl oyees; the kind of day-to-day
operati onal aspect of the proposed use?

MR BROWN. Sure. So | notice this is
not your first dispensary that you voted on so | wll
spare you sonme of the details. But | wll tell you
that, as you know, the regulations fromthe state are
very strict and what's expected and so are the
regulations fromthe Gty. | would argue it's
probably the nost regul ated industry that exists
right nowin any type of business at all. So the
hours of operation fit within the CGty's
regul ations. The anount of enployees we expect would
hover somewhere around ten.

MR LARIO Just to go back, the hours of
operation | believe is eight to nine.

MR. BROMWN: Yeah, it's different. It's

not necessarily the same Sunday through Sat urday.
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MR LARIO And Sunday, | think, it's

shorter?

MR, BROMN:  Yes.

But one of the things is, just as any
other retail location, this is a thing where peopl e,

and this is right off of Admral W1 son Boul evard,
you drive in; you go in and get your product; you're
probably there for | ess than 20 m nutes; and you
drive right back out. And we would anticipate a flow
of traffic going on throughout the day. And then
when the restaurant or the other establishnent opens,
then they woul d be al so sharing the space in that as
well with all the regulations that are required from
the state and fromthe city.

MR LARIO Let's tal k nunber of
enpl oyees. | believe there's sonewhere around 15
total enployees. And then each shift you' re | ooking
to do six, seven and that's including both staff and
security?

MR BROWN. Right. So we're required to
have arned security which we woul d have at all hours
of operation. There's back-of-house so those are the
peopl e that accept deliveries fromthat are being
brought in. And then there's front-of-house so

that's people that are doing sales; that are doing
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the retail part of it, people that are cl eaning up.
And we are going to do our best to hire residents
fromthe City of Canden and to pay thema |iving wage
and to bring -- as we submt it to the Cty as part
of our original application tonight.

MR LARIO | was going to say, we're
actually as part of our subm ssion, we indicated we
would hire, | think three is the nunber at |east --

MR BROWN: At | east, yes.

MR LARIO -- |ocal residents.

So let's tal k about security. You
nmentioned the arnmed security personnel. Can you
speak a little bit as to what security neasures w ||
be in place?

MR BROWN. So let ne first say that the
Canden County Metro has already reached out to us to
go over our security plan. That was part of the
City's process. So we were able to wal k them through
sone of the things that you'll see and others wl|
present tonight on exactly how security | ooks; where
t he delivery occurs; where the arned security is; the
exit -- the entrance and exit, where that's | ocated
and things |ike that.

| personally had a conversation with

Captai n Kersey, who sone of you may know,
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specifically about the details of security because we

want to nake sure that this is a place that M. Brito

wants to operate it safer than we found that place to

be to secure the safety of the custonmers to cone, the

staff to conme and overall comrunity and busi ness
owners there in East Canden.

MR LARIO  Again, those security
nmeasures, alarns on all the doors and w ndows?

MR BROWN: Yes. So it's a |lot of
regul ations there. So there are alarns. The nost
inmportant thing is, there's a canera feed that goes
both to the state CRC and also to the City police.
And these are regulations that are required to be
followed. And that technology is in place or is in
notion to be in place in order to have the highest
security requirenents possible.

MR LARIO  You submt that plan to the

state. |If you deviate at any point from what you

prom se to do, you obviously risk |losing your |icense

wth the state?
MR BROWN: Correct.
VMR. LARI O Let's tal k about deliveries.

You nentioned that. Can you speak a little bit as to

t he anti ci pated nunber and how deliveries woul d work

on the site?
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MR. BROMWN: Yes. As npbst nodern
conpani es do, a lot of the delivery information is
processed online. There could be potentially a
conpany that cones outside of Cannabi sta on the
prem ses, think of it as G ub-Hub, that cones to get
the order and then deliver it to whoever it goes.

There's also a potential for Cannabista
to eventually have its own delivery system as well
where it's taking its product and delivering it to
its custoners and filing through with all the
regul ations. And the door and, again, you'll see
this later, the door that would |lead from would be a
secured door with caneras to nake sure that it's safe
for the delivery driver

MR LARIO And that's in an unmarked
usual ly sprinter van that is used sonetines between
to one to three deliveries a day at nost?

MR BROWN. Yes. And that's a -- this is
still sonmewhat of a new market. And this area where
Cannabi sta would be, is actually -- once it opens, it
woul d be the first dispensary in the East Canden
area. The other dispensaries are nore of where we
are now, closer to downtown. But, yes, it could be
one; it could be five. And that's what we anticipate

on a daily basis.
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MR LARIO Mywving on to trash and waste,
| think it's inportant to start with actual Cannabis
product waste. Can you speak a little bit as to how
to that's differentiated between your nornal waste?

MR BROWN. So for one thing to keep in
mnd is that every single product that cones into the
di spensary fromthe cultivator, fromthe
manuf acturers who make these products has a seri al
nunber on it. And that itens is tracked actually
fromthe tine it's grown to the tine it's packaged;
tothe tine it gets to the dispensary until the tine
that it's sold. So every single thing is tracked.
This is a heavy regulation. It's part of the state
system known as netric where that information is
tracked. Wat was the other part of your question?
Dd Il answer it?

MR LARIO Wen it's tracked, when you
go to take it out, the waste, --

MR BROWN. OCh, yeah, the waste.

MR LARIO -- it doesn't go in the
normal trash?

MR BROWN. Right. There's two different
types of trash, your regular trash and Cannabi s
waste. Wat the state is saying is, they don't want

to staff throwi ng away a bad bottle and then sonmebody
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get's it fromthe trash and is able to use the
product. So everything is tracked.

So there's a standard operating procedure
specifically on waste disposal. And then there's a
conpany that M. Brito, through Cannabi sta, would
contract with that would collect that waste that we
get paid a fee in order to do what needs to be done
with it.

MR LARIO But we're al so obviously
proposi ng your nore standard trash hauling. There's
a trash encl osure outside just for your typical
busi ness wast e?

MR BROWN: Yes. That's correct.

MR LARIO Landscaping. There's certain

| andscapi ng that's proposed as part of this plan.

Qur engineer will speak to it alittle nore.
Cbviously, that wll all be maintained, snow pl ow,
et cetera. The site wll be brought into -- will be

nmoderni zed for this use, correct?
MR BROMN: Yes. | think M. Brito had

nme nyself | was out there one day to clear sonme of

the stuff. So, yeah, we'll make sure that it wll
| ook great. It will look better than it does today.
It will be. As you'll see in the pictures, this is

really a state-of-the-art place. Think about this,
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you know, you live in Cherry Hill; maybe you live in
Philly and you're driving out to Admral W] son

Boul evard. This would be the place to go to get your
product on the way there, on the way back. And
because it's the Gty of Canden, we want to nake sure
that it's bright, it's clean, it's safe, so that the
custoners have confidence that they can have a good
pl ace to buy their product from

VMR LARI O Now, there is that existing
t akeout restaurant |ocated on the site. W're not
proposi ng any changes to that and will continue to
oper ate; again, approxinmately 800 square feet of
takout-only so that will continue operations,
correct?

MR, BROMN:  Yes.

VMR LARI O M. Chairnman, --

M5. MOORE: Any questions that are in the
review letter, | do have to go through the underlined
itens in the review letter.

MR LARIO If it's all right, could we
have our engineer and | think he's going to answer a
| ot of questions that you have. And if there's
anything el se, we'll obviously --

M5. MOORE: | nean, just before you go

into question and answer with him if we can just go
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t hrough the letter.

MR EINGORN: Because you're answering a
| ot of the questions that are in the letter and we
got to go through the letter anyway. Right?

MR. LARIO Ckay.

MR EINGORN: So sonetines if we just run
through the letter, it answers all kinds of conflicts
t hat we have to get to.

MR LARI O  Ckay.

M5. MOORE: Do you have any ot her
testi nony you want to put on record?

MR LARIO M. Brown, unless there's any
questions that any of the Board nenbers have, but |'m
happy to go to our engineer.

M5. ALSTON: | have. You nentioned the
delivery. | just want to be clear that delivery of
t he product, you're not delivering to custoners
because that would be a separate application; am!|
correct?

MR BROWN. Yes. So at one point |
tal ked about deliveries, |I'mtalking about the
product that's comng into Cannabi sta to be sol d.

And then in another context, |'mtalking about
deliveries. And you're correct. There's a Class 6

License if Cannabista is doing the deliveries.
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Cannabi sta itself doesn't need a license to have
anot her delivery conpany get the product from
Cannabi sta to deliver to it.

MS. ALSTON: kay.

MR LARI O  Soneone el se can get a d ass
6 License and then utilize the delivery services,
correct?

M5. ALSTON: And then | had one nore
thing. |It's always good intentions when we have
t hese busi nesses cone up. But you nentioned | ocal
hiring. So when | find that sonetinmes we don't have
that local talent here, would there be any
instructional or newtraining so that if you see
potential in a, one, a person that would you hire
them and sort of train of themthrough the process?

MR BROWN:. That's a great question. [|I'm
personally glad that you ask that but also as a
representative here. So we're a nenber of the New
Jersey Cannabi s Business Association. And they have
retraining nodels specifically for Budtenders which
is what the retail people are known as, to have that
training. There's also several opportunities that we
have to work with other | ocal unions and ot her
people. Sonetines people who work in this industry,

t hey m ght have an issue working at one di spensary,
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but they really like the work because they know t he
product and they're | ooking for opportunities in
others. So we have several opportunities, |eads and
list for how to do that.

You can al so i magi ne us havi ng an open
house event right on the prem ses to recruit people
who want to | earn nore about the industry, be able to
educate thensel ves on the safety issues that cone
wth it. Because we want to pay people a living
wage. We want to nake sure that absolutely that
people are trained to be at work.

MS. ALSTON: Very good. Thank you.

MR LARIO  Any further questions? Ckay.
Let's nove to our engineer, M. Patterson.

MR, ElI NGORN:. Thank you.

MR LARIO M. Patterson, can you first
i ntroduce yourself to the Board and provide wth your
qual i fications.

MR PATTERSON:. M nane is Dani el
Patterson. |I'ma |icensed professional engineer and
| and surveyor in the State of New Jersey. | have a
degree from Rutgers University in civil engineering
and | have a degree fromthe New Jersey Institute of
Technol ogy and Land Surveying. |'ve been licensed in

New Jersey as a surveyor since 2012 and as an
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engi neer since 2013. | currently own and operate ny
own engi neering practice out of Medford, New Jersey.

MR LARIO And you were here before
Boards |i ke this?

MR PATTERSON:. | have not appeared
before this Board but |'ve appeared before numerous
pl anni ng boards throughout Canden County, Burlington
County and G oucester County.

MR LARIO | offer M. Patterson as an
expert in professional engineering.

MR EINGORN. The Board will accept
M. Patterson.

MR LARI O Thank you. | think,

M. Patterson, based upon the Board engineer's
comments, the review letter is probably the best way
to start instead of doing scatter-shots.

MR, PATTERSON: That's fine.

M5. MOORE: M. Chairman, |I'mreferring
to Rem ngton & Vernick's letter dated July 25t h,
2024. Just beginning with your architectural plans,
t hey should be submtted with a sheet size of 24
i nches by 36 inches. That will be revised?

MR VID AL: Yes. That's not a problem

MR EINGORN. Welcone. W'IIl accept
M. Vid AI. He's here every nonth.
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MR VID AL: Thank you.

M5. MOORE: Moving on to page 2. The
zoni ng requi renents use, the applicant's proposed
retail Cannabis on the first floor as a conditionally
permtted use in the C-4 Zone under Section 870-38. Q
provi ded the conditions outlined in Section 870-38 is
satisfied; the conditions are satisfied, see bel ow,
which | wll point out because | need you to let ne
know whi ch ones you don't satisfy.

MR LARIO Correct.

M5. MOORE: The specific type of proposed
comercial uses on the second and third floor should
be provided. That's unknown at this tinme from your
testi nony?

MR PATTERSON: Correct.

M5. MOORE: Though it appears to be a
retail or office use based on the parking cal cul ation
provi ded, both uses are permtted principal uses in
the C4 zone under Section 870-77. Furthernore, as
not nore than one principal building is permtted in
one |l ot under Section 870-23, the applicant seeks a
use "d-1" use vari ance.

Now, in the letter |I go through the
burden of proof that need "Special Reasons" and all

that. You'll get to that?
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MR LARIO Yes. Qur planner wll
provide all that testinony.

M5. MOORE: That's the Positive and
Negative Criteria. Myving on to page 3, as for the
conditionally permtted Cannabis retail use in the
C-4 Zone, the applicant must present evidence that it
satisfies all of the conditions and requirenents
under Section 870-38, which includes the foll ow ng
summari zed conditions/requirenents:

Conpliance with state and | ocal
i censing, including application approval wth the
Cannabis Conmittee, Section 870-38.A to F.

MR LARIO Yes, we will conply.

M5. MOORE: Is that pending?

MR LARIO It is pending. So it would
be a condition of any approval but we'll be unable to
operate this unless we obtain that necessary |icense.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with site plan
review requirenents, that's "G" [It's this.
Conpliance with signage and di splay of products
requi renents.

MR. LARIO Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance wth distance
requirenents to public or nonpublic schools, licensed

childcare facility, park or playground, behavi oral
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health facility; existing church or house of worship;
and or other retail Cannabis businesses.

Are you within certain, the required
di stance from each of those itens?

MR LARIO W are. Yes.

M5. MOORE: You are. kay.

Conpliance with no on-site sal es of
al cohol or tobacco products, and no on-site
consunption of food, alcohol, tobacco, or Cannabis by
pat rons.

MR LARIO So this one and | know t here
was a comment in the review neno because there is
that existing restaurant. But | think that the
purpose of this is obviously people dining on-site.
What's existing there, we're proposing to continue as
a takeout restaurant. Really, we hope people don't
stay there and eat. They're certainly not going to
advocate for it. There's really not tables for them
We can't stop people, | guess, eating in their car
but certainly that's not part of this proposal is
that dining on-site.

M5. MOORE: Right. | can see that.

MR LARIO | hate eating in ny car

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with no outside

storage; around-the-cl ock video surveill ance system
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365 days a year; video surveillance; providing Canden
County Police Departnent Metro Division with access
to security footage i nmedi ately upon request by the
Departnent; at |east one licensed security guard or
nore, if required by the state, during all tinmes the
facility is open to the public. W heard testinony
you' re good with that.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with no |ight
spillover into residential neighborhoods and to the
full est extent possible, adequate buffering as
otherw se required by the Gty of Canden O di nance.

MR LARI O  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with conducting
al | business and operati ons indoors.

MR LARI O  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with the
addi ti onal requirenents per Section 870-38J(2)(a):
Hours of operation between 9:00 a.m to 8:00 p. m
Monday t hrough Saturday and between the hours of
10:00 a.m and 5:00 p.m on Sunday.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: No nore than one ounce of
Cannabi s or Cannabi s product nmay be sold to a

specific custonmer at a given tine.
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MR. LARIO Yes.

M5. MOORE: Use or consunption of
Cannabi s or Cannabi s products in any manner shall not
be permitted within and outside the facility.

MR. LARIO Yes.

M5. MOORE: Cannabis consunption areas
are not permtted.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Retail facilities are to be
encl osed in heated or air-conditioned permnent
bui |l di ngs, not trailers, outdoors, novabl e ki osks,
etc.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Shall only have one primary
public access point, which shall be directly adjacent
to the right-of-way or parking area of the buil ding.
Access shoul d not be through conmmon entrances with
ot her uses.

MR LARIO And that is the access point
along Admral WIlson is the only access point we're
pr oposi ng.

M5. MOORE: Driveway facilities are not
permtted.

MR LARIO Correct.

M5. MOORE: All Cannabis retailers shall
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be secured in accordance with the State of New Jersey
statutes and regul ati ons; shall have a
round-t he-cl ock video surveill ance system 365 days a

year. You responded 'yes' to that.

Once again, at |east one |icensed
security guard shall be on-site at all tinmes during
hours of operation. All patrons nust be screened by
said security enpl oyee and patrons nust denonstrate
proof of m ni mum age of 21 years ol d.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Interiors shall provide a
secure | ocation for storage of products wth m ni nrum
products in any custoner service area.

MR LARI O  Yes.

M5. MOORE: People shall not be permtted
to congregate outside, loiter or wait inline to
access the Cannabis retailer. The facility shall
have a plan in place if interior capacity is
exceeded. For exanple, nunbers are given and
custoners wait in their vehicles until call ed.

MR. LARIO Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with odor
m tigation/snmoki ng per Section 870-38. L.

MR. LARIO Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance wth noise
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mtigation.

MR. LARIO Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with capacity
which is a maxi mum of 10 patrons per 250 square feet
of gross floor area shall be permtted in any retail
Cannabi s busi ness establishnment. By way of
clarification, floor area which is not accessible to
custoners, i.e., storage, shall not be included in
the gross floor area for purposes of this
cal cul ation. The business's security enpl oyees shall
noni tor patron capacity and restrict entry, if
necessary.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance wth consunpti on,
possessi on, nui sance and unregul ated sal e.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Conpliance with area and bul k
requi renents.

LARIO  No.
MOORE: That's the one.
LARIO. That's the one.

5 2 5 3

MOORE: Okay. So then that's why
you're requesting a "d-3" variance for that one
final --

MR LARIO Yes.
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M5. MOORE: So the Area and Bul k
Requi renments, we have quite a few that are
preexi sting conditions and I'll go through those
because they should also be |isted for vari ances and
wai vers. You'll ask for themagain. Ckay.

"Il just go through the list as is: Lot
Area, what's required is 1,000 square feet to 40, 000
square feet. And you're proposing 23,443 square feet.
That's preexisting condition. The Lot Wdth,
required is 200 feet. 105.77 feet, that's
preexi sting condition. The Building Coverage, you're
in conformance. | npervious Coverage, required is 80
percent. You're slightly over with 80.4 percent so
you woul d request a vari ance.

MR PATTERSON: W can probably -- that's
just a small amount. W probably could get into
conpl i ance.

MR LARIO W'Ill conply with the 80
percent requirenent.

MR PATTERSON: It's existing at 88 so
we're actually proposing a reduction.

MR LARIO But we'll bring it down bel ow
t hat 80 percent requirenent.

M5. MOORE: (Ckay.

MR EINGORN. So we'll renove inpervious
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cover age?

M5. MOORE: M ninmum Buil di ng Hei ght, two
stories, 30 feet. One story less than 30 feet is the
exi sting building. That's preexisting condition.

The maxi mum bui | di ng hei ght, you're in confornance.
The principal building setback for front yard,
required is 25 feet. The existing building is zero.
The new building is 50 feet. You are in confornmance
with the new building but the existing building is in
preexi sting condition.

Rear yard, you're in conformance. The
conbi ned side yard, you're in conformance. But the
one side yard, required is 20 feet. Proposed is
10.7 feet and you're requesting a vari ance.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

MR LARI O  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The accessory buil ding
setback, front yard you're in confornmance. Rear
yard, required is 3 feet. You're proposing 2.9 feet.
That's a preexisting condition.

MR EINGORN: |Is there an accessory
building? So isn't this two principal buildings?

MR LARIO So there's a maintenance shed
in the back here that's preexisting.

MR EINGORN: Got it.
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MR LARIO The plan is to utilize this
as storage but we're not proposing any changes to the
buil ding itself.

MR, EI NGORN:  Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: Your side yard and your
accessory maxi nrum area, those are both in
conformance. Your accessory maxi mum hei ght, required
is 10 feet. You're proposing 11.3 feet. That's a
vari ance. Requesting a vari ance.

MR PATTERSON: Yes. W can change that.

M5. MOORE: You're going to change that
al so?

MR PATTERSON: No, we're not going to
change that. W're going to keep that vari ance.

M5. MOORE: Your parking. W listed
for -- we have TBD (To Be Determ ned) on that and
that's because the applicant should provide the
specific type of commercial use being proposed on the
second and third floors. So the parking is a
guesti on mark because we're not sure about the second
and third floor but you did nmake an assunption, |I'm
assum ng? Are you nmaking an assunption for the
par ki ng or no?

MR LARIO So we're not because we're

goi ng to have to cone back once we know what it is.
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And at that point, the additional relief that will be
required, we'll know specifically what the demand is
going to be. And, obviously -- | nean, we know now
how many parking spots there are but we won't have to
assunme when we cone back before this Board. W'll
know exactly what that nunber is.

M5. MOORE: So for the first floor, are
you requesting a waiver? Do you need a waiver for
the first floor?

MR LARIO | believe we do and our
pl anner can speak a little nore. | think when you
conbi ne the restaurant denand and the proposed
di spensary demand, it's over the 28 spaces that's
t here now.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. | already went through
those. So | have additional notes regarding that on
page 6. The use variance, can you provide the
comments regardi ng use variance? | just need to make
sure that you respond to the itens here |isted on
pages 6 and 7. |I'mgoing to junp in to the site plan
portion on page 7.

A road opening permt fromthe New Jersey
Departnment of Transportation would be required for a
road opening on Admral WIson Boul evard. You

acknow edge?
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MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: A road opening permt from
t he Canmden County Hi ghway Departnent woul d be
required for a road openi ng on Baird Boul evard.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant is to provide
clarification whether the second and third floor are
for retail or office. That's unknown at this tine.

El ectric charging facilities should be
provi ded in accordance with the Minicipal Land Use
Law requirenents and the DCA nodel ordi nance
requi renents.

MR LARIO W ask the Board to allow us
to anend the plans to include those. And, again,
they will be provided if we're able to obtain
approval and a resolution and conpli ance set those
make-r eady parki ng spaces.

M5. MOORE: GCkay. So you'll add those on
any type of revised plans?

MR LARIO Correct.

MR EINGORN:. So your 28 spaces, does
that include credits for electric parking or no?

MR LARIO It does not.

MR EINGORN:. So those are the existing

spaces?
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MR LARIO Yes. So likely that nunber
woul d go up given the credits for any of these
spaces.

MR EINGORN. That's why | asked.

Thanks.

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-241.C,
sidewal ks shall be at least five feet w de and
| ocated as approved by the Board. The applicant has
proposed a 4-foot w de sidewal k. Plans should be
revised or a variance is required.

MR LARIO M. Patterson, can you speak
alittle bit as to the existing sidewal k and what the
applicant is proposing?

MR PATTERSON: The existing -- is that
regardi ng the existing sidewal k along Admral W1 son
Boul evar d?

MS. MOORE: Yes.

MR, PATTERSON: So that sidewal k seens to
be in fairly good condition. W'd just like to
maintain it as nuch as we can. There nay be a few
| ocati ons where it would have to be disturbed for
runni ng the underground electric fromthe utility
pole out front for some of the utility connections.
Aside fromthat, we'd like to just maintain that if

it would be okay with the Board.
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M5. MOORE: What you're proposing 4-foot
wide, is there a reason why you didn't go with 5-foot
wi de?

MR. LARIO There's sidewal k out there
right now | think the existing sidewal k --

MR PATTERSON:. Yes, it's the existing.

MR LARIO So the existing sidewalk is
four so we're asking just and |'ve been to the site.
There's sone | andscapi ng, sone weeds that are com ng
up through the cracks but overall, it seens to be in
decent condition. So we would just ask that the
exi sting 4-foot sidewal k and curbing be allowed to
remain.

M5. MOORE: So you would be requesting a
vari ance for that?

MR LARIO Correct. Yes.

M5. MOORE: And that's within the
right-of-way of Admral WIlson. So the state, if the
state decides if they want a w der sidewal k --

MR PATTERSON:. |If they nake us do it,
then we'll have to conply.

M5. MOORE: But at this point, | noted
that you're requesting a vari ance.

MR, PATTERSON: Ri ght.

M5. MOORE: The applicant shoul d repl ace
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t he sidewal k and curb along all street frontages.

So that --

MR PATTERSON:. Sane thing.

M5. MOORE: -- is what you're responding
to. Oh, no. W would want you to -- if it's a new

bui | di ng, we woul d want you to replace the curb and
sidewal k even if it's in fair condition, because nost
i kely no one will conme back in that area for another
20, 30 years. At that point, it wouldn't be in fair
condition. It would be in worse condition. So we

| ooked at it and we determi ned that it should be

repl aced, the sidewal k and curb.

MR EINGORN. So | guess the question
then is, if you're replacing it then can you go to
five feet?

M5. MOORE: Well, no. That woul d be
determ ned by the state. So if the state decides --
| don't recall what the other projects along Admral
Wl son right now, what they're doing, because this
isn't the first one. But the state has approved the
other projects so it mght still be four feet if |
can recall the other two. But if not, you would --

MR LARIO They're going to dictate
what ever the --

M5. MOORE: Because they have to get a
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state permt.

MR. EI NGORN:  Ri ght .

M5. MOORE: They have to get that access
permt ao we would know. Before the plans are
si gned, we woul d know exactly how w de that sidewal k
woul d be.

MR EI NGORN:.  Sounds good.

MR PATTERSON:. So we'll conply.

M5. MOORE: Thank you.

In addition to the vehicle parking
requi rements, bicycle facilities shall be provided.

Per Section 870-230.Z, the nunber of said
bi cycl e spaces shall not be |less than 10 percent of
the first 100 required parking spaces as specified in
t he ordi nance and shall further conply wth Section
870- 234.

Bi cycle parking facilities shall be of
such type and quantity so as to encourage and
facilitate the use of bicycle as a neans of
transportation by the enpl oyees and custoners of the
| and or building. No bicycle facilities have been
provi ded. The plans should be revised or a vari ance
request ed.

MR LARIO W agree.

MR, PATTERSON: We'll revise.
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M5. MOORE: So you will not need a
vari ance for bicycle.

The Stormwat er Col | ecti on and Managenent
System The first two are just notes to add to the
plan. You'll add those notes?

MR LARIO  Yes.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant shoul d provide
testinony regarding how the building's roof wll
drain. The existing and proposed contours should be
provi ded. The pre- and post-devel opnent i npervi ous
and green areas should al so be shown on the plan.

MR LARIO M. Vid Al, do you want to
speak a little bit as to the roof, the drain-off of
the water?

MR VID AL: Yes. Basically the roof is
going to follow the sane pattern that is existing
ri ght now, because everything is paved right now.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. So just regular roof
dr ai ns?

MR VID AL: Yes.

M5. MOORE: So if you can show them you
can see themon the plans?

MR VID AL: Sure.

M5. MOORE: The applicant should
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determne if the project is considered a mjor
devel opnent for stornmwater managenent purposes in
reference to the limt of disturbance and the

i ncrease in inpervious coverage and notor vehicle
service area.

MR, PATTERSON: | believe it is not but I
can add that information to the plan.

M5, MOORE: Ckay.

Stormmnater quantity, stormwater quality
and groundwat er recharge nay need to be addressed
utilizing green infrastructure.

So that comment is the reason why | asked
for the pre and post just so you can take a | ook
because you know if it's major, you have the other
criteri a.

MR PATTERSON: | believe we'll be
providing a reduction al beit, very slight.

MR LARIO That's based on reduction --

MR. PATTERSON: Based on the fact --

M5. MOORE: | npervious coverage --

MR, PATTERSON: -- that the entire site is
al ready inpervious and we're reducing that, that
coverage and it should have a very mninal reduction.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. That's good.

The post -devel opnent peak runoff cannot




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

62

exceed the pre-devel opnent peak runoff for the
25-year storm event possi bl e.

So confirm ng cal cul ati ons shoul d be
provided for review. And so when |ooking at that
too, you have to note in accordance with the Canden
Ordi nance that when the pre-devel opnent you have to
use fair. It has to be in fair condition, I'msorry,
for post. So when you're conparing, it's not
appl es-to-apples. The pre-devel opnent is in good
condition. The post-devel opnent since it's
non-residential, is in fair condition. So that's
where it'll help if you are, if you do have that
reduction. Oherw se, you just have to nake sure
that the 25-year post does not exceed the 25-year
peak pre.

MR PATTERSON: Right.

M5. MOORE: And that's because of the
conbi ned systens in the Cty. That's a special
agr eenent bet ween CCMUA.

M5. MOORE: A Stormmater fee is to be
cal culated for the site as outlined in Appendi x XVIII
of the Gty Ordinance. The calculations will be
reviewed by our office. This fee nust be paid by the
applicant prior to final signature of the plans.

MR PATTERSON: Yes.
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MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: G ading: The horizontal
dat um shoul d be stated. The vertical datumis stated
as 1988 NAVD. A conversion factor nust be provided
for the 1929 NGVD. A signed and seal ed copy of the
survey referenced on the plans should be provided for
revi ew.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant nust provide
spot elevations at all building access points and
corners. Spot elevations should be shown at the
dunpster corners and the edges of all paved areas.

VMR LARI O 1, 2, 3, 4, we're all in
agreenent wth.

M5. MOORE: Uilities: The first one is
a note. The other two existing and proposed potabl e
water and sanitary sewer utilities should be shown.
Cl eanouts should be provided for the sanitary sewer.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The project nust be approved
by both the Gty Engineer and the Cty Fire Chief.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: At this tinme, there is an

Acting Gty Engineer Team So if you can -- that's a
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| ong-lead item so both of those you can provide the
i nformati on should you receive approval tonight.

MR LARIO Thank you.

M5. MOORE: A CCTV inspection of the
sewer (conbined, sanitary and storm system nust be
perforned and reviewed by the Cty Engi neer prior to
construction. The applicant woul d be responsi ble for
any inprovenents to the existing infrastructure
required for the connection of the proposed project.

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: All devel opers and applicants
should note that due to a Gty Odinance, a Capacity
Fee may be applicable to the proposed devel opnment.
The applicant shall contact the Cty Engi neer for all
costs related to the sane.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

MR LARIO "F' we're good with inits
entirety, the Construction Details.

M5. MOORE: Thank you.

Pl anti ng Design: Per Section 870-244. B,
a | andscape plan is required. Plans should be
revised or a waiver is required.

MR LARIO W'Ill provide a | andscapi ng
pl an.

M5. MOORE: You will. Okay. And if
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possi ble, just add all the | andscaping planting and
mai nt enance notes on that plan.

Testinmony should be provided if any of
the existing trees on-site will be renoved. Trees to
be renpved shall be identified on the site plan

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Wait. | need testinony.
Are there existing trees on-site or anything
renoved?

MR LARIO If there are any existing
trees that are renoved as part of this, we'll nake
sure to identify themon the plans.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. And also, |I'mnot sure
when the City's Tree Ordi nance becane active but
everybody -- all the towns in New Jersey had to adopt
a new tree ordi nance.

MR LARIO | think that was --

MR EINGORN. It's hard to grant a
vari ance for sonmething we don't what it is. That's
t he problem

M5. MOORE: Right. But | don't know when
t hey adopted theirs. They could have adopted it
after this.

MR. EI NGORN:  Ri ght .

M5. MOORE: But that's just sonmething to
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keep in mnd if you can find out when Canden adopted
their Tree Ordinance. | think we had to do it by
July but they could have done it before.

MR LARIO | think the application was
submtted in June so it mght -- got in right before
the deadline for when that Tree Ordi nance went into
af fect.

M5. MOORE: Okay. You can check that,
ot herwi se, that has to be consi dered.

MR VID AL: Are you referring to renoval
of plantings, the ordi nance?

M5. MOORE: The ordinance, the Tree
Ordinance, it's a renoval. You can't -- it's all the
regulations in the State of New Jersey, every town.

MR EINGORN: They're trying to preserve
trees.

MR VID AL: Yeah, every town has one.

M5. MOORE: It just depends on when the
towns adopted them That's all.

Lighting: Per Section 870-243. A(10), all
outdoor lighting systens shall be designed and
operated so that the area 10 feet beyond the property
line of the premi ses receives no | ess an 0.25 which
is one quarter of a footcandle of |light fromthe

prem ses' lighting system It appears 0.5 of a
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f oot candl e exceeds past 10 feet beyond the |ot.
Testinmony shoul d be provided.

MR. PATTERSON: We can shield those
lights and direct themin a manner that wll
all eviate that problem

M5. MOORE: Ckay. D d you need it for
security purposes?

MR LARIO That's only, in an abundance
of caution, because | know the state regul ates the
lighting of the parking lot. So | hate to see where
we coul dn't neet the ordi nance provisions, but we do
satisfy the state.

M5. MOORE: This is a typical one that
people ask for a variance. That's why |I'm asking.

MR LARIO | think in an abundance of
caution, we probably should ask for it and we'll do
our best to conmply with what the Gty requires.

M5. MOORE: Ckay.

MR EINGORN: It also |ooks |like from at
| east a zoning plan, that any spillage m ght be
m tigated by | andscapi ng anyway?

MR LARIO Correct. And there's one
commerci al property | ocated i medi ately next door.

QG her than that, there's really no adjacent

properties that this light spillage is going to have.
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MR EINGORN: So we're going to put that
down for a variance?

MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: That's the first comment,
right?

MR LARIO Correct.

M5. MOORE: It's already noted in ny
letter for a variance.

Per Section 870-243. A(15)(b), the maxi num
mounti ng hei ght of exterior lighting shall be 25
feet. Testinony should be provided to confirmthe
proposed |ight pole height.

MR, PATTERSON: It's not to exceed 25
feet.

M5. MOORE: Okay. So |less than 25 feet.
So you're in conpliance. |It's the applicant's
responsibility to contact PSE&G concerni ng
nodi fications required to make the proposed or
install lighting fixtures within the Cty's
ri ghts-of-way tanper resistant. No dedication wll
be accepted by the Cty without the required
nodi fi cati on.

MR LARIO Correct.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Proposed lighting should
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specify the light shields. You'll add that?

MR. LARIO Yes.

MR. PATTERSON: Yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant is to provide a
traffic inpact assessnent in accordance with Section
870-274.

MR LARIO W can agree to provide that,
yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant is to provide
testi nony regarding any and all environnent al
concerns, studies and renedi ation pertaining to the
site. Are there any that you're aware?

MR LARIO Dan, can you speak to
t hat ?

MR PATTERSON: | nean, as far as we
know, we're not aware of any existing adverse
envi ronnental - -

M5. MOORE: No Phase 1 that have to be
perfornmed or anything like that?

MR. PATTERSON:. No.

M5. MOORE: Trash Encl osures: Per
Section 870-255.A(2)(a), all outdoor enclosures shall
be no nore than 6 feet in height. Details for the
trash encl osure nmust provided to confirm conpliance.

A Waiver may be necessary if height exceeds 6 feet.
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MR LARIO W will conply.

M5. MOORE: All enclosures shall be of
masonry construction and have an exteri or appearance
that is conpatible with that of the principal
structure on the | ot on which the enclosure is
situated. Testinony should be provided. You're
going to do that?

MR, PATTERSON:. Yes.

MR VID AL: It will match the materials
that we're going to use on the principal building
that we are going to use there.

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-255.A(2)f., a
year-round buffer shall be provided around the trash
encl osure through the provision of evergreen trees
and shrubs. Plans should be revised or a waiver
request ed.

Are you able to do your year-round
screeni ng?

MR LARIO Do you want to speak a little
to that on the plans? | think this is sonething --

MR PATTERSON: Yes. This is actually
i nteresting because there's an area where we're
provi di ng plantings behind it as you ook fromthis
point of viewto the right side. W didn't just

because there's a really substantial change in
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grade. | didn't know if it would be necessary.

M5. MOORE: So if you're not able to
provi de evergreens around the whole thing then you
woul d need a wai ver.

MR PATTERSON:  Yes:

M5. MOORE: So then you woul d request a
wai ver ?

MR LARIO W'Ill request a waiver, yes.

M5. MOORE: And that's sonething that is
typi cal .

MR VID AL: You can barely see that. |
mean, you see it when you are in the parking because
this is a high point. Unless you are on Baird
Boul evard trying to peak through the side, you would
not be able to see that; to see anything.

M5, MOORE: Ckay.

For signage: Per Section
870-253. (12)(b), the gross surface area of a wall
sign shall not exceed 5 percent of the area of the
buil ding wall, including doors and wi ndows, to which

the sign is to be affixed for 25 square feet,

whi chever is smaller. The applicant has not neasured

to the border. The dinensions of the wall sign may
need to be condensed or a variance will be required.

MR LARIO W'Ill agree to conply with
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the 24 feet.

MR. VID AL: Because we have 174. That's
the 5 percent. So we will conply with 24.

MR LARIO Junping to No. 2, the 100
square feet for the freestanding sign, we'll agree to
conply with that as well .

M5. MOORE: So the first one, you wll
not need a --

MR LARIO W'Ill conply with both the
bui | di ng- mounted and the freestanding identification
si gn.

M5. MOORE: GCkay. So you won't need a
vari ance.

The color and material details should be
provided for the proposed signage.

MR LARIO Yes, we'll provide that.

M5. MOORE: Testinony should be provided
if any sign illumnation is proposed. And it needs
to conformw th Section 870-253. L.

MR LARIO It is proposed but it'll
conformw th what the ordi nance requires.

M5. MOORE: And the freestanding sign was
t he one that you said you will conformw th?

M5. MOORE: W will conformas to the

size of the area. W wll require a variance for the
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proximty to the freestanding sign to the access
point. | believe the ordinance -- it's 15 feet.
We're proposing | think it's 6 1/2, yes, 6.5 feet.
And the reason for it, it's just because an

undersi zed lot. The frontage is on the snaller
size. So to being able to have the existing access
wth the proposed freestanding sign there, triggers
the need for the vari ance.

M5. MOORE: That's the setback. So you
are keeping the setback --

MR LARIO Correct.

M5. MOORE: -- the freestanding sign
set back?

Fences: Per Section 870-197.F, a fence
not nore than 6 feet in height is permtted along the
rear lot and along the side lot line to the front
building line. A fence not nore than 4 feet tall is
permtted along the side lot Iine fromthe front
building line to the front ot line and al ong the
front lot Iine.

The applicant has proposed an 8-foot high
chain-link fence along the front, side and rear yard.
Pl ans shoul d be revised or a variance wll be
required. So is that fence height required for...

MR LARI O | think what we'd like to do
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is to the | owest extent possible. | nean obviously I
think --

MR EINGORN: | would just request the
vari ance.

MR LARIO Ckay. For the eight feet?

MR, EI NGORN: Yeah, because | nean -- |
don't know what the requirenents are going to be for
the state or whatever you have. And this is an area
where | don't think a need for a fence is really that
big of a deal and this is a sensitive use. | nean,
the Board has granted fences of this nature for other
sensitive uses in the past. And | think as a
security neasure, it's probably a better use. That
woul d be ny recommendati on, request the variance.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. So |I'm keeping the
vari ance for the fence height?

MR LARI O  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-197.H, fences
shall be required to conplenent the structural style,
col or and design of the principal building.

Testinmony shoul d be provided.

MR LARIO M. Vid Al. The fence w |
be consistent with the design?

M5. MOORE: | nean, it's chain-Ilink.

MR VID AL: Yes, it's chain-link. It
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has to be bl ack.

M5. MOORE: So it's going to be coated or
sonet hi ng?

MR VID AL: Most are coated chain,
chai nl i nk.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  The vi nyl
chai n-1ink fence?

MR. LARIO A black chainlink fence.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Yeah, but it's
i ke vinyl, though, right?

MR LARIO So you'll still be able to
see through it.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Yes. But the
chain-link is coated with the vinyl filmon it.

M5. MOORE: Ckay.

MR LARIO Qur position would be, the
bl ack vinyl coating on the chain-link fence woul d not
only I ook nice but I think conplenent the overal
bui |l di ng t here.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. Can we see what that
is going to be?

MR LARIO It will be added to the plan,
the details showing what that will | ook |ike.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: W can't use our

phones to see.
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M5. MOORE: No. What were you thinking
of , the black ornanmental fence?

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Yes. Just for
nore security, you know, it's nore of a --

MR EINGORN. M. Cooper, can you speak
| ouder we can't hear on the end here.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Just nore of
cosnetics, you would say, because you' re on Admral
W son Boul evard or whatever, the chain-link fence
it's okay. But if you use the slats -- how can | put
it. It's like vinyl fence or a netal fence.

MR PATTERSON:. They are privacy slats
that are in between --

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: No.

M5. MOORE: You nean the ornanental ?

VI CE- CHAl RMVAN COOPER:  Ornanental , yes.

M5. MOORE: Right. So that's sonething
that's typical especially since you' re on Adm ral
W | son Boul evard, nost projects do the bl ack
ornanent al fence.

MR, LARIO Ckay.

M5. MOORE: You al npbst |ose it going down
so it's just a cleaner, nicer | ook.

MR LARIO If it's all right with the

Board, could we put that along the frontage there of
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Admral WIson and then do the black chain-link in

the --
CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
MR, ElI NGORN:  Yes.
MR LARIO W agree to that.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. So the chain-Ilink
wll be -- on Admral Wlson, it's the ornanental.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: And is the chain-link wth
the black slats that are -- | nean, you said it's a
coati ng?

MR LARIO Yeah, vinyl coating.

M5. MOORE: Bl ack though?

MR LARIO Yes. Correct.

M5. MOORE: And then if you can just add
the details to the plans.

Testi nony shoul d be provided as to how
the proposed sliding gate is accessed and whether it
is only open during the hours of operation. Vehicles
shoul d not be queuing at the gate.

MR PATTERSON:. So it's going to be
el ectrical, nechanically-operated gate that's goi ng
to be open during the hours of operation and cl osed
when the business is closed. It won't be opening and

cl osi ng.
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CHAl RMAN HANCE: Yes, cause they're
com ng of f the highway anyway so there will be a
little wait there.

MR LARIO The busi nesses are open then
the gate wll be.

MR. VID AL: You can have |ike one or two
cars. But if you have a line, that's a probl em

CHAl RVAN HANCE: That's true.

M5. MOORE: The square footage for the
new bui |l di ng depicted on the Building Addition Zoning
Plan and the Prelimnary & Final Major Site Plan, are
not consistent. One plan depicts 3,374 square foot
and the other 3,475 square feet. The correct total
area shoul d be provided.

MR VID AL: We will consolidate that.

M5. MOORE: Wich is it?

MR PATTERSON: | believe it's the | arger
one.

M5. MOORE: Ckay.

You provided the testinony regarding the
hours of operation, nunber of enployees. You kind of
answer ed that next question.

Testinmony shoul d al so be provi ded
regardi ng the other comrercial use proposed. Al

right. That's at a later tine for the other uses.
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Al'l Cannabi s businesses, in all classes,
must be adhere to the requirenents in Section 870-38.
That testinony was al ready provided.

The signature bl ock should be revised to
state the signature for the Planning Board Engi neer
and not the Munici pal Engi neer and the Zoni ng
Oficer/Admnistrative Oficer and not the
Zoni ng/ Adm ni strative O ficer.

MR EINGORN:  Should this be the Zoning
Board Engi neer?

M5. MOORE: |'msorry. Yes, Zoning
Board. Sorry.

MR EINGORN. Al l good.

MR LARIO Yes, we'll nake those
changes.

M5. MOORE: And then Zoning Oficer-
Adm ni strative Oficer, can you just adjust that?

MR LARI O  Yes.

M5. MOORE: That second officer makes a
di ff erence.

MR. LARIO Three and four we'll
agr ee.

M5. MOORE: To add the note on the
plan -- add both notes on the plan?

MR, LARI O Correct.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

80

M5. MOORE: So going through the Summary
of Variances and Waivers, just make sure that I'm
correct with what | crossed out. | didn't add
anyt hing but | crossed out.

MR EINGORN: | thought we did add for
par ki ng on the waivers, 230.F.

M5. MOORE: Well, parking is never a
waiver. |It's a variance. So | think that's --

MR EINGORN: Is that in there?

M5. MOORE: Yes. It says waiver.

MR EINGORN:. OCh, | see it. | mssed it.

M5. MOORE: | didn't catch that. It's a
vari ance.

MR EINGORN:. Ckay. Cot it.

M5. MOORE: So variances, we have the
use; nunber of parking spaces. Use is the "d-1".

MR LARIO Then we al so need the
"d-3" as well.

M5. MOORE: And "d-3" |'ll add that for
use on both "d-1" and "d-3". Nunber of parking
spaces; side yard setback. | renoved i npervious
coverage. W have maxi num accessory hei ght; fence
hei ght; nunber of parking spaces. | renoved the
bicycle facilities; sidewal ks; footcandl e beyond 10

feet of property line; and freestandi ng sign setback.
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MR LARIO  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Waivers, | renoved the
| andscape plan and the trash encl osure height. And
the only waiver than that was the year-round screen.

MR LARIO Correct.

M5. MOORE: Are you aware of the Approval
Process as |listed on page 12 and 13?

MR LARIO W are.

M5. MOORE: |If you have any questi ons,
you can contact ny office.

And the Qutside Agency Approvals, | have
t he Canden County Pl anning Board, Canden County Soi l
Conservation District, the MJA, New Jersey Departnent

of Transportation. Are there any others that I'm

m ssi ng?

MR LARIO Not that we're aware of,
no.

M5. MOORE: M. Chairman, that concl udes
nmy review.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Thank you so nuch.

MR LARIO Unless there's any ot her
gquestions for our engineer, we'd like to go to the
pl anner to provide the planning testinony.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR LARIO M. Rensa, if you could, can
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you i ntroduce yourself to the Board and apply your
qual i ficati ons.

MR REMSA: Yes. M nane is Mark A
Remsa. |1'ma |icensed professional planner and
| andscape architect. Both ny |licenses are in good
standing. |1've been in the planning field for over
44 years. | have appeared before nunerous Pl anni ng
Boards and Zoni ng Boards, including this Board a few
tines.

VR.  El NGORN: Recently, | think.

MR, REMSA: Thank you.

MR EINGORN. We'Il accept M. Rensa as a
pr of essi onal pl anner.

MR REMSA: The proposal tonight is for
the two m xed uses. That is the "d(1)" variance and
al so the nonconpliance with the |ot area and ot her
area requirenents. That's the triggering the "d(3)"
vari ance. Then M. Johnson did a wonderful job
summari zing all of the bul k vari ances.

|"mgoing to talk about the bul k
variances first. They're essentially all preexisting
conditions. And so it's a smaller lot. It has the
narrow lot width. It also has the existing building
set back that highlights the front yard requirenent.

So then the other vari ances that are
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associ ated such as like fencing and the |ighting,
those are really for security purposes. That's for

the, considered the "c(2)" variance. And the "c(2)"

variance is the flexible "c. I n other words, the
result of granting those variances, is there better
zoning? Well, in this case, we have a Cannabi s

di spensary. And we want to maintain security as
best as possible. And, so, those types of variances
speak to that enhanced zoning result. | amgoing to
get into the use vari ance aspect.

But first what |I'd like to do is describe
to you the surroundi ng nei ghbor hood because | think
Ms. Johnson's letter, she wanted us to descri be how
this will affect surroundi ng nei ghborhood. So
essentially to the north of the property, there's a
stor mnvat er managenent basin within the DOT
right-of-way. That's that jug-handle or the ranmp
t hat goes around the property to the north. And to
the east is the overpass, and part of that jug-handle
system

To the south is Admral WI son Boul evard.
And further south across the highway is essentially
open space. The only real neighbor we have is the

commercial use that's next door to the west and

that's the liquor store. So the nei ghborhood wl |
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actually be enhanced by renovating this property;
fixing up the existing small restaurant buil di ng and
putting a new nodern buil ding on the property.

So let's nove to the use variance
proofs. And also I'mgoing to refer to Ms. Johnson's
letter. She asks sone questions about the proposed
use and that's on page six, Roman Nuneral Il and I'm
goi ng to paraphrase the points she raises. She
asked: |Is this proposed use conpatible with the
nei ghbori ng commercial use? | would you say yes. As
a matter of fact, it's going to enhance that. As a
matter of fact, with the extra |ighting going across
the property, would enhance any lighting security for
that liquor store as well. So | don't see any
substantial detrinent caused by this proposal and
affecting any of the surroundi ng uses.

So No. 2 in her under Roman Nuneral |11
she says: WIIl this use injure or detract fromthe
nei ghbori ng uses? So, again, | would say absolutely
not. We think it's only going to enhance that. And
woul d it detract fromthe character of the
nei ghborhood? Wile the proposal is to upgrade and
i nprove this property, so it would enhance the
nei ghborhood. |Is the property suitable for the

i ntended use? Well, the zoning speaks to conmmrerci al
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uses and al so speaks to Cannabis retail in the zone.
So | would say that it does.

And | have to go and tal k about the
parking. You heard that the upper floor conmmerci al
uses are going to be deferred to anot her application.
So let's take a | ook at what the parking requirenent
is for the Cannabis retail. Based on the square
footage of the Cannabis retail, it would require 12
par ki ng spaces. W're proposing 28. And we're also,
under this application, proposing to renovate the
takeout restaurant. So the way the ordi nance is
witten, it tal ks about one parking space required
for every 40 square feet dedicated to patron eating.
This is a takeout. It's very small, a 790-square
foot building. So that requirenent would be
unnecessary.

But then it also tal ks about one space
per three enployees. This is a very small space.

And so we woul d have at | east three enployees. So

t hat neans, we would be required to have one
addi ti onal parking space. So 12 for the dispensary,
one for the restaurant, that totals 13. So as we
have today, we're proposing 28 parking spaces. So as
it stands, what's proposed before you today, would be

nore than satisfactory to satisfy that.
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MR. LARIO Just because | think that's
an inportant point. You're saying that under a
literal reading of the ordi nance, we don't neet
what's required but when you actually | ook at the
restaurant itself and the anticipated the demands, --

MR REMSA:  Yes.

MR LARIO -- we are likely far in excess
of the realities of what's going --

MR, REMSA: Yes. The ordinance is
witten really for the sit-down. So with the 28
spaces that are proposed, we have the 12 for the
Cannabi s and then we have the surplus of spaces which
shoul d be nore than enough to satisfy any patrons
that would cone in and park and patroni ze the takeout
restaurant. So as that stands, | find that to be
sati sfactory which would speak to the suitability of
the site to support that.

So | have to get to the Positive and
Negative Criteria for you. As you know, the first
prong is the Positive Criteria. And does this
proposal pronote the intent and purpose of the
Muni ci pal Land Use Law? And |I'mgoing to refer to
N.J.S.A 40:55D-2 and I'mgoing to tal k about each
subparagraph and I'mgoing to talk about the little

| etters that are associated with that.
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So the first one would be "G' and that's,
pronotes sufficient appropriate space in appropriate
| ocations for a variety of uses. In this case, this
is a comercial use. And the C-4 Zone pernits
commercial uses and also permts the retail Cannabis
di spensary. The proposal here is to pronote the
i ntent and purpose of that zone. Also, "H' and that
is -- I"'msorry -- "I" is to pronote a desirable,
visual environment. Well, you heard that we're going
to be reducing the inpervious cover. W're going to
be fixing up the little snmall takeout restaurant
building. W're going to be addi ng a nodern
buil ding. Were we can, we're going to add
| andscaping to the site.

Al so, we're going to be putting the
ornanental black fence al ong Admral W] son Boul evard
which will be an enhancenent. And the bl ack
chai n-1ink, vinyl-coated chain-link fence around the
sides, not only for security, but black fencing
starts to blend into the | andscape and you don't
really see it. So | think with all those
enhancenents, it certainly is going to pronote a
desirabl e visual environnent.

The next one is "J." That's to prevent

urban sprawl. So here we have an existing property
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that was built many years ago; al nost entirely paved.
And so utilities served the property. So here we're
reusing the property. And so instead of going out
and devel oping what's often referred to as a G een
Field, a field that's not been devel oped, we're
conpletely avoiding that. W're actually going to be
rewor ki ng an exi sting devel oped property.

And the next one "M" which is really
related to that prior one and that is, to pronote the
nmore efficient use of land. And so here we have a
property that's served Admral WI son Boul evard
previ ously devel oped; served with utilities. In ny
m nd, that speaks to the efficient use of | and.

So then | always cone back to "A." Once
| look at all those other purposes, that's to pronote
the public health, noral safety and welfare. And by
acconpl i shing those ot her purposes of zoning, |
think we're always going to be advancing "A. " The
other part of the Positive Criteria, site
suitability. |1 don't want to be repetitive but a |ot
of it has to do with what | said before about reusing
the property while served by Admral WI son Boul evard
and all those other utilities to the site. And given
t he parking discussion | gave you, | think this site

is particularly suited for this use.
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Negative Criteria, tw parts to that.
One is, what's the affect of the nei ghboring
properties? And | talk a little bit about that
earlier. Again, to the north is the DOT right-of -way
with the stormdrai nage basin. | don't see any
negati ve i npact caused by this proposal on that.
To the east is the overpass. To the south is the
hi ghway and then further south is basically open
space. And then to the west is a conplenentary
commercial use. | don't see any negative affect on
t hat .

So the last part is to reconcile with the
Master Plan. That's the saying, is there any
detrinent to the Zone Plan and the Zoni ng Ordi nance?
The ordi nance actually contenpl ates commerci al use
here. It also contenplates a Cannabis retail. It
doesn't harmthe zoning ordinance. So in ternms of
the Master Plan, | went to your with 2022 Master
Pl an, the Future of Canden. And there are a nunber
of goals that we're actually achieving here. And
that is one under the econonic devel opnent of planned
goal s; capitalize on Canden's | ocation to becone a
regional city. And you have a regional highway going
right past this property. And providing a Cannabis

di spensary here, would be an ideal |ocation and it
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woul d capitalize on that aspect.

Also, to naintain and attract jobs.
That's another role. So here we have an unproductive
site now, no jobs are here at all. W have an ol d,
tired little restaurant, takeout restaurant buil ding.
So by renovating that, and getting that back into
pl ace and creating jobs there. Al so, the dispensary
itself. And you heard the discussion about having a
l'iving wage for those enployees. So | think that
woul d certainly advance that as well. Another one is
to pronote the retail along the CGty's nmjor
commercial corridors. Again, it's repetitive but
that's another goal that's being advanced by this
pr oposal .

So in conclusion, | believe you can grant
the "d(1)" and "d(3)" and those other bul k vari ances
related to this proposal. Plus it pronotes the
pur pose of the Municipal Land Use Law, occurs on the
site that is particularly suited. It accrues no
significant detrinent to the public good, to the
nei ghbors, and it doesn't substantially inpair the
i ntent and purpose of the Zone Plan or Zoni ng
Ordinance. So, M. Chair, that's the summary of ny
testi nony.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Thank you.
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MR REMSA: Thank you.

MR LARIO Are there any questions for
M. Rensa?

M5. ALSTON: | have one. | just wanted
to clarify, | believe your testinony was that the
dine-in was 795 square feet --

MR REMSA: 790 square feet.

M5. ALSTON: -- for the restaurant. But |
believe | also heard that it may be a restaurant sort
of dine-in. Do we have clarification as to this?

MR REMSA: No. It's just takeout.

M5. ALSTON: Ckay. [It'll be just
takeout. Oh, okay. That's strikes that. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | have a coupl e of
questions. | don't knowif it's for the gentl eman
here or soneone else. Back to the parking |ot.

Are you going to have lights in the parking | ot?

MR, REMSA: That's the engineer's job.

MR LARIO Qur engineer can answer it.

MR, PATTERSON:. There's a small insert on
the plan which is the lighting plan. That snaller
insert down here, these are |ike the lighting map
whi ch shows you how nmuch |ight conmes from each |ight.
So when you're right next to the light, it's intense

and then it gets less and | ess as you go out.
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CHAl RMAN HANCE: You got a dead area back

there. |I'mvery famliar with the property. So you
have a dead area back there. | |like that picture
better. 1'll go over to the easel. The trees are

here and your site is super dark back here.

My second question is, the trees here,
are you goi ng cut them back because it's super dark
back there?

MR, PATTERSON: There are ones on the
side of the property.

MR EINGORN: Can you guys talk in the
direction of the Board because the court reporter
can't hear you.

MR LARIO The first question was
lighting in the rear of the property. Can you speak
to what we're proposing by way of |ighting back
t here.

MR PATTERSON. So there's going to be

sone buil ding-nmounted |ights provided on the back of

the corner. So that will illum nate that buil ding
that existing small building back there and it'll be
wel I -1it.

MR LARIO And, again, that's a
requi renent of the state, is to keep the entire site

lit. That's part of the |light |andscape.
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CHAl RMAN HANCE: What are you buil di ng
back there, an eight-foot fence near the takeout
restaurant and the buil di ng?

MR LARIO  Yes.

VI CE- CHAIl RMAN COOPER:  And there's one
way into that parking | ot and one way out?

MR LARIO Correct.

M. Chairman, real quick. Just for the
record, I'd like to put the architectural plans into
the record so that everyone can see what the proposed
structure will look like. 1'd Iike our architect who
has been sworn in --

MR EI NGORN:. Yes and accept ed.

MR LARIO And accepted. |f he could,
just briefly referencing the architectural plans that
were submtted, just describe the proposed buil ding.

MR VID AL: Yes. This building is a
retail building. I1t's like any retail building. It
has a heavy set of requirenents that they have that
is going to operate as far as the layout. And so it
was decided and I'll give you an exanple. Wen
custoners get in and get out through the buil ding
fromthe parking, we created a | oop. So basically
t he people, they won't see each other. So this wll

make a line and then you take your product and then
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you exit the building through another door. So this
is a set-up with two doors, one entrance and one
exit. W don't back up. So that's howit is

desi gned.

The other part of the service, this is
i ncluded so the public is not going there. There's a
separate entrance for the service, the deliveries and
all of that. So everything is like it has its own
conpartnent. Also, the access to the second floor in
t he second and third floor, is distinguished from
this entrance. So the other side of the buil ding,
the stairway, elevators and then exit stairs to the
back. So this building on this side, is like in the
center.

If you are on Baird Boul evard, you're
going to see the building like the whole thing. The
building is going to be |ike a private buil di ng.
That's the way it was designed for security purposes.
| think that was the best opportunity because the
site, the way the site is, it was a good opportunity
to design it that way. with all the those
requirenents that the building is going to | ook Iike.

MR LARIO Can you just describe the
exterior of the building?

MR VID AL: Yes. This is the way the




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

95

building is going to look like. 1It's going to be

i ke a nodern | ook. You only see the buil ding when
you get into the site. You don't see the buil ding
fromAdmral WIson Boul evard. You're going to see
the first building which is the existing restaurant.
But to get into this building, through this facade,
you need to get into the parking lot. That's the way
it is.

MR LARIO And, again, along with that
design, there's | andscaping that's being proposed
al ong the frontage and as M. Patterson said, along
the --

MR VID AL: Everything is going to be
surrounded by the | andscaping. That's the way it
IS.

MR LARIO That's all the questions |
have for the project architect unless there's any
questions fromthe nmenbers of the Board.

MR STILL: 1Is there security planned for
the exterior? M nmjor concern is, how do you stop
peopl e from congregating outside? | know you
di scussed the security canera inside. |Is there a
security plan for the outside of people congregating?

MR LARIO So it's really a two-part

answer. It's on the on-site security that will be
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there. Qobviously, the site is going to be lit.
There's going to caneras there of the entire parking
area at all tines. So it's sonmewhere that | think,
you're not going to want to |loiter because you're

i kely going to be under the |lights on canera.

In addition to that as M. Brown stat ed,
we' ve already started having communi cations wth the
pol i ce departnent, the county police, to try to
determ ne how to respond if that does becone an
Issue. But it's our expectation that once you have
the lights and the caneras and the on-site security,
that issue of people loitering |ikely won't conti nue.
And it can't continue under the state |icensing
requirenents. And that's specifically in
regul ations, you can't have people loitering in the
parking |l ot or around there. They have to go to the
site and then they have to leave. So we're going to
have a responsibility if we want to maintain our
license, to address that issue if it does arise.

MR VID AL: Al so you can inmgine the
security. W have light poles. W wll have
security caneras installed there. So you're going to
have at | east 360 degrees of surveillance through the
whol e site. Actually when you're on Baird Boul evard

and you stop right there, you can see the whole site
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from Baird Boul evard fromthe ground.

MR EINGORN: Any |ast questions fromthe
Boar d?

MR LARIO Just briefly in summtion. |
appreciate the Board's tine and attention here. |
think there seens to be a |ot of relief being
requested here. But ultimately, it's a project that
| think its individual conmponents it would permtted,
the restaurant, the proposed Cannabis facility.
Utimately, though, what | think this project is
doing is taking a site that has -- is in need of a
refresher and bringing it into the nodern age here.

It's proposing a state-of-the-art
building. It's landscaping. |It's an inprovenent to
the site itself. And | think this is sonething that
in order for this to operate, it's going to have to
mai ntain that in order to keep its license. And |
think that's the real notivator here is that if this
site is going to continue to operate, it's going to
have to work to neet these standards.

Cbvi ously, there was a | ot of testinony
as well. | think it's a benefit to the | ocal
community in the sense that there's going to be | ocal
resi dents who are working here. Qobviously, it's a

ratable that's comng to the Cty. There's tax
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benefits specifically associated with these types of
classified uses. So | think when you | ook at the big
pi cture here both for the site itself and when you
zoomout larger, | think there's a |ot of benefits
here. And, obviously, M. Rensa, froma planner's
testinony, provided the benefits. But | think just
obvi ously the testinony you heard fromthe other
professionals, clearly this is going to be a big wn
here. And, obviously, M. Brito hinself, a resident
of the City, he's looking to do good with this site.

Again, | thank you the Board for your
time and attention. |If there's any questions, |I'm
happy to answer them Thank you.

MR EINGORN:  Thank you. | think we're
ready to open to the public.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: |Is anybody here tonight
that |like to be heard on the application of
Cannabi sta at the property 2035 Admral WI son
Boul evard? Seeing none, we'll close the public
porti on.

The Board has heard substanti al
testinony toni ght regarding this application
requesting use variance, bul k variance, waivers and

site plan approval. You heard fromthe planner, the
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engi neer, the architect, M. Brito and counsel.

The Board should do a di scussion of the Positive and
Negative Criteria as related to the variances and
propose a noti on.

Any notion that's suppose to grant this
application should be subject to the follow ng
conditions: Conpliance with Dena's letter as
di scussed on the record; ornanental fencing
al ong the frontage; obtaining the |icensing
required for the Cannabis use and then the obligation
to cone back to the Board for any additional uses for

t he second and third floor. Any other conditions you

recall, Dena?

MS. MOORE: None.

MR EINGORN: | turn it over to the Board
Chai r man.

VI CE-CHAIRVAN COOPER | think it's a

good plan here for the Gty trying to devel op that
area there. It's been blighted there for many years.
To see sonebody coming that wants to redevel op that
area, I'mall for it. The only thing I'm not know ng
what the second and third floor is going to be. But
t hey woul d have to cone back in front of us before
they do anything with that so I'mokay with this

as far as wwth the letter.
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CHAIl RMAN HANCE: | ' m goi ng to piggyback
off of the Vice-Chairman. |It's been a sore eye for a
while on Admral WIlson Blvd. There's really not a
| ot of residents around there. W have a |iquor
store right next to you that updated their place. So
| think something good comng in will also conpl enent
that. And also, bring jobs back in again.

Like | tell everybody, if we pass you, |
will be by to check you out. And | went by many of
pl aces and they were happy to see us. So | think it's
a good idea. And we're noving towards the future
anyway. So this is not the first one that we dealt
wi th the Board.

M5. MASON: | think Admral Wlson is a
gateway into Canden City. So being able to have
soneone, a Canden resident right there on the gateway
into Canden City is the first indication. Like they
nmentioned, just trying to have sonething where fol ks
fromthe suburbs are coming into Canden Cty anyway.
So, again, that being a gateway right into the GCty,
and then having a representative of the Cty, a
busi ness owner already, | think it's a good i dea.

And, again, it's a Cannabis and it's
sonething that is new industry. And also having a

representative as a minority as well to go into this
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Cannabi s industry, | think, again, it's a good idea.

M5. ASLTON: | too amon board wth this.
| like the fact they're going to be offering a safe
product to the users of the Cannabis. So | think
that's really inportant. Then also, it's going to be
creating jobs even if it's 10 and 15 new j obs because
of the mcro-license that they're going for. | think
that's al so i nportant.

| ' m hopi ng we get people fromthe Gty
who are know edgeabl e and can do that job. | think
it's going to be visually appealing. So just
renovating the building and being able to drive down
or up Admral WIson Boul evard, | think, and | ooking
at sonet hi ng new and soneone taking care of it and |
think it's a positive. | |like the idea of fast-food
takeout. | think it's well-constructed.

MR LARI O Thank you.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Mbtion to accept.

M5. MASON:. Second.

MR. EINGORN:. Wth conditions as stated?

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes, with regard
to the letter.

MR EINGORN: And to cone back for
ornanmental fencing and proper |icensing?

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  Yes.
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MR EINGORN:. Ckay. Very good. And we

have a second from Ms. Mason | heard so we'll take a

roll-call vote. Chairman Hance.
CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.

MS. ALSTON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Nunez.

MS. NUNEZ: Yes.

MR EINGORN:. M. Still.

MR STILL: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  And Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
none opposed, the notion carries. Congratul ations,
gentl enen. Thank you for your tine.

MR LARI O Thank you.

MR BRITO Thank you.

MR EINGORN. At this tinme, the Board
will take a five-m nute break.

(At which tinme, the proceedings are off
the record at 7:25 p.m)

(At which time, the proceedi ngs are back
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on the record at 7:35 p. m

(At which tinme, Ms. Merricks arrives to
the neeting at 7:35 p.m)

MR EINGORN: The next matter is MS
Br oadway, 617 Broadway.

MR RUSH. Good evening, M. Chairman and
Menmbers of the Board. M nane is WIliam Rush. |
represent the applicant in this matter which is M&S
Br oadway, LLC.

This application pertains to seven
specific properties. The properties are |ocated at
611 Broadway which is Block 212, Lot 72. 613-615
Broadway which is Block 212, Lot 73. 617 Broadway
which is Block 212, Lot 75. 529 Line Street which
his Bl ock 212, Lot 76. 527 Line Street which is
Bl ock 212, Lot 77. 525 Line Street which is Bl ock
212, Lot 78. And lastly, 531 Line Street which is
Bl ock 212, Lot 92. These properties are located in
the C2 Zone of the Lanni ng Square Redevel opnent
Zone. And the properties have a conbined | ot size of
13,960 square feet. Al the lots are currently
vacant and the lots are ready for devel opnent.

So the applicant tonight is proposing to
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construct a 5-story comercial building to serve as a
one-stop nedical facility to the surroundi ng
community. The proposed building will have a | obby
and a retail pharmacy on the first floor. Second and
third floors will be utilized as professional nedical
offices. And the applicant is currently proposing a
nursi ng hone on the fourth and fifth fl oors.

Thi s applicant group consists of two
doctors and a pharmaci st and they operate a simlar
operation in the Cty of Patterson. Being that they
operate a simlar operation, they're well aware of
t he needs of the community, particularly ol der
menbers of the community. And they believe that this
proj ect helps bring services directly to the
community that hel ps satisfy an umet demand for
medi cal services.

So the proposed devel opnent of the site
is also going to elimnate seven vacant lots and is
going to supply the services basically to the
surroundi ng community and sonmewhere within the real nms
of the City. It further pronotes a general overal
wel fare of the community by creating a new and nodern
medi cal conplex in a commercially viable area.

MR EINGORN. M. Rush, | don't nean to

interrupt. To the public, excuse ne. |If you're
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havi ng a conversation, we're hearing you over the
applicants. So if you can just take the
conversations in the hallway, it would be greatly
appr eci at ed. |"msorry, M. Rush. Please continue.

MR RUSH As | was saying, it creates a
new and nodern nedi cal conplex in a commercially
viable area and it pronotes a wal kable site for the
| ocal residents due to the conveni ent | ocation.

Addi tional ly, the proposed nedi cal conplex satisfies
t he many objectives of the Lanning Square

Redevel opnent Plan. But doing so, it elimnates
vacant lots; it fulfills an unnet demand for
commercial services and it's a repurposing of the
underutilized property.

In order to proceed with this project,
the applicant is going to require prelimnary and
final site plan approval, as well as the foll ow ng
variances. So |I'll touch first on the variance that
we're going to need fromthe Redevel opnent Pl an
We're going to need a "d(1)" use variance. That's
not for the nmedical conplex as a whole but for the
nursing hone. The Medical conplex is actually an
i nproved use in the Redevel opnent Zone. W're also
going to need a "d(6)" height variance fromthe

Redevel opnent Plan. We'll need a buil ding coverage
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vari ance, front yard setback variance, rear yard
set back variance and side yard setback variance from
t he Redevel opnent Pl an.

Wth respect to the Minicipal Code and
specifically Section 860, we're going to need
vari ances for accessory use setback and | ocati on,
si dewal k wi dt h, nunber of parking spaces, conpact car
spaces, ADA parking length, |oading space and bicycle
par ki ng spaces. Additionally, we will need a waiver
from Section 870 for a | andscape pl an.

So toni ght we have three w tnesses.
First of our witnesses is our architect, Nassir
Al mukhtar. He'll testify as to the architecture
plans in nore details of the plans. 1'll then call a
menber of the applicant group, Sikanmer Kahn to
expl ain the proposed operation of the project and
address sone particularities of the project.

And, lastly, we will call our planner,
John McDonough. And John is going to testify as to
t he requested vari ances and proofs necessary to the
Board to approve the variances. So at this with no
further adieu, | would like to call our first wtness
who is the architect, Nassir Al nmukhtar.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right

hand, pl ease.
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NASSI R ALMJKHTAR, R A., having first been
duly sworn/affirnmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR ALMJKHTAR: Sure. M nane is Nassir
Al mukhtar. Address is 1178 Madi son Avenue,

Patterson, New Jersey.

MR RUSH. M. Alnukhtar, can you pl ease

give the Board the benefit of your education and work

experi ence?

MR ALMJKHTAR: Sure. I'ma |icensed
architect in the State of New Jersey. |'malso
| icensed in New York and Pennsylvania. |'ve been
licensed in New Jersey here since 2003. | have a
current license in good standing. | have testified

in front of nunerous boards and been accepted in all
of them as an expert witness in the field of
architecture. This is the first tinme I'min Canden.
And | have the honor to be here.

MR, EI NGORN: Wl cone.

MR, ALMUJKHTAR  Thank you.

MR EINGORN. The Board w |l accept
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M. Al nukhtar as a professional in architect.

MR RUSH M. Alnkhtar, were you engaged
by the applicant to prepare architecture plans for
this project?

MR ALMUKHTAR  Yes.

MR RUSH Did you submt those as part
of the application plans?

MR, ALMUKHTAR  Yes, that's correct.

MR, RUSH: You have them here this
eveni ng?

MR ALMJKHTAR Yes. Actually they're
right there on the board. Counsel, do we need to
mark themor is this part of the package?

MR EINGORN. It's up to you.

MR RUSH. Can you give the Board a quick
overvi ew of the actual plans that are proposed this
eveni ng?

MR ALMJKHTAR: Sure. Absol utely.

So these are the plans that were
submtted to the Board prior to this evening.

MR EINGORN. W're having a hard tine
hearing you. Please speak | ouder.

MR ALMJKHTAR: Again, this is the
nort hwesterly corner of the intersection of Broadway

and Line Street. This is, again, located in the C2
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Communi ty Lanni ng Square Redevel opnent Plan. The | ot
area, this is the existing conditions of the site
plan. It has since been vacant. Total |ot area we
have 13,964 square feet. The proposal is to provide
a b-story m xed use structure in which some functions
conpl enent each other. Actually we thought it would
be a nice kind of one-stop shop for especially geared
towards the senior citizens of the Cty of Canden.

So the first floor would contain a
pharmacy. (Qbviously, a | obby and an el evator. The
second and third floors would contain nedical
offices. Then the fourth and fifth floors would
contain 38 roons for the senior citizens. |If you
turn the page, this is the proposed site plan. So we
do propose a new structure right at the corner of
Li ne and Broadway. And then the parking | ot woul d be
accessible off of Line Street. It wll be 12 parking
spaces.

There will al so be an area of dunpsters
off of the parking lot, and then handi cap parKking
spaces. Access to the building is through the entry
door off of Broadway and al so an access fromthe
parking lot. And also access to the pharnacy,
proposed pharmacy floor, is off of the corner of

Broadway and Line Streets. The third page is just
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standard details and this will be obviously subject
to the engineer. W will work with the engineer in
providing the details, the necessary details for the
site inprovenents, sidewal k, curbs, paving, all these
t hi ngs.

MR EINGORN:. W're going to have to go
t hrough sone of this in the letter. By any chance,
do you have the elevations so you can show t he Board
what the project will |ook |ike?

MR ALMJKHTAR: Real quick. So this is
the first floor, 7,297 square feet of pharmacy. This
is the access fromthe parking | ot and access from
the front. There's a stretcher elevator, staircase
and set a conmon-area bat hroons, and then the second
and third floors. It's nmainly an open space
obvi ously, subject to the doctors renting the space,
how many square feet they need; a total of 10,900
square feet. And then the upper floors, the fourth
and fifth floors, like | nentioned, 19 roons; al nost
li ke the hotel type room Each one has its own
separat e bat hroom and access with snall kitchenette.
And then we have a nulti-purpose roomfor the
assenbly of the residents of the building.

These are the exterior elevations. This

is the Broadway el evation. W thought that we would
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give it a nodern |look with sone nodern neta

paneling, glass and brick facing. It would be a
5-story building as | nentioned before, 55 feet

3 inches. And this is the main thing. This is the
Line Street elevation. This area is vacated because
we have the access to the parking lot and it's mainly
a nodern building reflective of an office, a
medi cal -use structure. Then the other two el evations
follow the sane thene, mainly, this would be facing
the rear parking lot. Also wi ndows and netal panels
and brick. And then this has to be solid because
it's right on the property line on the other side,

mai nly brick and bl ock.

MR RUSH. If we're going to address the
letter, 1'"d |like to have both ny other w tnesses
sworn in too.

MR EI NGORN. Good idea. Any questions
real quickly for the architect?

M5. ALSTON: | have quick question. Wat
is the small est roomthat you have on the fourth and
fifth floor? | saw 388, 390 square footage on the
fourth and fifth?

MR ALMUKHTAR  388.

M5. ALSTON: Are wi ndows on this side?

These with the wi ndows here are all on the side?
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MR, ALMUKHTAR: Yes. These are the
wi ndows here on all the sides. The only side that
doesn't have windows is this side here because it's
right on the property line and this one in the back
al so. Because these roons have plenty of w ndows.

MR EINGORN:  Thank you. Wuld you |ike
to swear in your other w tnesses?

MR RUSH:. Yes.

MR EI NGORN:. Wbul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

JOHAN McDONOUGH, P. P.; SI KAMER KAHN
having first been duly sworn/affirned, was exam ned
and testified as foll ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanes and
addresses for the record.

MR KAHN. M nane is Sikanmer Kahn. My
address is 119 Genessee Avenue, Paterson, New Jersey.

MR McDONOUGH: My nane is John
McDonough. |I'mthe project planner.

MR RUSH We will address Dena's letter
now.

M5. MOORE: You want nme to go right to

the letter?
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MR, ElI NGORN:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: M. Chairman, |I'mreferring
to Rem ngton & Vernick's letter June 13, 2024.
Starting on page 2. The applicant's proposed nedi cal
of fice and nursing hone are not in conformance wth
the permtted principal uses of the C2 Zone within
t he Lanni ng Square Redevel opnent Zone necessitating a
"d(1)" variance. Furthernore, the proposed 5-story
bui | di ng exceeds the permtted maxi mum hei ght of 35
feet by nore than 10 feet or 10 percent. The
appl i cant proposes 55.2 feet warranting a "d(6)"
vari ance, the height variance nentioned.

So page 2 and part of 3 just nentions the
testinony that will be required for the use variance
for Positive and Negative Criteria, all of that.

MR RUSH. Do you want to wait until
M. MDonough, | call himindividually for himto
gi ve that presentation?

M5. MOORE: Yes, if you want to do it at
t he end.

MR EINGORN: M. Chairman?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Ckay, we'll do it at the end.

The Area and Bul k Requi renents, besides

t he building height the "d(6)," you are | ooking, as
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you nenti oned, variance for building coverage, the
princi pal building setback for front yard, rear yard,
and side yard and then parking variance, correct?

MR RUSH: Correct.

M5. MOORE: And in the testinony by M.
McDonough, | guess if you could nention the use
vari ance comments that | have |listed on pages 3 and 4
as a part of your comments. So |I'lIl go straight to
t he Perfornmance Standards and Streets on page 4.

Line Street is an existing one-way
roadway. Broadway is an existing two-way roadway,
and the county route nunber shoul d be provided.

There are no i nprovenents proposed for these roadways
with this application. But you'll show the county
route nunber for Broadway.

MR RUSH: O course.

M5. MOORE |f a street opening is
necessary for Line Street, the applicant would be
subject to the Street Opening Permt O dinance of the
City. The Cty Engineer should be contacted
regardi ng that application and fees invol ved.

MR RUSH Again, we will conply with
t hat .

M5. MOORE: A road opening permt from
t he Canmden County Hi ghway Departnent will be required
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for a road opening on Broadway. You acknow edge
t hat ?

MR RUSH: Yes.

M5. MOORE: Parking, Loading and
Circulation: Per Section 870-230.F, 137 spaces are
requi red, where only 12 spaces are proposed to serve
the entire facility. The applicant requests a
vari ance.

MR RUSH: Correct.

M5. MOORE: The proposed nunber of
par ki ng spaces on the site is substantially |less than
t he requi red parking spaces. The applicant should
provide testinony as to how they plan to accommodate
or offset the parking demand on-site. |f on-street
parking is permtted and the applicant intends to
utilize on-street parking, these parking spaces
shoul d be delineated on the site plan. Additional
permts or approval fromthe Cty may be necessary to
utilize on-street parking. Additionally, the
appl i cant shoul d address whet her any of the spaces
w Il be designhated for specific staff or guests.

MR RUSH M. Kahn can --

M5. MOORE: |In addition to that, the
appl i cant may consi der having a shared parking

agreenent w th nei ghboring busi nesses or property




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

116

owners. |If so, property docunentation nust be
presented to the Board for their review. If public
transportation is available w thin wal king distance,
testi nony shoul d be provided.

MR RUSH As | said, M. Kahn can
address that now if you'd like to address it at this
time?

M5. MOORE: Yes. The response to ny
comments need to be now Just the testinony
regardi ng the use variance, that's later.

MR RUSH. Basically, M. Kahn, can you
explain to the Board how the applicant plans on
addressi ng the shortage in parking?

MR KAHN:. Sure. Good eveni ng,

M. Chairman. Parking is an issue for the site. W
are currently working with the Canden Redevel opnent
Aut hority to purchase additional lots within the
area. W have submitted our proposal to the Canden
Redevel opnent Authority regarding two |lots that they
have available in the area. W're waiting for the
Board's review. And once they grant us their
approval, we will be purchasing those |ots.

Ri ght behi nd our property, there are
three lots with tax liens that we're al so working on

with the City; |ooking to purchasing them once the
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tax lienhol der forecloses on those lots. And we're
al so working with a fewrealtors in the area to
acquire nore land. Currently, we're working with the
Canden Redevel opnent Authority. W' re working with
the tax |ienholder that owns properties right across
fromour property. And we're also working with
realtors, local realtors to acquire about 3,600
square feet right behind the |Iibrary on Broadway
Avenue.

MR RUSH. Now, again, | don't think
that's going to address the total need of 137 but |
think the applicant -- so we'd still be requesting a
par ki ng variance. The applicant is, you know, making
strides and significantly reducing the anount of
par ki ng where deficient.

MR KAHN: Yes.

MR EINGORN. So as currently proposed,
what is the parking you have established here?

MR, AMULKHTAR:  12.

MR KAHN. W're going to have our
transportation. The senior housing conponent will be
divvied out to a conpany. They're going to have
their own transportation for the seniors. That does
not really require any parking spaces in our opinion.

The only conponent that really requires parking is
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the doctors and also the individuals that will be
visiting the retail conponent in the facility, which
we are working on acquiring land literally right
across the street fromthe existing site.

MR RUSH. That's the full answer.

M5. MOORE: Are you aware of any public
transportation in the area?

MR KAHN: Yes, there's a bus stop right
t here.

M5. MOORE: How cl ose?

MR KAHN. It's | believe literally right
across the street.

M5. MOORE: So all of that has to be
taken into consideration especially if you haven't
pur chased the property yet. Because there's another
applicant that cane in with a very, | don't know if
it was this Board or the Planning Board, with a
simlar testinony waiting on lien on the property and
just -- or waiting on a tax sale or sonething. And
then just said, ook, that's not going to happen. W
have to cone back in and we need to get approval for
what we have. So in case that happens, | just wanted
you to ook at all the other avenues in case you're
not able to purchase the property that you were

| ooki ng to purchase.
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MR KAHN. There are three bus stops on
Broadway. W are not only waiting for the tax |iens.
We're actively working with the Canden Redevel opnent
Aut hority since 2021. W've been actively working
with themto acquire land in the neighboring area.

We just submitted our proposal for those lots with
apprai sals that was done. W submtted the
appraisals along with the full proposal of how those
| ots are going to be utilized.

M5. MOORE: But if you're not able to get
those, you're still going to pursue the application
as-is wwth the 12 parking spaces. And | guess you
woul d nmention about THE public transportation. Have
you | ooked at any other shared? Are there any ot her
entities that you can have a shared parking agreenent
now so that the Board knows now that the parking
can be taken care of if they were to approve this
project? Because you didn't conme in with just
prelimnary. You cane in for prelimnary and final.

MR, KAHN. Correct. W have not | ooked
into any shared agreenents. Like I said, we'll
definitely will be purchasing one way or the other
We' || be purchasing additional |and for the
addi ti onal parking spaces. Wether that's off the
mar ket or the Canden Redevel opnment Aut hority.
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M5. MOORE: |If you do need a parKking
vari ance, which | don't see it in here, there is a
fee if you require a parking variance. And, well,
this is partial residential too, right? W'I| forget
about that. | will have to talk to the Planning
office to see whether it's applicable for a m xed use
si tuati on.

MR EINGORN: | think it has been in the
past. In all open and honesty, to the extent that
t he parking fee applies, it's $6,000 per space. So
wth the deficiency of 120-sone spaces.

M5. MOORE: But that since changed. They
just put sonething in the ordinance in which it can
be di scussed wth the Planning office.

MR EINGORN: Got you. | didn't see the
or di nance.

M5. MOORE: Yes. There's been an
ordi nance change in the past, wthin the past year
So it's not that set nunmber but there is a nunber.

So you're aware there is a fee for a parking

variance. |It's just not $6, 000 anynore.

MR RUSH. That's good to know.

M5. MOORE: Yes. |1'll go into the next
one.

Conpact car spaces nay be permtted by
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t he Board only where the total nunber of spaces
proposed to be provided exceeds 50 as permtted under
Section 870-231.B(1). Provided that only 12 parKking
spaces are proposed on site, the applicant is not
permtted to utilize conpact car spaces. Two conpact
car spaces have been proposed. A variance request is
necessary, unless the plan is revised accordingly.

MR RUSH We're requesting a variance.

M5. MOORE: The applicant conplies with
t he ADA standards as to the width of the ADA spaces
and access aisle. However, per Section
870-231.B(1)(c), handi capped spaces shall be 20 feet
in length, where you' re only providing 18 feet. The
pl an shoul d be revised or a variance requested.

MR RUSH. W' re requesting a variance.

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-231.C(1)(c),
uses that have over 10,000 square feet of floor area
shall provide one | oadi ng space. The applicant has
not proposed a | oadi ng space. Plans should be
revised or a waiver requested. That's actually a
vari ance. Testinony should be provided regarding the
antici pated type of | oading, unloadi ng operation that
wi Il occur on the site. You' re requesting a variance
or the | oadi ng space, right?

MR RUSH: That's correct.
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M5. MOORE: Is it that |oading that's
going to occur, does it require a designated space?

MR RUSH: At this tine, | don't --

M. Kahn.

M5. MOORE: Like what type of |oading
woul d you have?

MR KAHN. It's a retail pharnmacy so the
maj ority of it would nedication, things of that
nature will be delivered. |If we need a | oadi ng space
on the side of the street, we can request one but |
don't think we need a | oadi ng space for the
phar nacy.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  How about t he
nur si ng hone?

MR KAHN:. The nursing hone is through
the back to Wllians Street. |[|f an anbul ance or a
pi ck-up or a drop-off, straight through the back
where the el evators are | ocated.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  But just the daily
needs for that nursing hone with food comng in every
day, linen, |laundry going out, you need sone plan for
t hat .

MR KAHN: We'll have a staff on site.
The food is usually delivered through Weels On

Meal s. So an individual cones in on a daily basis to
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deliver the food. And the laundry is taken care by
the staff on-site. And there will be nurses on-site
along with a manager for the site as well.

M5. MASON: Is there a separate -- are
t hey using the sane el evator or same access point
that the residents or folks going to the second and
third floor for the comrercial spaces?

MR KAHN. That's sonething we di scussed

earlier. It will be a restricted access but we're
wlling to put a separate el evator for seniors.
MR RUSH: | would think that the

applicant is prepared to put a second el evat or
on-site to address sone of these issues. The
applicant has no objection to that being a condition
of approval if the Board saw fit to approve this
appl i cation.

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-234.A in
addition to the required facilities for passenger
aut onobi l es, facilities for the secure and conveni ent
par ki ng of bicycles shall be required, which shal
not be less than 10 percent of the first 100 required
aut onobi | e parki ng spaces. Thus, 14 bicycl es spaces
shoul d be provided and conply with the standards of
Section 870-234. No facilities for bicycle parking

have been provided. Plans should be revised or a
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vari ance request ed.

MR RUSH W're requesting a variance
fromthis.

M5. MOORE: |s there a reason why you
don't want to provide bicycle parking. Mybe just --

MR RUSH. Just based upon the nature of
the project. W don't really see a demand for
bi cycl e transportati on.

M5. MOORE: Even enpl oyees?

MR RUSH. For enployees? Again, | would
assunme that nost are either going to be driving or
taki ng public transportation.

M5. MOORE: There aren't many parKking
spaces. | nean, even if you have sonet hing inside.

MR RUSH. Can we provide it?

MR ALMJKHTAR: W can provide
definitely. W can conply with that requirenent.

MR RUSH. | change ny answer then.

M5. MOORE: Well, that's just a variance
that typically -- | nmean, we want to encourage at
| east the enployees to bike if they're com ng from
t he nei ghbor hood.

MR RUSH. Ckay.

MR KAHN. W can conply with that.

M5. MOORE: | will renove that one.
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Si dewal ks bet ween par ki ng areas and

princi pal structures,

wher ever

pedestrian traffic shal

al ong aisles and driveways and

occur, shall be

provided with a mnimumw dth of 5-feet sidewalks.

The applicant has proposed a 4-foot w de sidewal k

bet ween the parking area and the buil di ng.

shoul d be revised or
MR RUSH:

address t hat.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:
MS. MOORE: Yes.
CHAI RVAN HANCE:

there already, correct?

MR ALMUKHTAR:

CHAI RMAN HANCE:

si dewal ks t here?
VR. ALMJUKHTAR:

i nside the property?

CHAl RVAN HANCE:

MR, ALMUKHTAR:
conply and neke it five.

ar ea.

CHAl RVAN HANCE:

MS. MOORE:

fromthe back too.

The plans wil |l

Pl ans

a vari ance request ed.

be revised to
Can | ask a question?

So you have a si dewal k

Yes.

So what size are the

It's four feet. The one
Yes.
Yes, four feet. W'l

Take away fromthe pharmacy

Thank you.

So |I'mrenoving that variance
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El ectric charging facilities should be
provi ded in accordance with the Minicipal Land Use
Law requirenments and the DCA nodel ordi nance
requirenents. You'll add that?

MR RUSH We will conply.

M5. MOORE: A turning tenplate should be
provided to ensure vehicles will have sufficient room
to safely maneuver the site. You'll add that?

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: All sidewal k and curb al ong
the property's frontages al ong Line Street and
Broadway shoul d be repl aced.

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The Stormwater Coll ection and
Managenent System The first two itens | have on
here are notes on the plan. You'll add those notes?

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant shoul d provide
testi nony regarding how the building's roof wll
drain. The pre- and post-devel opnent i npervi ous and
green areas should be shown on the plans. You'll add
t hat ?

MR ALMJKHTAR. W'l add that, yes.

M5. MOORE: The storm sewer cal cul ations

for the trench drains shoul d be provided.
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MR. ALMJKHTAR: Yes.

M5. MOORE: The applicant should
determne if the project is considered a Mjor
Devel opnment for stormavat er managenent purposes in
reference to the limt of disturbance and the
i ncrease of inpervious coverage of notor vehicle
surface area. Stormmater quantity, quality and
groundwat er recharge may need to be addressed
utilizing green infrastructure. Do you know i f
your Maj or Devel opnent is in accordance with the
DEP?

MR ALMJKHTAR: | don't believe we are.

M5. MOORE: No. GCkay. And you'l
provide the pre and post green in this area?

MR ALMJKHTAR: |If we are, we'll conply,
yes.

M5. MOORE: The post-devel opnent peak
runoff cannot exceed the pre-devel opnent peak runoff
for the 25-year stormevent. Confirm ng cal cul ations
shoul d be provided for review

MR. ALMJKHTAR: Yes.

M5. MOORE: A stormnater fee is to be
cal culated for the site as outlined in Appendi x XVIII
of the Gty of Ordinance. The calculation wll be

reviewed by our office. The fees nust be paid to the
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applicant prior to final signatures of the plan.

MR, RUSH. Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: The horizontal datum and
vertical datum should be stated. |If the vertical
datumis 1988 NAVD, a conversion factor nust be
provided to the 1929 NGVD. A signed and seal ed copy
of the survey referenced on the plans should be
provi ded for review.

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: So you are going on
hori zontal and vertical datum right?cop You' re not
on an assuned?

MR ALMJKHTAR W are going to
hire a surveyor to provide that for us. And
definitely provide it to you.

M5. MOORE: (kay. Because we're
assum ng that you're going to consolidate, correct?
You' re going consolidate the |ots?

MR. RUSH: Yes.

M5. MOORE: So you would definitely have
to be on NAD 1983 for your horizontal datum Ckay?

MR, ALMUJKHTAR:  Ckay.

M5. MOORE: So | want to nmake sure you're
not on assuned because that's a -- fromwhat |

understand, it's a big cost if you go back and have
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to do that.

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Agreed.

M5. MOORE: Do you have any issues with
the remai ning comments that | have for grading?
Wul d you be able to provide this information,

i ncluding the architectural drawings to confirm
property coordination with the plans regarding the

| ayout and access points? W'Ill need to see those on
t he pl ans.

MR ALMJKHTAR: Yes, we'll conply with
t hose itens.

M5. MOORE: So you're fine with the rest
of the gradi ng?

MR, ALMJKHTAR  Correct.

M5. MOORE: Utilities. The first comrent
is a note. The other ones, the size and material of
t he proposed water |ateral and existing water |ateral
al ong Broadway should be shown. The size, material
and sl ope of the proposed sanitary sewer |ateral and
the existing sanitary sewer nmains al ong Broadway,
shoul d be indicated on the plans.

MR. ALMJKHTAR: Yes.

M5. MOORE: The existing fire hydrants
should be clearly identified on the plans to confirm

that the building is located within 400 feet of a
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fire hydrant.

MR ALMJKHTAR: So any fire hydrant over
400 feet we need to | ocate on the survey.

M5. MOORE: Yes. Because you have
residential as part of this, | need to nake sure that
| could neasure down the roadway that it's 400
feet.

MR ALMJKHTAR: O |ess?

M5. MOORE: Yes. Maxinmum 400 feet. It
has to be less. Oherw se, we would need you to
propose a new fire hydrant.

MR, ALMUKHTAR:  Yes. Under stood.

M5. MOORE: The project nust be approved
by both the Gty Engineer and the Cty Fire Chief
prior to final approval and signatures on the plan.
Ckay?

MR, ALMUKHTAR:  Under st ood.

MR, RUSH: Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: A CCTV inspection of the
sewer (conbined, sanitary and storm system nust be
perforned and reviewed by the Cty Engi neer prior to
construction. The applicant will be responsible for
any inprovenents to the existing infrastructure
required for the connection of the proposed project.

MR RUSH. Again, we'll conply.
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M5. MOORE: | just need you to confirm
t hat you understand you woul d be responsible for the
connection if that needs upgrades.

MR ALMUKHTAR  Yes.

M5. MOORE: All devel opers and applicants
should note that due to a Cty Ordi nance, a Capacity
Fee may be applicable to the proposed devel opnent and
t he applicant should contact the Cty Engi neer for
all costs related to the sane.

MR, ALMUKHTAR:  Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: And you will add the notes
that | have for the utility plan?

MR RUSH:. Yes.

M5. MOORE: The Construction Details, do
you have any issues with the details |I'm nentioni ng
on here that need to be provi ded?

MR, ALMUKHTAR: No i ssues.

M5. MOORE: Planting Design: Per Section
870-244.B, a Landscape Plan is required. No
Landscape Plan was submtted for the proposed
devel opnent. Provided the applicant has maxi m zed
the utilization of the lot, there are no trees
avai l abl e for | andscaping. A waiver request is
necessary for not providing a Landscape Plan. You're

requesting that waiver, right?
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MR RUSH W are requesting that waiver,
yes.

M5. MOORE: Lighting: Open parking areas
and entrances and exits should be adequately
illum nated during night hours to aid in providing a
saf e environnent for vehicular, bicycle and
pedestrian novenent. Lighting should be arranged to
limt spillage and glare to adjacent private and
public properties. Lum naries should be spaced to
m ni m ze shadows and avoi d dark pockets. The
appl i cant should address on-site lighting through a
subm ssion of a Lighting Plan. No Lighting Plan has
been subm tted.

MR ALMJKHTAR: We'll submt one.

M5. MOORE: You'll add it?

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: You'll add a Lighting PIan.
And that |lighting should conply with Section
870-243.D(2) or a variance requested. So that's the
m nimum lighting | evel of 0.25 footcandles; the
average lighting | evel between 0.5 and 2.0
foot candl es; and then the maxi mum lighting |evel
woul d be 3 footcandles unless it's directly under a
fixture then 5 footcandl es would be permtted.

So typically, nost projects go above the
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maxi nrum So we woul d need you to neet these as close
as possible or else, would they ask for the variance
in this instance?

MR EINGORN: It's hard to give a
variance if we don't know what the plan says.

M5. MOORE: | know. Otherw se, for
lighting, they would have to cone back to the Board
for |ighting.

MR RUSH. For a Lighting Plan that
doesn't conply are you sayi ng?

MR EINGORN:. Right. If you can't
conply. The problemis, these lighting |levels are
not that high. And nost people cone in and they have
lights that are brighter than this and they need them
because there's safety i ssues or whatever it nay be
and they need to spill into the sidewal k or what ever
it is. And so wthout a Lighting Plan, you can't
det erm ne whet her or not and what kind of variance
you' d be requesting. But conplying with this isn't
exactly easy is what Dena is telling ne.

MR, RUSH: Understood. | nean, we can
take testinony tonight fromny client to see if
they're willing to provide -- obviously, if you're
sayi ng they go above what's required. W have no

problemtestifying to the fact that we will submt a
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Lighting Plan that supplies adequate |ighting and,
you know, adequate lighting that will neet or even
definitely exceed these requirenents.

M5. MOORE: Well, that's just it. |If you
exceed it then you need a variance. But because we
don't know what that variance would be. At this
point, | guess the only thing you can do is try to
nmeet this. But then if you don't need it you would
have to cone back to the Board to get approval.

MR, RUSH: Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: Ckay?

MR EINGORN. The other thing is, you
could ask for prelimnary and just cone back for
final with the parking and the lighting --

MR RUSH. | was thinking about anendi ng
it. | was going to say that before.

MR EINGORN. That's the other option.

MR, RUSH. Yeah, that we m ght want to
anmend the application and just seek a prelimnary.

MR EINGORN: That's anot her option.

MR, RUSH: Before we nmake that deci sion,
we can finish with the letter and then | will consult
with ny client.

MR, ElI NGORN:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: |I'Ill keep going.
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Any wal | -nounted or architectural
lighting that's proposed, should be shown on the
pl ans.

MR ALKUMHTAR  Yes.

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-243.H, all
outdoor lighting not essential for safety and
security purposes, shall be activated by automatic
control devices and turned off during nonoperating
hour s.

MR ALMJKHTAR: No problem

M5. MOORE: And then | would need you to
add this note to the plan, that note specifically.

MR ALMJUKHTAR:  Sur e.

M5. MOORE: The applicant is to provide a
traffic inpact assessnent in accordance with Section
870-274.

MR RUSH. Again, we don't have them
toni ght. The planner can touch on that sonmewhat and
M. MDonough wll address the fact that there is
going to be a shuttle provided. If we do nmake -- it
appears that we'll probably be seeking prelimnary
toni ght then that would be part of the final
subm ssion. Wuld that we accept abl e?

M5. MOORE: Yes, that's fine.

And that's just an inpact assessnent so |
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don't need the full traffic counts or anything. But
what you're proposing to do in accordance with the
cal cul ati ons you woul d assune through the ASHTO and
all the -- we know it's not ASHTO but the traffic,
the typical traffic standards.

MR, RUSH. Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: Environnental |npacts: The
applicant is to provide testinony regarding any and
all environnental concerns, studies or renediation
pertaining to the site. Are you aware of any
envi ronnental issues pertaining to the site?

MR RUSH We're not aware of any.

M5. MOORE: |Is there a Phase 1?

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: There is a Phase 1?

MR KAHN. Correct. There are no
envi ronnental issues that we know of. W' ve done
Phase 1 and Phase 2.

M5. MOORE: You have done bot h?

MR KAHN: Yes.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. |If you can submt both
of those to us, we should get those as a part of the
application. GCkay? But you did do the Phase 1 and 2
al ready too.

MR, KAHN: Yes.
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M5. MOORE: Ckay. So Phase 1 and 2 1'1]1
just nmention: To be submtted. Thank you.

Testinmony shoul d be provided regarding
t he devel opnent's provision to solid waste managenent
and its operation. So trash.

MR ALMJKHTAR: W do provide an
encl osure for the trash. |It's shown on the sane
pl ans.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. |Is it by a private
haul er ?

MR, ALMUKHTAR  Private haul er.

M5. MOORE: Once a week; tw ce a week?
| know the nedi cal waste woul d get picked up. But
then the actual trash.

MR, RUSH. The actual trash, the refuse
woul d be twice a week. It's a private hauler.

Qobvi ously, the nedical is handl ed under state

regul ations and that would handl ed privately by the
doctors or whoever is renting, any doctors renting
and obviously the nursing honme facility.

M5. MOORE: Provided the dunpster area is
| ocated on the ground | evel below the building |ine
of the upper floors, testinony should be provided as
to whether there is sufficient vertical clearance to

accomodat e trash pi ckup trucks.
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MR ALMJHTAR: The thought is that the
dunpsters will be wheeled outside and then it would
be picked up by the trucks. O we can raise the
first floor a couple of feet nore so that the trucks
can access it. Usually what we do is, they wheel it
out and they pick it up outside.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. And that's -- you have
a | arge enough -- | nean, if you have this operation
now in Patterson that's enough. That's what you do
now?

MR, ALMJKHTAR  Yes. Mst of the
devel opnents they do that.

M5. MOORE: Twi ce a week?

MR ALMJKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: No signage has been proposed
with this application. The applicant should confirm
that no signage is proposed with the application.
Any proposed signage nust be conply with Section
870- 253.

MR RUSH. Currently, there's no signage
bei ng proposed. And any signage that woul d be
proposed, obviously, is going to have to conply with
t he code or the applicant would have to be back in
front of the Board.

M5. MOORE: But right now I'mjust
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listing no signage. So our office recomends a | ot
consolidation. The applicant nust obtain the correct
tax map plates and bl ock and | ot nunbers fromthe Tax
Assessor.

MR, RUSH. That woul d be fine.

M5. MOORE: Witten verification nmust be
received by our office prior to final review and

signatures of the deed and or plat. So the | ot

consolidation, wll that be by deed or by plat?
MR RUSH: | prefer to do it by deed. |If
there's objection to that, | prefer deed.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. You can do it by deed
but then the Gty of Canden has a separate
requi rement where they do see the | ot consolidation
on a pl an.

MR RUSH. Ckay.

M5. MOORE: So typically, if you haven't
al ready created a plan for the lot consolidation, you
just go ahead and do it by plan. But they do have
t hat requi renment --

MR RUSH So we're going to have to do
both of them anyway so it woul d probably just be
better to do everything by plan then.

M5. MOORE: That is under M scell aneous
No. 5. The plan should note that the applicant wll
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conply with the Cty's "Ordi nance Establ i shing
St andards for the Subm ssion of Maps and O her
Docunents in a Digital Format." So that's the
subm ssion of two flash drives of the | ot
consolidation plan in NAD 1983. That's why |
nmentioned that it's inportant that you're in a
datum - -

MR, AMULKHTAR:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: -- under that requirenent.

The applicant should be aware that the
final signatures of approval and the building permts
wll not be issued until that required information is
recei ved.

MR, RUSH: Under st ood.

M5. MOORE: (oing back up to
M scel | aneous No. 1: Testinony regardi ng confornance
wth Sections 870-223 and 870-224 pertaining to the
general design guidelines and design of the site
shoul d be provi ded.

MR ALMJKHTAR:. So | believe we do conply
with the requirenents.

MR RUSH. Your testinony you provided
earlier, is that in conpliance as well?

MR ALMJKHTAR  Yes.

M5. MOORE: All other architectural
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gui del i nes and design controls, as outlined in the
Redevel opnent Pl an, nmust be net. Testinony shoul d be
provi ded as to how the applicant conforns with these
requi renents.

So your architectural plan neets
everything in the Lanni ng Square Devel opnent ?

MR ALMJKHTAR: | believe. [I'll review
it one nore tine and then if there's any devi ation or
anything like that, we can update that. No problem

M5. MOORE: Per Section 870-189.C,
Accessory buildings structures and uses shall not
occupy a front yard, shall be set back a m ni num of
5 feet fromany side yard and 3 feet fromany rear
year, and shall not occupy nore than 25 percent of
the rear yard requirenent or a maxi nrumof 750 square
feet whichever is smaller.

Per the Redevel opnent Pl an, off-street
parking is an accessory use. Thus, the proposed
par ki ng area should conply with the aforenenti oned
requi renents. The proposed parking area is |ocated
within the required front yard and | ocate 0 feet
setback fromthe side and rear yards. A vari ance
request i s necessary.

MR RUSH W're requesting that

vari ance.
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M5. MOORE: Col ored architectural
renderi ngs should be provided and presented at the
publ i ¢ heari ng.

MR ALMJKHTAR:. W didn't provide that.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. Do you have any
rendering that woul d show the Board exactly what this
will ook Iike?

MR, ALMJKHTAR Ot her than the el evations
here, the veneer facades, we didn't have tine to
prepare that.

M5. MOORE: Wiat's the material ?

MR ALMJKHTAR: Brick, netal panels and
obvi ously the w ndows, the glasses, sone curtain
wal | s.

M5. MOORE: So regular colored brick?

MR ALMJUKHTAR: Correct.

M5. MOORE: | did the requirenent. The
zoni ng requi renent table should be revised to
reference the requirenents of the Lanni ng Square
Redevel opnent Plan. You'll revise that?

MR ALMJKHTAR  Yes.

M5. MOORE: The signature bl ocks on the
cover sheet should be revised to reference the Zoning
Board and replace the Board Admi nistrative signature

line with the Zoning Oficer/Adm nistrative Oficer.
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MR ALMJKHTAR: No problem

M5. MOORE: The applicant and owner are
rem nded of the site safety note. You'll add this
site safety note to the plan?

MR ALMUKHTAR  Yes.

M5. MOORE: And the Summary of Vari ances
and Waivers, | elimnated two of them For the
Redevel opnent Plan, it's the "d(1)" variance. For
use, the "d-6" variance for height, building
coverage, front yard setback, rear yard setback and
si de yard set back.

Fromthe Gty Odinance, we're |ooking at
vari ances for the accessory use setback and | ocati on.
| elimnated the sidewal k w dth, the nunber of
par ki ng spaces, conpact car spaces. You're going to
correct that, right, the conpact -- no. You are
asking for a variance.

MR AMLUKHTAR: W are.

M5. MOORE: The ADA parking | ength and
the | oading space. | elimnated the bicycle parking.

MR AMLUKHTAR  Yes.

M5. MOORE: And the only waiver | have is
t he Landscape Pl an.

MR, RUSH: That's correct.

M5. MOORE: You' re aware of the Approval
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Process as listed on page 11 and 12. |If you have
any questions on that, you can contact ny office for
t hose.

MR RUSH: Yes.

M5. MOORE: And the Qutside Agency
Approval s | have Canden County Pl anni ng Board, Canden
County Soil Conservation D strict and Canden County
Muni ci pal Utilities Authority. Are there any others
that you're aware of?

MR RUSH. | don't believe so. | believe
that's it.

M5. MOORE: That's it?

MR RUSH:. Yes.

M5. MOORE: M. Chairman, that concl udes
my review.

MR RUSH: At this time, | think it's
probably appropriate to ask that we anend the
application to be a prelimnary. And, obviously,
once we submt the final at a |ater date.

MR EINGORN. | think that's a good i dea.

MR RUSH: Yes.

M5. MOORE: So it's for a use variance at
prelimnary site plan only?

MR RUSH: Yes.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. Thank you. Well, use
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and hei ght vari ances?

MR. RUSH Yes, "d(1)" and "d(6)."

MS. MOORE: Yes.

MR RUSH | would |like our planner to
provi de sone planner testinony and touch on the
vari ance proofs.

MR EINGORN: G eat.

MR McDONOUGH: Once agai n, John
McDonough. |I'mthe project planner. W are here
within the Lanni ng Square Redevel opnent Pl an. You
have a good list from M. Johnson in terns of the
relief that the applicant is seeking. It gives you a
ni ce one-page snapshot. W are going to take you
t hrough that |ist one-by-one where we start wth the
two main "d"' variances that are here. One is to
allow a use that's not permtted in the zone. That's
your "d(1l)" use variance. And then what we call a
"d(6)" height variance to allow a building that's
bi gger than what's allowed in the zone.

You'll see in ny proofs, it kind of ties
toget her, the size of the building and the use that
the applicant is proposing here. Both serve an
i nportant public purpose. And that public purpose,
of course, being the pronotion of public health,

safety and welfare. This is a health-oriented use.
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In fact, nursing hones are of such paranmount, public
i nportance, they're considered inherently benefici al
under the | aw which neans, they automatically serve
the Positive Criteri a.

Sone of the statistics that are inportant
and that support this use here, No. 1, our population
iIs aging. W think we know that and not only here in
New Jersey but in your community as well. The
statistics tell us that by the end of the decade, one
out of every five people here in New Jersey is going
to be over the age of 65. That is going to require a
certain level of care targeted at seniors which this
Is ainmed at.

Secondl y, perhaps even nore frightening

or startling I'll say, the nunber of Al zheiner's and
nmenory care, denentia patients will double in the
next 30 years as well. This is a |land use that
caters to that as well. So I'll say it's an

unfortunate consequence of the tinmes, but it is
certainly going to be a necessary and essential | and
use as we go forward. We have an applicant here that
is backed by a good nedical staff that is ready,
willing and able to deliver comunity services at a

| ocal scale.

This is the nei ghborhood, the C 2
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Nei ghbor hood Community Commercial District within
your community. So this on par with that

nei ghbor hood scal e-type of use that will cater to the
| ocal popul ation, provide those inportant health
services, in particular, targeted at a senior

popul ation. Provision of senior care, senior housing
is still listed as a fundanental purpose of zoning in
the Land Use Law. And, again, that's what the

applicant is providing here.

A nursing hone is just that. It is a
home. This will be the permanent address of those
people that will live here, their residential

address. So, again, provision of senior housing is

i nportant and of paranmount public inportance. That
all goes towards the Positive Criteria. This is
going to deliver a Land Use that is certainly gaining
currency as we nove forward into the next decade.

And that age cohort of senior population only gets

| arger as we all live |onger.

Tied to that is the fact that these top
two top floors are going to be the nursing hone. So
we have a nice nedical arts buil ding happeni ng here.
On the ground |l evel, you're going to have the
pharmacy use, the retail use. Retail is a permtted

use in the zone. Above that you only have two floors
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of office space, again, nedical office space which is
also a permtted use in the zone. And then you have
the two floors of the nursing hone conponent which is
not a permtted use in the zone. That triggers the
additional relief in ternms of height and that is what
is triggering that use relief as well.

Whenever we | ook at "d(6)" height relief,
we | ook at the inpact on the greater nei ghborhood.
This is a Redevel opnment Plan that | ooks to reverse
stagnation and revitalize the area. W're | ooking at
a building, a very attractive building by Nassir that
w || accentuate and anchor that corner there. W
think it's good planning, just |ike with buildings
and good urban design to accentuate our corners, to
bring themup and bring in power elenents, if you
wll. And that's exactly what this applicant is
going to do here as well.

It's only 2-stories above what the

ordi nance requires so it's not going to overpower

t he nei ghborhood. [It's not going to create negative
shadow effects. It's not going to create an
obtrusive, ugly building. It's actually going to be

a very nice, attractive building that, again, wll
accentuate that corner. And then the nice thing

about this land use is that it does pull in jobs.
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The essence of the Redevel opnment Plan is to have
retail here; have stores; have eateries and the |ike.
Once you pull in those workers, that drives the
demand for these other type of uses that you're

| ooki ng here.

So this type of devel opnent does becone a
catal yst for future redevel opnent of other sites
within the zone district. Again, that all goes
towards to the Positive Criteria, efficient |and use,
pronotion of a positive esthetic and certainly
pronotion of the general welfare, public, health,
service and welfare. Tying to that is all the other
relief that the applicant is seeking. And based on
the testinony that you' ve heard this evening, |

believe relief can be granted with respect to the

Negative Criteria that this site wll flow, wll
function, will operate safely, efficiently and
confortably.

We're | ooking at nedical waste and that
woul d be in accordance with your health code;
relatively nodest deliveries here. This is going to
be a snall-scale pharmacy. This is not a | arge
buil ding or a | arge pharnacy conpared to, let's say,
a | arge-scale CVS or sone of the nuch | arger nanes

that you'd see; nust nore | ocalized approach that
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wll cater to the | ocal popul ation.

The par ki ng supply, 12 parking space
here. W know for nursing hones, generally that has
a very |low demand. O the people who |ive here, wll
generally not be driving. Staff certainly will need
a way to get here. And to answer one of the Board
menber's questions, there are four bus stops within
reasonabl e wal ki ng di stance of the site. The site is
on the corner of Broadway and Line Street. One bl ock
over on the corner of Broadway and Pine Street, we
have two bus stops on both sides of the street. And
then if you go to the north on Broadway on Royden
Street, you've got two nore bus stops.

So one bl ock away either north or south,
you do have these bus stops. You also have the
applicant's testinony to attenpt to acquire a portion
of these off-street or utilization of these
of f-street parking spaces as well. But | think
there's good nass transit built into the area to
support the relief that the applicant is seeking;

12 parking spaces here which will serve the core
staff of the facility; and perhaps for the necessary
popul ation as well; patients that will cone here.

The relief related to the buil ding

coverage, 89.5 percent where 60 percent is the
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maxi mum al | owed, gives the building and the site the
opportunity to provide those 12 parking spaces.

Li kewi se, relief fromthe Redevel opnent Plan rel ated
to the front yard setback, the rear and the side
essentially wapping the building around the site
itself, again, to accentuate that corner. |It's going
to be an attractive building and will not violate

pl anni ng purposes of light, air and open space.

The relief for the parking, | just
addressed 12 versus 137. Related to that, there's
conpact car spaces and ADA parking length as well.
And then finally, your |oading space which is
adequate to accommobdate the needs of this user here.
This is going to be a very snall scal ed pharnacy that
does not need a |arge off-street | oading space to
accommodate the nature of deliveries that are com ng
t here.

The relief for the | andscape plan is
reasonabl e and appropriate given the greater good
that this project provides. | know that there is a
paynment in lieu of parking that this applicant is
going to have to contribute to as a result of that
relief. Al said, | think the |audable purposes of
t he Redevel opnent Plan are net here; revitalization

of the area; provide a variety of uses to stinulate
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and support and provi de services to the nei ghborhood;
creating jobs; benefiting public health and safety.
And this onconming need for this type of |and use, |
think, all warrant the relief that the applicant is
seeki ng.

All said, it's a good application from a
pl anni ng standpoint. It's a nice fit with this
particul ar piece of property. Mstly inportantly, |
bel i eve the applicant has net its burden for the
relief that is | ooking on the Positive and Negative
side. Wth that, | would offer that approval as
war r ant ed.

MR, ElI NGORN:. Thank you.

M5. MOORE: One thing | needed to add
that | realized that | mssed, this project should
have the visual inpact assessnent done too, | guess,
for final approval, the visual inpact. The ordinance
poi nts out exactly what's needed for that report.

But since you are | ooking at sonething 55 feet in

hei ght, it should have that visual inpact assessnent.
MeDONOUGH: Got  you.

MOORE: Thank you.

RUSH. Anyt hing further?

McDONOUGH: Unl ess you do.

RUSH | will offer M. MDonough to

232306 3
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the Board to answer any questions at this tine.

M5. ALSTON: | have a question. The size
of the hotel -type roons up on the fourth floor, is
that |like normal for those types of roons?

MR McDONOUGH: They are snal |l er spaces.
| know you're | ooking at the 400 square feet or so?

MS. ALSTON:  Yes.

MR McDONOUGH: The answer is, yes for
better or worse, is not -- |1'd better let the
archi tect answer because this is building code
requi renents there.

MS5. ALSTON: Ckay.

MR ALMJKHTAR: The sizes that are
definitely appropriate. | nean, to neet the standard
for a studio apartnent is 400 square feet. This one
is basically nore of a bedroom alnost |ike a hotel
room a bedroom plus a snall kitchenette. And then

t he residents woul d have space, an assenbly space on

each floor to assenble. It's not just the room The
roomw || be used only for probably sleeping and
bat hroom and showering, but the rest will nost |ikely

be spent in the commbn area. So it's definitely
sufficient in terns of square footage.
M5. MERRICKS: | have a question. 1Is it

like a nursing home or is it like a rehabilitation
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for seniors. VWhich one is it?

MR AMJULKHTAR:  Nursi ng hone.

MR RUSH. Right now the proposal was to
address the needs of the seniors in the community.
But, again, | don't think the applicant feels tied to
that if there's a rehabilitation aspect of it that --

M5. MERRICKS: | know there's a | ot of
seniors there in the hospital and instead of going
hone, they go to a facility to have rehabilitation
and it's usually a nursing hone. That's why | asked
t hat questi on.

MR McDONOUGH | think it should be up
to the Board for sure but | would say, no need to
foreclose that from happening. These units are going
to be suited for rehabilitation. So | think there's
a good nmarri age there.

MR KAHN:. So that's nminly the concept
of this facility is to, instead of a patient housed
in a hospital, they're being housed at this
facility. It's nore to make them feel nobre at hone
and have the doctors provide themthe assistance that
they need. But to also have nonprofits |located in
the sanme facility to provide themwith the extra
assi stance that they m ght need.

Grandchildren can visit thenm their | oved
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ones can be easily visit them Usually when a
patient is struggling whatever the injury m ght be,
there's also a nental conponent to that. And
addressing that is working great in Patterson. And |
think it'll work well here as well.

M5. ALSTON: So when you nentioned for
| ocal seniors in the community, you gentlenen are
aware of maybe sone of the barriers that cone wth
being able to afford being in a nursing hone-type and
things like that and have ot her solutions that
all ow - -

MR RUSH. They operate in Patterson in a
simlar type of situation. W're very well aware of
it, yes.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  Your building in
Patterson is based after this building here?

MR RUSH. No. The building in Patterson
IS spread out over much nore snmaller buildings around
t he same block. But they kind of run the sane type
of operation, nore services consolidated but are
consol i dated anong several buildings that are either
connected or across the street from one another than
ver sus - -

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER: How nmany peopl e

are you able to hold on the fourth and fifth floors?
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ALMJUKHTAR:  41.
RUSH: No. There's 38 roons total.

2 3 3

STILL: Is the facility just for
seni ors?

MR KAHN: Yes.

MR EI NGORN: How many enpl oyees woul d do
you expect to be at this facility?

MR KAHN:. So this facility will also be
t he seni or conponent and al so actively approved by
the State of New Jersey. And they do require to have
on-site nurses and a full-tine manager to oversee the
24/ 7 operations. W're expecting at least two to
three nurses. At |east two nurses per floor with a
full-time nanager on-site.

MR EINGORN: So that's at |east five and
t hen you have doctors hired and then the pharnmacist?

MR RUSH. The pharnmaci st and the
phar macy staff?

MR EINGORN. Right. So you probably
have staff who woul d exceed 127

MR RUSH: | would say 12 or sois a fair
nunber. | think we'd be probably better off
addressi ng that when we cone back to address the
final as well because, obviously, that would tie in

any addi ti onal parking.
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MR EINGORN. Right. I'mjust trying to
get an idea of what the need is, right?

CHAIl RMAN HANCE: |s the pharmacy just for
I n-house or is it --

MR KAHN. It wll be open to the
conmuni ty.

MS. MERRICKS: | have a question. How do
you plan to get the seniors? Are they going to be
residents of Canden City?

MR KAHN. Correct. It will be mainly
fromthe Cty of Canden.

MS. ALSTON: And this project qualifies
for the tax benefits and tax breaks and how do you
pay taxes in Canden City?

MR McDONOUGH: That | don't -- you nean
the actual facility not paying any taxes?

M5. ALSTON: The land, the tax credit
and tax benefits.

MR KAHN. It's not a 501(c)3 currently.
It is a private LLC. W do pay taxes. And we are
not | ooking to put it under a 501-C3. | wll be
payi ng taxes. W haven't really explored those
opti ons.

MR RUSH: |I'msure if there's tax

abatenents available, we wll be looking into them
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| "' m sure. But at this tine, we haven't -- we're not

putting the cart in front of the horse.

M5. ALSTON: I'ma tax person so | do a
| ot of taxes. So every tinme | |ook at these
projects, I'mlike, what's the tax inplications on --

MR RUSH. W haven't crossed that bridge
yet .

MR EINGORN:  Anynore questions? Open to
the public. [If anybody here tonight fromthe public
that would like to be heard on M&S Broadway, LLC, 617
Broadway? Seei ng none and hearing none, we'll close
t he public portion.

The Board has heard substantial testinony
regardi ng the requested use and bul k vari ances and
wai vers and the request for prelimnary site plan.
The Board, obviously, has to do a discussion of the
Positive and Negative Criteria related to the
requested use variances and then nake a notion.

There was a di scussion of one condition other than
conplying with what's in Dena's letter, the
di scussi on was a separate el evator --

MR KAHN: Correct.

MR, EINGORN. for the residents. So that
woul d be a consideration as well. Cbviously, and for

prelimnary, they'd come back with sone additional
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details on the lighting, parking, the inpact
assessment s.

M5. MASON:. So this is just prelimnary
and not final?

MR EINGORN. Right. So the applicant
has anended their application on the record and asked
just to consider prelimnary tonight.

MR RUSH. And we understand that we were
deficient in several areas of requirenents. So we're
well aware of that. So nore or |ess, and counsel can
correct me if I"'mwong, we're nore or |ess asking
for an approval of the concept in general with the
under st andi ng that, you know, we're crossing the T s
and dotting the I's, we'll cone before any final
approval to be granted.

MR EINGORN. | guess ny ot her question
woul d be, would the applicant be willing to put off
t he variance request for the parking until final? I
know it's not |like a traditional thing, but we're
really far away fromthe parking here and | think
it's a big concern for the Board. WMaybe we can
address that at final? 1s that okay.

MR RUSH. | don't think that should be a
problem (Goviously, | can understand that request.

| don't think that's a unreasonabl e request.
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MR, EINGORN: |'ve heard sone discussion
about parking. | think maybe that's sonething that
woul d be reserved for final.

M5. MOORE: So | won't include that with
this approval should this be approved. | would say
that the variance wasn't approved for the prelimnary
and save that for final.

MR EINGORN: Yes. It think that's a
safe call. Wth that, I'Il turn it over to the
Board. | apologize. | kind of let that hang.

M5. MOORE: And then | guess ny only
ot her question would be, when do you anticipate
submtting for the final application? Because your
prelimnary is good for three plus one plus one
years? So are you comng back in within the next few
months with final or?

MR RUSH. | would anticipate and, yes,
based upon the anmount of work that still has to be
done, nmaybe four to six nonths if | had to guess.

M5. MOORE: Ckay. | was just trying to
get a tinme. Thank you.

MR RUSH: We would have to notice for
final too, right, Counsel? | think we have to
renotice for final

MR EINGORN:  And you'd have a variance




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

161

request .

MR RUSH. Yes. So obviously within the
notice time as well.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: | think the
concept is good; sone of you trying to do as far as
with bringing in a new nursing hone right here in the
City where famlies could walk to see their | oved
ones or whatever. | think it's a good concept.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think it's positive.
Sonet hing that, again, the future. W have a | ot of
people that are getting very sick. And you're in
line with Cooper Hospital so there's a |lot of nurses
and everything in this particular area right here.

| think it's well-needed and it's
sonet hing positive for our City in that we can help
the community and famly | ooking forward to getting
better instead of going into a big facility;
sonet hing small er; sonething nore |ike honme and where
they feel confortable especially at that age.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her comment; a
nmoti on? Just a rem nder, we have the request for use
"d(1)," height "d(6)" variance and then buil ding
coverage, front yard setback, rear yard setback, side
yard set back, accessory use in location. W're

savi ng the nunber of parking spaces vari ance for
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final; conpact car; ADA parking |ength and | oadi ng
space; and then a waiver for |andscape plan and
prelimnary approval. Plus the condition that they
conply with the Zoning Board Engineer's letter and
t he separate el evator

M5. MOORE: And | added the --

MR EI NGORN. And the visual inpact
assessment.

M5. MOORE: Visual inpact assessnent.
But that can be sonething, a condition at final --

MR EI NGORN:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: -- or when the final
subm ssion i s nade.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: | nake a notion that we
accept with the conditions.

MR EINGORN: Ckay. W have a notion to
accept with the conditions. Do we have a second?

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Second.

MR EINGORN:. We'll take a roll-call
vote. Chairman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Merricks.

MS. MERRI CKS:  Yes.
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El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  No.

El NGORN: Ms. Nunez.

NUNEZ:  Yes.

EI NGORN: M. Still.

STILL: Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Mason.

MASON:  Yes.

2P 3323530 3

El NGORN: Having six in favor and one
opposed, so the notion for variances and prelimnary
have passed. Thank you, Counsel.

MR RUSH: Thank you.

MR EI NGORN. W have Macedoni a Bapti st
Church, 812 and 814 Kai ghns Avenue.

MR, PLATT: Good eveni ng nenbers of the
Board, Stuart Platt fromthe Platt Law G oup. W're
going to be asking for an adjournnent of that natter.
My client's engineer was not able to make it this
evening. So | would ask that it be adjourned. |
think then next slot would be Novenber.

MR, EI NGORN: Novenber 4th is the date.

MR PLATT: Can you call that out so we
don't have to renotice this.

MR EINGORN: Yes. So the applicant is

requesting an adjournnent tonight's matter related to
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Macedoni a Bapti st Church, 812 to 814 Kai ghns Avenue.
The request is to be on the Novenber 4th agenda.
This is notice of that request. There will be no
further notice to the public. That matter will be
heard on Novenber 4th with no further notice. And
the applicant waives its tolling of tinme?

MR PLATT: W certainly extend the
tinme -- the action to waive any action date until
t hrough the Novenber neeti ng.

MR EINGORN. Perfect. Thank you,
Counsel . Adjourned to Novenber 4th. And that would
take us to the next matter which woul d be Canden
Community G owh, LLC, 3300 Federal Street.

MR PLATT: Yes, Stuart Platt. |I'mfrom
the Platt G oup on behalf of Canden Community G ow h,
LLC. This application is for a property at 3300
Federal Street, Block 1058, Lot 1. W are seeking a
use variance and a parking variance to have a m xed
use of the property. It would be one office and
three 1-bedroom apartnents. And we will also need a
par ki ng variance for two off-street parking spaces.

| have three witnesses with ne this
evening. | have ny client, the president of Canden
Community Growth, LLC, Maurice Mazahreh. | have our
architect, Hsing Chen. And finally, Janes Ml ler.
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He's our planner. Gentlenen, please step up and be
sworn in by the Board Solicitor.

MR EINGORN: Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

JAMES M LLER, P.P.; HSING CHEN, R A ;
MAURI CE MAZAHREH, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR, EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanes and
addresses for the record if you want to do it when
t hey cone up?

MR PLATT: Yes. Repeat your nane and
address for the record so they can hear your voi ce.

MR CHEN. M nane is Hsing Chen
Addr ess, 405 Mapl ewood Avenue, Merion Station, PA
19066.

MR MAZAHREH. My nane is Maurice
Mazahreh. Address is P.O Box 245, Pennsauken, New
Jersey.

MR MLLER Janmes MIller. Address is
222 Ni chol son Drive, Moorestown, New Jersey.

MR PLATT: M. Mller, you can have a

seat. Cood evening again, nenbers of the Board. |[|'m
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going to start with M. Mazahreh's testinony. M.
Mazahreh, what is your position with the applicant,
Canden Community Growth, LLC?

MR MAZAHREH: |'m the sol e owner, sole
menber of the LLC

MR PLATT: And what is the purpose of
toni ght's application?

MR MAZAHREH. So have a conmerci al
building that I'mgoing to be occupying and it's two
| arge spaces so |I'd |like to convert the second fl oor
and first floor to one-bedroom apartnents and then
have ny office in the front portion.

MR PLATT: Wien you say your office,
what ki nd of business are you in?

MR MAZAHREH. | have a property
managenent office. |'ve been doing property
managenent for about 20 years in the area. |'msure
sonme peopl e have seen ny face before. M office is
currently located in Pennsauken and | actually want
to cone back into the Cty.

MR PLATT: And what is your relationship
with the City of Canden at this point?

MR MAZAHREH. |'ma landlord property
managenent firm

MR PLATT: You've done business in the
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City before?

MR MAZAHREH  Yes.

MR PLATT: And your office -- let nme ask
you a question. How many square foot historically is
the building currently?

MR MAZAHREH: | believe it's around
4,100 square feet.

MR PLATT: Do you have an idea of how
many square feet your office would be?

MR MAZAHREH: No nore than seven or
ei ght hundred square feet

MR PLATT: How many enpl oyees woul d you
have in your office?

MR MAZAHREH It would be nostly nyself
for the nonent unless | decide to hire sonebody
el se.

MR PLATT: And your proposal is to have
t hree 1-bedroom apartnents, correct?

MR MAZAHREH: That is correct.

MR PLATT: And you'd do one on the first
floor and two apartnents on the second fl oor?

MR MAZAHREH  Yes.

MR PLATT: Do you have a general idea as
to how many square feet each apartnment is?

MR MAZAHREH. Anywhere from 600 to 800
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square feet per unit.

MR PLATT: Now, can you give the Board a
little bit of a description of the parking demands,
par ki ng needs that you expect your tenants to have?

MR MAZAHREH: So | have -- if | was to
have three 1-bedroons apartnents, | don't think
there's really a need for a parking spot per unit per
say. Because |I'mon a main road right on Federal
Street and there's a bus stop right in front of the
building. Al so, there's plenty of parking on 33rd
Street. And just in case | did go into a | ease
agreenent with ny nei ghbor whose is two doors down
fromnme, he has the parking lot, | did sign a | ease
wth himseveral nonths ago because | thought we
woul d be at the Board before, for five parking spots,
just in case there's a need for it.

MR PLATT: And |'m handing out to you
what |'mgoing to mark as Exhibit A-1; "A" for
applicant. Can you identify what this docunent is
for the record?

MR MAZAHREH: Yes. This is |ease
bet ween Loui s Agrena(phonetic spelling) and nyself
dat ed probably in April.

MR PLATT: And what is the |ease for?

MR MAZAHREH:. Five parking spots which
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are about 25 feet fromny office door.

MR PLATT: What kind of property is at
this location that you have a | ease with?

MR MAZAHREH:. Just a parking |ot.

MR PLATT: Just a parking |ot?

MR MAZAHREH:. Yes, just a parking |ot.

MR PLATT: Thank you.

And do you expect that the people that
you would rent to wll require parking spots --

MR MAZAHREH |'m sorry?

MR PLATT: Do you expect the people that
you intend to lease to, will require a parking space
on site?

MR MAZAHREH. No, | don't believe so.
But if there's a need, it's going to be there.

MR PLATT: That's all | have for this
W t ness unl ess the Board has any questi ons.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER: Al the apartnents
are going to be one bedroonf

MR MAZAHREH  Yes, sir.

MR PLATT: M. Chen, is that your board
up there?

MR CHEN:. See.

MR PLATT: Wuld you please bring it

cl oser to the Zoning Board nmenbers and professionals.
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M. Chen, while you' re setting that up,
can you pl ease give the Board a brief description of
your professional credentials as an architect?

Pl ease talk slowy and keep your voice up.

MR CHEN. Yes. | graduated 2005 from
Col unbi a University in New York and graduate school.
And |'ve been practicing since then. | have a
license in architecture in New Jersey, Pennsylvani a,
and New York. In this state.

MR PLATT: You're a licensed architect
in the State of New Jersey?

MR CHEN:. Yes.

MR PLATT: Can you stipulate to his
qualifications in this application?

MR EINGORN: Yes. | think the Board
w Il accept himas a professional in architecture.

MR PLATT: M. Chen, you prepared the
architectural floor plans and renderings to this
appl i cation?

MR CHEN: Yes.

MR PLATT: And you submitted themwth
this application originally?

MR CHEN: Yes.

MR PLATT: Do you have those on the

board in front of you?
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MR CHEN:. Yes.

MR PLATT: 1'd like you to go and
descri be for the Board generally the square footage
of the entire building and then go through each unit
separately, please. Please talk slowy and keep your
voi ce up so everybody can hear you.

MR CHEN. Yes. On the first page is the
cover sheet. You can find the building unit and the
i nformati on.

MR PLATT: We will mark this board as
A-2 if that's okay.

MR EI NGORN:  Yes.

MR CHEN. So the general of the
bui | di ng, we keep the current building wthout any
exterior change. So mainly it's the interior
renovation and alternation. The existing building
use was only for the office use. As the attorney and
my client nentioned, they convert it to the one
office with three apartnents. FEach apartnment is a
one- bedr oom uni t.

On the second page A-100 we show - -

MR PLATT: We will mark this as Exhibit

CHAl RMAN HANCE: This is the first floor?
MR CHEN: No. This is the basenent.
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It's just a basenent. The basenent is for the office
use as a storage-utility use only.

MR PLATT: So there wil be -- nobody
will live down there? 1It'll only be storage and
utilities only, correct?

MR CHEN: Correct.

MR, PLATT: The next board?

MR. CHEN. The next board is A-101.

MR, PLATT: This is Exhibit A-4. Is this
the first floor?

MR CHEN. Yes, this is the first floor,
yes.

MR, PLATT: Go ahead and describe it for
t he Board.

MR CHEN:. Yes. On the left side is the
exi sting condition. On the righthand side is the
proposed. And you can see the two different col ors.
The col or down here is the office wwth the square
footage on the top. And we propose anot her bedroom
over there. So this is Unit 1 which is the
one- bedr oom uni t.

MR PLATT: What is the square footage of
the unit?

MR CHEN. Oh, sorry. The square footage
of the Unit 1 is 929 square feet.
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MR PLATT: Unit 1 is how many square
feet?
MR CHEN: 929.
MR PLATT: 929 square feet?
CHEN: Yes.
MR PLATT: And the office itself, how

many square feet?

MR CHEN. The office is 720 square

feet.
MR PLATT: 720 square feet?
MR CHEN. Yes. The next board is --
MR PLATT: We will mark as Exhibit A-5
for the record. |Is this the second floor?

MR CHEN. Yes, it is the second floor

MR PLATT: Units 2 and 3?

MR CHEN Yes, it's Unit 2 and 3. So
you can see the sane as the left side, it's the
exi sting condition and the righthand side is Unit 2
has the 620 square feet. And Unit 3 is 788. And
Unit 3 will connect to --

MR PLATT: But before you go on here,
t hey' re both one-bedroomunits, correct?

MR CHEN. Correct. Unit 3, you wll
connect to the third floor attic space.

MR PLATT: This is Exhibit A-6.
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MR CHEN:. Yes.

MR PLATT: Is it still the second floor?

MR CHEN: No. This is the third floor
which is like an attic space. So you still have the
stairs going up.

MR PLATT: This is for Unit 3, how many
square feet is Unit 3 again?

MR CHEN:. Unit 3, 788.

MR PLATT: And what is this, this is
| oft area or the bedroonf

MR CHEN. This is just aloft. |It's not
a bedroom The bedroomis on the second floor. And
then the last floor is just the building el evation.
And we don't change anything on the buildi ng facade.

MR PLATT: We're marking Buil ding
El evati ons as A-7.

So the existing conditions is al so going
to be the proposed condition of the exterior
building; is that correct?

MR CHEN: Correct.

MR PLATT: That's all | have for this
W t ness unless the Board has any questi ons.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: I n this building
you're breaking it up. Wat about the electric and

gas? You have no plans or anything? How are you
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goi ng to supply heat?

MR CHEN. Not yet. Because that woul d
be part of the building permt section. So this is
only for the zoning plan only. So we don't show
the -- we don't have the electrical, mechanical,
pl umbi ng, all this.

MR PLATT: So if we get approval, we
apply for construction permts. That's when we'l|l
have to show all the netering and utilities at that
time?

MR CHEN:. Yes.

MR EINGORN. This is not a site plan
application so you don't need any of them

MR, PLATT: Maurice, nmaybe you shoul d
address the question, what you intend on doi ng?

MR MAZAHREH. So what | do intend on
doing is, there is already an existing hot water
boiler wth radi ators throughout the building.
There's already a water heater existing in the
building. Wat | was going to do, a little
background, while we are waiting for all this, this
bui |l di ng got stripped, sonebody went in there and
broke in. So during the tinme after the vandalism we
had to go in there and, yes, rewire. |It's going to

be a separate electrical neter.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

176

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: | lived in that
nei ghbor hood.

MR MAZAHRED: |It's a great building.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Yes. It used to
be a | aw of fi ce back there.

MR MAZAHRED: Yes, it was. It was Paul
Daniel's office, yes.

MR PLATT: Any further questions you
have for M. Chen? W'I|l now call up M. Mller.
| understand M. M|l er has been qualified as a
i censed professional planner before this
Boar d.

MR EINGORN. Many a tine.

MR PLATT: Are you in good standing as
of this nonent?

MR MLLER Yes, | am

MR PLATT: Can you stipulate to his
credential s?

MR, EI NGORN: Yes, sir.

MR PLATT: MR Mller, why don't you
pl ease wal k the Board through the use variance
el enents, as well as the parking variance.

MR. MLLER For the record this is a
property that's zoned in R1 which is a

residential district. I1t's on the perineter of the
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commercial area that |lines Federal Street so it joins
that commercial district. It was, at one tine,
offices for alaw firm And the building has now
been vacant for quite sone tine and the applicant is
seeking approval for a "d-1" variance to allow the
new use of the building as a small office and the
residential uses that were described earlier.

In terns of the use variance, the
applicant has to show that the site is -- "Special
Reasons” wi |l support the granting of the use
vari ance and that the use variance woul d advance the
pur poses of the Muinicipal Land Use Law. | believe
there are at | east three purposes in the Minicipal
Land Use Law of the application would advance in

their Purpose "A " to encourage nunicipal action to

gui de the appropriate use of devel opnent of all | ands
in the state in a manner that wll pronote the
public, health, safety, general -- safety, norals and

general welfare.

Purpose "G " to provide sufficient space
and appropriate |ocations for a variety of
agricultural, residential, recreational, comercial,
i ndustrial uses and open space both public and
private according to their respective environmental

requirenents in order to neet the needs of all New
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Jersey citizens. And that purpose is especially
appropri ate here because of the dual use which is
typically not sonething that is allowed for in
ordi nances, but can be a very appropriate use in
specific |l ocations.

And then finally "M" to encourage
coordi nation of the various public, private
procedures and activities shaping | and devel opnent
with a view of | essening the cost of such devel opnent
and to the nore efficient use of the land. Possibly
this application would be an efficient use of the
property.

The first set of factors which | believe
make this site particularly suited to the proposed
use is the preexisting structure which is currently
present on the property. The site is occupied by a
bui | di ng which you've just heard a description of by
our architect. The building is in good condition.

It contains about 3,182 square feet. It has nore

t han enough space to accompdate the uses which are
proposed again as you can see through the
architectural plans. |It's also a use which is going
to reduce the parking demand that woul d be required
by this property if it continued to be a professional

of fice.
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If it had continued to be a professional
office, arguably it would require between 10 and 15
of f-street parking spaces. And as the Board knows,
this building never had any off-street parking. So
one of the advantages of this applicationis, it's a
| ess intensive use. |If requires |ess parking which
has | ess inpact on the surroundi ng nei ghborhood. And
t he applicant has also been able to reach an
agreenent to provide five off-street spaces to the
extent that he may need those with tenants which he
anti ci pat es happeni ng.

So basically, this is a use which is
going to re-intensify the site because it's going to
require less parking. | agree with the applicant
that this type of apartnent units generally are nost
attracted to single-person households. So basically,
again, it's a nust less intensive use that would have
ben historically. And these factors, the fact that
you' ve got an existing structure which it can
accommodat e t he proposed use. And the fact that's
going to be a less intensive use and nore consi stent
with the character of the R1 District, | believe
that it nmay contribute to the particular suitability
of this site and the advancenent of the purposes |

cited.
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The set second of reasons that | believe
this site is particularly suited and is that this use
w Il provide for the adaptive reuse of the existing
structure. Again, you ve got a vacant structure here
and this use will provide a neans of re-occupying
that structure, rehabilitating it, returning it to a
stable and viable use and allow it to continue to
contribute to the overall nei ghborhood both by
provi di ng sone housing and the office facility
itself. And as a consequence, it wll also advance
all the purposes that | cited as a perfect use that
it's going to advance the public welfare.

So those are the reasons that | believe
the site satisfies the criteria for the "d(1)"
variance. | wll also quickly touch on the parking
variance to the extent there is any relief required
for this. The parking variance neets the "c(2)"
Criteriain that it's a better zoning alternative
where the benefits outwei gh the detrinents.

Basically, the benefits here are that the
uses that are proposed require a | ot | ess parking
t han the uses which have been historically been
| ocated here. And also, the fact that the -- unlike
a |lot of applications, this application does provide

what ever par ki ng woul d be necessary. So it's a very
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significant benefit fromthe application and no
detrinment in terns of the apartnents, so it is a
better zoning alternative fromthat prospective.

Lastly, we need to address the Negative
Criteria. This is a situation -- first of all, the
first prong of the Negative Criteria is, we have to
show that there will not be a substantial detrinent
to the surroundi ng nei ghborhood. And in this
instance, | think overwhelmngly this is going to
benefit from the surroundi ng nei ghborhood because of
t he adaptive reuse of the building and al so the fact
that the uses that are proposed are | ess intensive
than the uses which historically have been | ocated
at the site.

So basically I think those accunul atively
represent an enhancenent to the nei ghborhood, a net
benefit. And as a result, it satisfies the
substantial welfare prong in the Negative Criteri a.
And finally we have to show that we can reconcile
this use with the failure to otherw se include within
the zoning district, and showthat it will not inpair
the intent or purpose of the Zone Pl an and Zoni ng
Ordi nance. And here, | believe, the use can be
reconciled with the failure to otherwise include it

because of its unique character and the fact that
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will be, again, less intense of a use which was
historically | ocated here.

Basically you have a building that's
originally designed and occupied as an office use
within a residential zone. Now you're going to have
a use which is primarily residential in the
residential zone which is, again, nuch nore
consi stency with the underlying zoning. And also, a
use which is less intense than what the prior use
woul d have been. So for those reasons, | believe you
can reconcile this use for failure to otherw se
include it in the zoning district. | think it's
going to contribute to the enhancenent of the purpose
and intent of the Zone Plan and Zoni ng O di nance.

And as a consequence, it neets the Negative Criteria
and warrants the Board' s approval .

MR, ElI NGORN:. Thank you.

MR PLATT: Any further questions?

So in closing, we do not come before this
Board lightly at all. W have a vacant building; a
building that's actually in trouble. [It's going to
be substantially renovated. You're going to have a
on-site landlord; the nost kind that will conduct its
own busi ness there.

We have three 1-bedroom apartnents that
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we're proposing. There are nmany, many shoppi ng areas
within wal king distance. There's mass transit nearby
as well. In fact, right in front of the office
building. M. Mazahreh will be doing a lot of the
wor k and overseeing all the work and the construction
if we get our approval this evening.

We do have the additional five off-site
par ki ng spaces. W don't think we need them but we
wanted to make sure. One of the issues that the Gty
is sonetinmes faced with is a |lack of on-site parking
so we did the best we could wwth that. W believe
that overall, this is going to be an inprovenent to
the building. And we would ask that you give this
matt er an approval because it is appropriate under
t he Munici pal Land Use Law so we thank you for your
time and your attention.

MR EINGORN:  Any questions? None heard.
Open to the public. [Is anybody here toni ght that
would like to be Heard on Canden Community G ow h,
LLC related to the property at 3300 Federal Street?
Seei ng and hearing none, we'll close the public
portion.

The Board has heard testinony tonight
regardi ng the requested variances for use and

parking. The applicant is requesting three
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apartnments with offices. The Board should do a
di scussion of the Positive and Negative Criteria
related to the requested variances and nake a noti on.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: | frequent that
area a | ot and go past there a couple tines a day.
It's a big building.

MR MAZAHREH:. Beauti ful buil ding.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

MR MAZAHREH. [It's going to | ook even
ni cer.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  It's a big
bui |l ding and off-street parking shouldn't be a
probl em cause we got Federal Street there. | think
it's a good one.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: Al'so there's a need for
housi ng and apartnments in Canmden. | do think that
you will definitely need the parking because you
don't know who you are renting to these days and
people will have cars. Although you have anpl e bus
stops around the area, people usually travel by cars
a lot, not |ike 30 years ago where they'd wal k or
riding bikes --

MR MAZAHREH. W got spots just in case.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: -- which is nuch

healthier. But | think renting right now, a |ot of
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peopl e have cars to get to the mall, the market and
everything. Even though you can do a | ot online now,
but | prefer nyself to go to the narket and see what
|"mbuying. | think this is sonething that's needed
there. |'m piggybacking on the vice-chairmn, |
drive past there quite often. | think it's a good

I dea.

MS. ALSTON: I'mhappy. | think it's
going to be a great project. | think it's laid out
really nice and | think it's going to be good for the
community. | think it is an added extra benefit to
have you there on-site and being able to ensure to
that property is not being damaged or things are not
getting out of control where it nmakes it unlivable
for people. So | think that's an added benefit and |
think it's going to be good.

MR EINGORN: |Is anybody maki ng a notion?

M5. ALSTON: Yes. | nmake a notion to
accept.

MR, EINGORN:. Do we have a second?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Second.

MR, EINGORN. We have a notion and a
second. W'Ill take a roll-call vote. Chairnman
Hance.

CHAl RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
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MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.
VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Merri cks.

M5. MERRI CKS: Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Al ston.
M5. ALSTON: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
MS. NUNEZ: Yes.

MR EINGORN:. M. Still.
MR STILL: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR

El NGORN. Havi ng seven in favor and
none opposed, the notion passes.

MR PLATT: Thank you. W'I|l see you
next nont h.

MR EI NGORN:.  Sounds good.

MR MAZAHREH. Thank you.

MR EINGORN: The next matter is Abraham
| tuah, 400 Jackson Street.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

ABRAHAM | TUAH, having first been duly

sworn/ affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
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fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR ITUAH M nane is Abraham Ituah, 516
Royden Street, Canden, New Jersey.

MR EINGORN. |'ll read your appeal for
zoning. The nanme of the applicant is AbrahamItuah.
He is the owner of the property on 400 Jackson
Street. It's in the R 2 Zone. Frontage of 12 feet,
40 by 100. No buildings on the lot. Store vehicles
tenporary. Present use is to store vehicles
tenporary for sale. And the proposed use is instead
to convert use. Wat it's used for is a used car
| ot ?

MR | TUAH: Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ckay. Cot it.

The proposed construction is office space
which will be 12 feet by 15 feet.

MR I TUAH. Correct. But that is --
| just want the parking space.

MR, EINGORN: So no office for now?

MR I TUAH. No office.

MR EINGORN: And the applicant needs a

use variance; off-street parking needs to be
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determ ned. And then site plan approval, I'm
assum ng the applicant requested a waiver?

MR | TUAH  Yes.

MR EINGORN. That was a 'yes.' So you
want to sell used cars fromthis lot?

MR I TUAH Correct. In the future, not
right now | just use it for personal car rides.

VR. El NGORN: s the ot right now, is it
dirt, is it paved? It's what?

MR ITUAH Dust right. | can't do
anything until | get it.

MR EINGORN:. Wiat's the plan for the
| ot ?

MR ITUAH | need to do the concrete.

MR EINGORN. You're going to do
concrete?

MR | TUAH: Yes.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER I f he does
concrete, you have to have sone type of run-off?

MR EINGORN:. Yes, that's right. That's
the issue. W don't have any plans related to the
concrete. If you want to put down concrete, it's
i npervious, right? The water is going to hit it and
run of f?

MR I TUAH  Sure.
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MR EINGORN: We need to know where that
water is going to go.

MR | TUAH. Towards the road.

MR EINGORN:. Wuld you do sonething |ike
gravel where the water goes through it?

VMR | TUAH: O cour se. | reconmmend

hiring a professional. W have to hire a

professional do it.

MR EINGORN. So you would do gravel
I nst ead?

MR | TUAH Right.

MR. EI NGORN: How nany cars can you put
on the |ot?

MR | TUAH. S Xx.

MR EINGORN. Wbuld you sell the cars

fromthe lot or you would just store the cars there
and --

MR I TUAH  Just store it there.
MR EI NGORN: Peopl e woul dn't be com ng
back and forth to get cars?

MR | TUAH  No.

MR EINGORN. Wuld it just be you?
MR | TUAH.  Just ne.
MR EINGORN:. What are your nei ghbors

i ke; are they houses; are they businesses; are they
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vacant ?

MR | TUAH.  Vacant around there.

MR EINGORN:. |I'mlooking at this
phot ograph. Did you take this photograph?

MR I TUAH  Yes, | took it.

MR EINGORN: Is this a house, this
yel | ow bui | di ng?

MR | TUAH.  Behi nd the bus?

MR EI NGORN:  Yes.

MR | TUAH Yes, that's a house.

MR EINGORN. And this bus, is it you're
storing this bus?

MR I TUAH. They are gone now.

MR EINGORN: But this is the ot in

questi on?

MR ITUAH That is the lot. Just at the
cor ner.

MR EINGORN. This brick building is also
a house?

MR I TUAH  Yes, that's a house.
MR. EINGORN: And the rest of this
nei ghborhood, the rest, is it all residential? It's
al |l houses.
MR. I TUAH. No. There's no houses where

t he cars was.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

191

MR EINGORN: But the nei ghborhood in
general, like, this is a house here; there's a house
here. Are there houses on both sides?

MR I TUAH. They are hones. There's
houses.

MR EINGORN. Got it. Anything el se you
want to tell us about the property?

MR |ITUAH No, not really. But all
surrounding, they're all comercial units all around
on the |lefthand side and to the right.

MR EINGORN: So across the street?

MR I TUAH  Across the street is an auto
pl ace or sonething |ike that.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So there's across the
street, right, you got a little small street there?

MR I TUAH  Yes, snmall street.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Right. So there's three
houses or four houses there. It used to be a house
on the corner where the light is. | nmean, a gas
station but they knocked that down. So it's an

abandoned property right now.

MR |ITUAH | think that's 400 Jackson.
CHAI RMAN HANCE: | live right on
Broadway. |'mright around the corner from you.

MR | TUAH  Ckay.
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CHAI RVAN HANCE:  You have a house here.
| believe there's a vacant |ot behind it. And
there's a vacant ot in the front. But who owns the
house next door? R ght where your lot is |ocated, do
you own that house?

MR ITUAH No. | think it's enpty right
now. |t has been enpty. So if you cross the street,
it's the fourth. R ght on the righthand side is ny
auto parts shop, that big comrercial auto shop.

MR EINGORN:  Any questions for the
applicant?

M5. ALSTON: | just want to clarify what
it is he wants to use it for. | sort of mssed that
over here.

MR EINGORN: The applicant testified
that he wants to store cars there that he woul d sel
but he's not going to sell the cars fromthe | ot so
it would just be storage. And the intent is to put
down sone ki nd of surface probably gravel so the
wat er could run through it.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  And proper notice
was served on the nei ghbors or nothing.

MR EINGORN:. We haven't opened to the
public yet so we don't know about that. Right? Yes,

we did receive notice froma Certificate of Proof of
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Service. Anything down there? No.

Let's open to the public. Anybody here
toni ght that would like to be heard on this
application related to 400 Jackson Street? Hearing
and seeing none, we'll close the public portion. The
applicant is here toni ght requesting a use variance
for car storage in the R-2 Zoning District, as well
as site plan waiver and potentially off-street
parking but it's a parking lot. So |I don't know if
off-street parking is really an issue.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | don't think it's a
parking lot. |It's just an abandoned | ot.

MR EINGORN. |If you're parking cars for
storage, | guess it's a storage lot. | guess the
parking is not that nuch of a concern as to store
cars.

MR I TUAH. Correct.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  What's your
pl an? Are you planning on putting a bigger fence up
for securing your cars?

MR, | TUAH. Yes, of course. As soon as |
get a permt, yes.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: As soon as you get
a permt?

MR I TUAH  Yes.
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VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  So you're going to
have gravel; not concrete?

MR | TUAH: Yes.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Any type of
lighting you are going to put up?

MR I TUAH. O course | have to; a
hi gh- power |ight because it's dark.

MR EINGORN:  You're not going to work on
the cars there, right?

MR | TUAH: No.

MR, EINGORN: Just store then?

MR | TUAH  Just park them

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COCOPER:  And you have buses
and it | ooks like an anbul ance parked on it. This is
only going to be cars?

MR ITUAH. Only cars, yes. No buses.

M5. MASON:. This is just ny thoughts is
that, we have a |l ot of storage whether it's trash,
whet her it's -- you know, | just have a little bit of
concern of it just being |ike a storage area for
cars. Were are you selling the cars if you' re not
selling themfromthere then?

MR I TUAH.  Look, |I'ma resident of
Canden. | park inthe lot. If | get conmercial,

wll take it outside of the country sonetines.
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VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  Sonetinmes space in
t he nei ghbor hood aren't here.

M5. MERRI CKS: So you buy these cars and
you store them and then you take them ot her pl aces
like to an auction to sell themor you send them away
or somnet hi ng?

MR I TUAH Yes, | send them away.

MS. MERRICKS: So the |ongest that a car
should be there is about, what a year?

MR ITUAH | don't keep themthat | ong.
St orage of cars nonthly.

MS. MERRI CKS: One nore question, but you
won't have a storage where you charge sonebody
monthly to store cars there; they just be sitting
t here?

MR ITUAH As | said, it's for parking.

MS. NUNEZ: So these are your vehicles,
so you're purchasing these vehicles to park them
wher e?

MR ITUAH In the parking | ot.

M5. MERRI CKS: Can you speak | ouder cause
| didn't hear the Chair.

MR, EI NGORN: The di scussion is about
seeing nore of the area before a determ nation is

made because it's hard to see what the other
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nei ghbors look like. And it's hard to really to get

an idea of the character of the nei ghborhood whet her

or not cars should be stored there. So that was the

di scussion is whether or not you sudden ask M. Ituah
to cone back with nore pictures.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Since he don't own the
house next to the place that he wants to park the
cars at, no one lives there right nowif soneone
noves in.

MR ITUAH If | may add. In front on
Jackson, that's a comrercial buildings all the way
down.

M5. MASON:  Just for confirmation. Do
you own that house that's right behind the |ot, next
to it?

VR | TUAH: No, | don't own no |ot.
Nobody |ives there.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Sir, if you can
cone back with nore pictures of the nei ghborhood,
pl ease.

MR, ElI NGORN:  Yes.

VI CE- CHAIl RMAN COOPER: W need nore
pi ctures of the nei ghborhood for ne. Because |
haven't physically seen this area. And for us to

just say, okay, you can put your parking lot there,
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and you got nei ghbors that may be noving in. Once we
gi ve you approval, they're stuck with your parking
| ot.

MR | TUAH. The nei ghborhood, you're
suppose sent out notices and that's what | did.
The nei ghbor hood got noti ces.

MR EINGORN. W need you to cone back
next nmonth just to see sone nore pictures of the
nei ghborhood to get an idea. So you take pictures
down the side streets and fromthe other angles of
the lot so that the Board can see what's going on
there. And the next neeting is October 7th with nore
pi ctures. And you can submt themin advance to
Evita and she'll distribute themto everybody. Ckay?

MR | TUAH. Okay.

MR EINGORN: | appreciate your tine.
Thank you.

MR | TUAH. Thank you.

MR EINGORN. |I'mgoing to take Emmett
Tayl or, 408 Stevens Street next. |Is M. Taylor

avai | abl e?
MR. TAYLOR  Yes.
MR EINGORN: Woul d you raise your right

hand, pl ease.
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EMVETT TAYLOR, ALYCE JOHNSON, MS.

TAYLOR, having first been duly sworn/affirmed, was
exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR STEVENS. M nane is Emmett Tayl or.
My address is presently 408 Stevens Street, Canden,
New Jersey. Today here is ny consultant Alyce
Johnson.

MS. JOHNSON: Al yce Johnson, 958 S. 8th
Street, Canden, New Jersey 08103.

MR TAYLOR | have ny daughter here as a
W tness, Ms. Taylor.

MR EINGORN. So the applicant is here
toni ght requesting to convert a shed into a 1-story
single famly honme with an addition. The officer
deni ed the permt because there's two prinmary uses on
the same lot. A "d(1)" use variance is needed; a
bul k vari ances are needed for area and yard; and
of f-street parking.

Can you tell us about the property, the
bui | di ng; what you have goi ng on?

M5. JOHNSON: This is the aerial view and

| have a copy for each one of you. This is the
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aerial view of the said property. The property that
we're looking to build on, this is the existing shed
and it wll extend about fromhere to here, about 18
feet out. It will be consistent with the existing
side line, side setback. And it's pretty nmuch a
50-f oot setback fromthe front line fromthe front
footage. And I'mnot sure if | should nention it but
it should be said, that when we presented the
application, it was all Lot 3. And since then | just
found out that we did divide the |land so Variances 1
& 2 may not be, and it's your decision, in effect
because we did divide the | and.

This is M. Emett's property and this is
M. Taylor's daughter's property. This is just a
shed here and 3-story single-famly hone with a
basenent. This is the rear porch open on the side.
This will be set aside for a single-famly hone.
This is an existing shed and how it |ooks |like right
now. This is the front view where the extension
woul d be comng off of. This is the side view on
this right here on this side and this is rear view
near the fence.

This is pretty nmuch an isonetric view of
what it would |look |ike, rendering of what it would

|l ook like. This is the site plan. It's the green
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with the addition that wll be added to it. This is
the two lots. Nowit's Lot 3 and Lot 4 conbi ned.

And this is what it |ooks Iike on the front view So
it sits back about 50 feet or nore pretty nmuch off
the street, off the street |evel of the existing --

VI CE- CHAI RMAN COOPER:  |s that two |l ots
t here?

M5. JOHNSON: Yes, it's two |lots.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  And what | ots do
you own? Do you own the whol e thing?

M5. JOHNSON: He owns all four of them
These two and two is this way, and he's separated by
t he house.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: There's a house on the
left that's -- there's a tiny house in the mddle, am
| right?

MR TAYLOR  That's the shed.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: It | ooks |ike a house.
Yes. | was there today.

M5. JOHNSON: It's right here wi thout the
front. That's this right here.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And this is what?

M5. JOHNSON: That's the existing that
sits right here.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: \What are you going to
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add to?

M5. JOHNSON: We're going to add com ng
forward. And this is the rear and it's going to go
to front to Stevens Street. This is the street right
here and this will be the front of the house.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: You' re the one who got
the two dogs, right?

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So you are the one with
the two dogs, right?

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And one dog is mssing a
| eg?

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: That one greeted ne
today. So you own all four houses there?

MR TAYLOR Yes. It was actually and
fromthe beginning it was al ways three separate
| ots. 408 Stevens street was originally built on a
4500 | ot space where it had the house and all of this
is yard here to the side porch on the side. 410 and
412 used to be doubl e houses sitting here like a twin
house. They were torn down and burned down | ong ago.
And | purchased the two lots and consolidated them

all as one block and | ot which was Bl ock 178, Lot 3.
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Recently, and I'm 67 years old now and
|'"mgetting too old to have all this big house, so
|"'mturning it over to ny daughter who wants to keep
it inthe famly. And so |I'mtaking the shed and |
want to convert it into a single-famly, one-story
house where |I'd be staying at and then ny daughter
and her famly would take over the other house.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So you have a contai ner
that's there now.

MR TAYLOR: Yes, a shipping container

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And then you got the
smal | storage?

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAIl RMAN HANCE: And it's very cl ean.
And then you have the bl ack gate, the 4-foot gate
going all the way across.

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | was there today.

Very qui et nei ghbor hood there.

MR TAYLOR It is. It's the only house
wi t h peopl e occupyi ng the whol e block. Every other
house -- there's only three other houses that are all
vacant and have been vacant for quite sone tine now.
And everything else is just vacant |ots.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: Because | sat out there
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for probably 20 m nutes.

MR EINGORN. We had a coupl e people conme
inand | think they're going to building on that
street. Because you're right behind the court house
parking lot, right?

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

MR EINGORN. We had a coupl e of
applications but | think they're doing sone beautiful
housing. | think one of themwanted to one of those
| ots as a parking | ot.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  Par ki ng on the
back of State and Stevens Street.

MR TAYLOR | think that's the person
t hat owned the house at the corner of Stevens Street.
Ri ght now they have that house slated for denolition
because it's falling apart in the back and all.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So you basically want to
add to the other, this house here?

MR TAYLOR  Yes. Because right now,
it's going to be the shed right now And the front
part of the shed is where |I'mgoing to have ny
bedroom and living roomarea. The addition that |I'm
adding on to it, is so that I can add a bat hroom and
a kitchen so | could be totally self-sustai ned on ny

own.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

204

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Are you going to do it

or have soneone else do it?

MR TAYLOR I'mgoing to be doing all
t he building work nyself. | have been building for
many, nmany years. | also use to do architectura
drawing. | was an architectural draftsnman. Now ny

eyesight is giving way on ne so | had to hire soneone
el se out.

M5, JOHNSON:  Actually, he cane in with
a set of drawings all hand-drawn in |long hand so he
just automated them That's all.

MR EINGORN:. Just give us sone clarity
on the block and |l ot issue. Are these separate lots
or they have been consol i dated?

MR TAYLOR | just recently them
separated, yes. | did a m nor subdivision.

MR EI'NGORN:  You got a subdivision

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

MR EINGORN: And so the property where
the shed is, that's Lot 3?

M5. JOHNSON: That's Lot 3 -- no -- oh,
|"msorry. That would have been Lot 4 and 5. Now
it's just going to be Lot 4. Lot 3 is the one where
t he existing house is.

MR EINGORN: The issue we're having is
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t hat you noticed for Lot 3.

M5. JOHNSON: Well, it was Lot 3 when we
sent the notice out. So they subdivided it into Lot
3 and 4. | didn't realize that until a coupl e of
days ago that they actually did the subdivision.

But it's still the sanme property when we sent this
out | was thinking.

MR EINGORN:. So this is now Lot 47

MR, TAYLOR  Yes. Three and four.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Di d anyone el se go past
the house to check it out? No. This picture doesn't
do it justice. |It's huge and deep; very deep. | got
out of the truck and | wal ked over there. That's
when the two dogs cane up.

MR TAYLOR It was 1990-1991 when |
purchased that house. It was on the verge of being
all rundown just |ike the other vacant houses on that
bl ock It has taken ne, what, ten years to renovate
t hat house to what you see today. And | have done
all that on ny own also with the help of ny
daught er who works on the house. They hel ped a | ot
with the house also. And I'mjust turning it over to
her .

M5. JOHNSON: Once we finish the finished

product, it's still sitting back 55 feet.
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MR TAYLOR. From what the nei ghborhood
used to look like with all the vacant houses and all
of the problens that were in that area with peopl e
dealing drugs in the street and selling on the street
and so forth, that's one of the reasons why | put a
6-f oot wrought iron fence all round the property to
keep people running and clinbing into the yard.

MR EINGORN. W're going to open to the
public. Anybody in the public here tonight that
would i ke to be heard on the application related to
408 Stevens Street? Hearing none, we'll close the
public portion.

The applicant is here tonight seeking use
variance for two prinmary uses on the sane lot. It
seens |like this is actually going to be the only use
on the lot. The lot is now Lot 4. According to the
applicant, it has been subdivided in the interim
peri od between the nmaking of the application and the
hearing tonight. So the request is for two prinmary
uses on the sane |ot, a use variance and then bul k
variance for the | ot area and yard and then
off-street parking. It looks like there's a driveway
right?

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

MR EINGORN:. So there's plenty of
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par ki ng?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

MR TAYLOR  Yes.

MR EINGORN:. So it |ooks like there's
of f-street parking to support the use.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think it's a great
idea. There's plenty of parking on the street. Al so
you got a driveway. |It's very clean. Not just your
street but the street down al so, the block down is
also clean. So | think it's a great idea. You're
living there; your daughter is going to be living
there. So as along as she keeps up with you, | think
it's a great idea.

MR EINGORN. One thing we should as a
condition and a notion, would be to provide a copy of
t he deed so that we can anmend accordingly. | forget

where we are.

MR TAYLOR: A copy of the deed?

MR, EI NGORN: The deeds.

MR TAYLOR. Ch, | have the originals
her e.

MR EINGORN. | don't want your
ori gi nal s.

MR TAYLOR. We can nake copies and a CD.

MR EINGORN: So we nake that as a
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conditi on of approval.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | nake a notion that we
pass with a condition of seeing a copy of the new
deed.

MR EINGORN: It's probably two deeds.

MR, TAYLOR  Two of them

CHAI RVAN HANCE: A copy of both deeds.

MR, EINGORN: Do we have a second?

MS5. NUNEZ: Second.

MR EINGORN: I'll take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.

CHAl RMAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR, ElI NGORN:. Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Merri cks.
MERRI CKS:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
NUNEZ:  Yes.

EI NGORN: M. Still.
STILL: Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2523353030 3

El NGORN: Seven in favor and none
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opposed, the notion carries. Thank you very nuch.

MR TAYLOR  Thank you.

MR EINGORN: The next natter is Yordys
Peralta, 1575 Louis Street.

MR 1ZZO  Charles |zzo, attorney for
t he applicant, Yordys Peralta who is next to ne and
Roman Peral t a.

MR EINGORN. Wuld you |like your
W t nesses sworn?

MR 1ZZ0  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Pl ease rai se our right
hands.

YORDYS PERALTA; ROVAN PERALTA, havi ng
first been duly sworn/affirnmed, was exam ned and
testified as follows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MR YORDYS PERALTA: M nane is Yordys
Peralta. | live at 4035 Garden Avenue, Pennsauken,
New Jer sey 08109.

MR ROVAN PERALTA: M nane i s Ronman
Peralta. | live 120 Greenleigh Court, Merchantville,
New Jersey 08110.
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MR 1ZZO. M. Roman Peralta, your son
owns the property on the list; is that right?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes.

MR 1ZZO  You had sone architect plans
made up to rehabilitate the house he has there?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes.

MR 1ZZO  Those are the plans that the
Board has?

MR, ROVAN PERALTA:. Yes.

MR 1ZZ0. The property is a regular
Canden rowhouse and it's built on the property |ines
which is no | onger perm ssible under the zoning code
so you're here to get the bul k variances for the
set backs; do you understand that?

MR, ROVAN PERALTA:. Yes.

MR 1ZZO. Now, basically what do the
pl ans provide for?

MR, ROVAN PERALTA: Yes. W try to see
if we can get the zoning to nmake it a two
residential, two apartnents.

MR 1ZZO |Is that upper and | ower |evel?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes.

MR 1ZZO. Now, do you know when the
property was | ast occupied as a resi dence by anybody?

Do you know t hat ?
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MR ROVAN PERALTA: Yes. It was a
busi ness before back in the day, the first floor.

MR 1ZZO  Since you' ve had it, has
anyone occupied this property?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: No.

MR 1ZZO  And your architect provides
for converting the business area into an apartnent?

MR, ROVAN PERALTA. Yes.

MR 1ZZ0.  And your architect plans to
| ocate a separate entrance residence on the second
l evel ?

MR, ROVAN PERALTA:. Yes.

MR 1ZZO. And there happens to be a
garage | ot behind your house on Louis Street. Do you
own t hat garage?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA. Yes.

MR 1Z2ZO0. And M. Yordys, is there
anyt hing you want to tell the Board about your
property on Louis Street besides what your dad
al ready?

MR, YORDYS PERALTA: No.

MR 1ZZO So that's our testinony.

MR EINGORN: How many cars can you park
in the garage?

MR ROVAN PERALTA: One.
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MR EINGORN:. Is there a driveway?

MR, ROVAN PERALA: No.

MR 1ZZO So it's perpendicular to the
property so you enter from Chase Street instead of
Louis Street.

MR EINGORN. Ckay. | nean this house is
subject to a hardship. It's surrounded on all sides
by sidewal k, right?

MR, ROVAN PERALTA:. Yes.

MR EINGORN: So you can't increase the
size of the |lot because it's surrounded, yes?

MR YORDYS PERALTA. Yes.

MR EINGORN. And off-street parking, you
can provi de one space. Wat street is this here?

MR ROVAN PERALTA: Chase.

MR EINGORN: Are you allowed to park on
Chase?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes. Both sides.

MR EINGORN:  And you can park on Louis
Street as wel|?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes, both sides.

MR, EINGORN: So there's |lots of street
par ki ng avai | abl e?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes.

MR EINGORN:.  And you have one car
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of f-street?

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions? This
is a house surrounded by a sidewal k and shares a
party wall. No questions fromthe Board? So anybody
in the public here tonight that |ike to be heard on
the application related to 1575 Louis Street?
Hearing none, we'll close the public portion.

The applicant is here tonight requesting
various bulk variances related to the preexisting
non-conform ng conditions of the | ot and the
parking. The duplex is a permtted use in this zone.
The Board should do a quick discussion and nake a
not i on.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER: | think it's good
because it's tinme that we have with these old houses
fixed. The famlies have gone and taken flight and.
| think it's a positive.

M5. MASON:. There's plenty of parking as
well. | think that it's also a good project as
wel | .

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Any tinme you have a hone
and you rebuild it for famlies, it's a plus. It's
better to look at it done than look at it like this.

And al so, it nakes that nei ghborhood a | ot nore safer
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t han sonmeone going in there and could cause a fire in
Canden. It's getting cold outside at night now so

t hey have to get warm sonmehow. | think it's a great

i dea especially for the nei ghborhood.

M5. MASON:. And it's an area that we
don't typically see a lot of, you know, we had
rotation and new busi nesses comng. So the fact that
you're comng into an area that is definitely needed
for housing, | think that's a good idea as well.
| make a notion to approve.

MR EINGORN: We have a notion.

M5. ALSTON: | second.

MR EINGORN: We have a second.
"Il take a roll-call vote. Chairman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR, ElI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Merricks.
M5. MERRI CKS: Yes.

MR EINGORN: M. Al ston.
M5. ALSTON: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
M5. NUNEZ: Yes.

MR EINGORN: M. Still.
MR STILL: Yes.
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MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.

MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Seven in favor and none
opposed, the notion passes. Thanks guys.

MR 1ZZO  Thank you.

MR. ROVAN PERALTA: Thank you.

MR, EINGORN: The next matter is Arelis
Marero, 661 Grant Street.

MR 1ZZO This Arelis Marero conmng to
t he podi um

MR EINGORN: Wuld you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

ARELI S MARERO, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

M5. MARERO Arelis Marero. 2357 48th
Street Pennsauken, New Jersey. This is ny daughter.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: |If she's going to
speak --

MR EINGORN:. Are you going to transl ate?

MSS MARERO I'Il try ny best.
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MR, EINGORN:  You swear/affirmthat the
translation that you'll provide tonight will be true
and accurate to the best of your ability?

M SS MARERO  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane.

MR 1ZZO. Ms. Arelis Marero, do you own
the property over at 661 G ant Street in North
Canden?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO.  Yes.

MR 1ZZO Howis that property laid out
now at this present day? Wat was it |ast used for?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO. For a restaurant.

MR 1ZZ0 Italian?

MS. ARELIS MARERO. No. Domi ni can.
Spani sh food.

MR 1ZZ0 It was a Spani sh-food
rest aurant ?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO. Yes.

MR 1ZZO  So that building you own was a
Spani sh restaurant before you had it or after?

MR EINGORN. M. lzzo, just can you just
give us a quick summary and then we'll ask her if
it's true and accurate? Just tell us what she wants
and then we'll ask her if it's true and accurate what

you said. Just give us a sunmary.
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MR 1ZZ0O Ckay. |Is it true that you
cone here to this Board because you want to reopen
the restaurant on Grant Street?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO Yes, | want to open

MR 1ZZO.  And has anyone lived at that
property since you've owned it? Do you have tenants
in the property?

MS. ARELI S MARERO. Yes, on the second
floor.
| zZZG  What about the first floor?
ARELI'S MARERO. It's enpty now.
1Z2Zz0  1t's enpty?

ARELI S MARERO  Yes.

25 30 3

1ZZO But it's set up to be a
restaurant; is that correct?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO.  Yes.

MR 1ZZO0  For many years before you
owned it, it was operating as a restaurant?

MS. ARELI S MARERO  Yes.

MR 1ZZO Is it true that the restaurant
closed for alittle while?

MS. ARELI S MARERO  Yes.

MR 1ZZO  You're here before this Board

because you want to reopen the restaurant?
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MS. ARELIS MARERO. Yes. | want to open

MR 1ZZO  Anything else that you want to
tell the Board that | didn't ask you?
MS. ARELIS MARERO. No. | want to open

MR EINGORN:  Anybody in the public
toni ght that would like to be heard on the
application of 661 Gant Street? Seeing and hearing
no one, we'll close the public portion.

The applicant is here tonight seeking a
Certificate of Non-Conformng Use related to a
previously operated restaurant at 661 G ant Street.
The testinony is that it was a restaurant for a | ong
time and hasn't been used in the interimand they
woul d |i ke to reopen the restaurant.

The Board shoul d nake a determ nation as
to the Cert of Non-Conform ng Use based upon the
testi nony you heard.

CHAIl RMAN HANCE: | was in your
nei ghborhood today. | talked to your nei ghbor that
owns the store on the corner and the gentleman that's
fixing his restaurant up. They are wel coni ng you.
They want you to open up. So that's a plus. | did

see the mnistry on the lefthand side that's closed.
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MS. ARELI S MARERO

Yes.

M5. MASON: |I'mfamliar with that whole
area. |1've been there al so.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think it's a positive
and great idea. You said Spanish food?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO.  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Latin?

MS. ARELI'S MARERO  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: It's caddy-cornered
right there, red and yellow. | was there.

M5. ARELIS MARERO Yes. You see it
before. The nei ghborhood wants her to reopen.

M5. MASON: | nean, | grew up in that
area as well and it used to be a store. So even
wal king, | went to the Coopers Point School. So

wal king in that area, we would stop at that store.

Respon used to be right up right

t here but

a foodi e so... I

Respon used to be right up there too.

think it's across

-- it's no | onger
[''m

fromthe church

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | nmake a notion that we
accept .

M5. MASON: |'Ill second.

MR EINGORN: ['Ill take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
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MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.
VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Merri cks.

M5. MERRI CKS: Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Al ston.
M5. ALSTON: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
MS. NUNEZ: Yes.

MR EINGORN:. M. Still.
MR STILL: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR

El NGORN:  Seven in favor, the
appl i cati on passes.

MR 1ZZ0  Thank you.

MS. ARELI S MAREOC. Thank you.

MR, EINGORN: The next matter is Dev.
Ghanshyam LLC, 14 S. 35th Street. Good evening.

MR WLSON. Good evening. Louis WIson
attorney for the Dev. Ghanshyam

MR EINGORN. Wuld you like to swear
your w tness?

MR WLSON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right

hand, pl ease.
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SAM PATEL, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR PATEL: Sam Patel. M address is 998
West Landi s Avenue, Vi nel and, New Jersey 08360.

MR WLSON. M. Patel, are you a nenber
of the LLC that owns the property at 14 S. 35th

Street?

MR PATEL: Yes, sir.

MR WLSON: And this is Block 1060, Lot
47?

MR PATEL: Yes.

MR WLSON:. How |l ong have you owned
t hat ?

PATEL: About five years
WLSON: About five years.
PATEL: Yes.

22 3%

WLSON:. M. Patel, are you also a
menber of the LLC that owns the |iquor store at 3508
Federal Street?

MR PATEL: Yes, |'mthe owner.
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MR WLSON:. How |l ong has that been open?

MR, PATEL: N ne nonths.

MR WLSON: |If the Board wll allow ne
to give you a brief oversight. W have sonmewhat
uni que situation. The property that we're here for,
14 S. 35th Street is a 90-foot |ong, 26-foot w de
ci nder bl ock building with ceilings of 15 feet.
Clearly that says to ne warehousi ng or sonething of
t hat nature.

M. Patel is not interested in doing
war ehousi ng for the public's use. He is asking the
Board to allow us to have a residential area in that
sanme building. But he is also asking for us to be
allowed to store inventory fromthe |liquor store on
35th Street. And that is, in essence, the crux of
t he whol e application. W have to have variances
because the use for having two different uses in one
buil ding that are prohibited -- the use is prohibited
generally and so forth.

We want to nake clear that the 14th S
35th Street building will have no comrercial use
outside of his own personal use. The residential
section is only for his famly or enployees of the
liquor store. So we are attenpting to have a

situation that the property which has doubtful use
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ot her than a storage area and be used for sonething
t hat woul d support the |iquor store on Federal
Street. So that, in essence, the crux of what we're
trying to do. W're willing to take any questions

t hat you have.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Yes. Wen was the | ast
time that property was used?

MR WLSON: Approximtely a year ago it
was a snmall roofing gentleman. | think his nane was
Mtchell.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So that property is
going to need sone help. | was there today. It's in
distress. You got a |lot of weeds grow ng there.
That's the brick building that's on that street, the
side street where you have to go through a double
gates to get in

MR WLSON:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | was there today. You
got peopl e parking on the sidewal k so you can't even
get into the building.

MR, WLSON: That's been an issue. Those
are residents of the community.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: You got sone wor k ahead
of you. You got the pastor house there. A school

right down the street. |It's on the | efthand side.
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It's a brick building that if you drive past it, it's
a one-way.

MR WLSON: Right.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So you would mss it.
| had to go back around it.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  It's on the
ri ght hand side. John Wight Roofing used to be
t here.

CHAIl RMAN HANCE: Right. From Philly.

MR WLSON:. Yes, M. Wight.

MR PATEL: He's ny tenant. The Cty
cone in. They don't clean anything there.

MR WLSON: There was a situation that
M. Wight allowed the exterior to beconme overgrown
and full of junk. The Gty cited the owner rather
than the tenant. And so the owner gave the tenant
anple time to clean up everything and so forth. But
as it turns out, M. Wight cane down wth cancer and
could not function fully. And so we thought that
after several nonths of waiting and trying to help
hi mand get the tine, it was not going to change.
And so we went into court.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So he's going to give it
facelift? He's going to fix all that?

MR WLSON. Well, the yard, yes. |
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t hought because --

MR PATEL: | fix everything, inside and
out si de.

MR WLSON: | thought the yard was
definitely cl eaned up.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: Can you access

your liquor store fromthe rear to this building

here?
MR, PATEL: Yes.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: | got the pattern.
MR WLSON:. |It's sort of like if you

|l ook at this -- if you go by there as we indicated

and you look, it looks like in shape. There's a
courtyard and it's bl ocked off on three sides. One
side is the building you' re tal ki ng about.

MR. El NGORN: I|s there a door between

t hen?

MR, PATEL: Yes.

MR, WLSON: A door between?

MR EINGORN:. The |iquor store --

MR PATEL: It has a door.

MR WLSON: It has a back door. It's
across the courtyard. It's on Federal Street and

it's backed to the courtyard, but then there's a

courtyard here that's maybe 25 feet deep and then the
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buil ding. And the building that you saw on the
drawi ngs, has an overhead door. And obviously at
sone point --

CHAl RMAN HANCE: There's a regul ar door
back there.

MR WLSON: And it has a couple of entry
doors. This was built in 1956 is what | understand.
So it was obviously built for sonme commerci al
storage use or whatever. But it hasn't been used as
that in years. It is in a residential area as you
know. But we think that giving us the opportunity to
have a residential section along wth the storage
section, both of which would be under the conplete
control of the owner. |It's not open to the public.

There would be no public transit in and
out other than what we hope is the vendors for the
liquor store will use the back section, unload into
14 S. 35th Street through the door, main door. And
t hen whenever they need it at the liquor store, it
woul d be a sinple natter of carrying it across the
courtyard into the back of the liquor store. Trying
to hel p an existing business.

MR, EINGORN: What kind of door woul d
you put up on the storage area; like a roll-up

door ?




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

227

MR, PATEL: No.

MR WLSON: There is a roll-up door.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  Yes, | see a
roll-up door here.

MR WLSON:. There's a roll-up door and
there's a separate door to the right and one to the
left.

MR EINGORN. | guess ny question is, the
storage area is essentially just a garage, right? M
point is, if you have this separate area, it could be
| ater a garage, of course, a person in the building?
If you were to stop using this property, right, and
you were to sell it to John Doe, right, and you
wanted to nove in, would the door be big enough to

park a car in a storage area?

MR PATEL: Yes.

MR WLSON:. Yes. It's a very |large
door.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER:  It's an overhead
door.

MR, WLSON: Like a warehouse door. |
think it was a commercial building at sone point.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And the office was down
here further down or sonething?

MR WLSON: Yes. There was a little
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office at the 35th Street section. And the rest of
it is open space. It had M. Wight there.
CHAl RMAN HANCE: Got the doubl e gate

ri ght there.

VI CE- CHAIl RVAN COOPER:  Yes, |'ve been in
t here.

MR WLSON:. In essence, we're | ooking at
trying to -- there's sone benefit to issuing these
variances. |If not, we would be using Federal Street

basically for vendors to park and unl oad their goods
to the liquor store.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Ri ght next to Carsons.

MR WLSON: Wiich I think he has the
par ki ng spaces. But you can't tell how nuch is going
to happen. Sonetines there are three to four vendors
that they would use. And if you wind up with two of
them com ng at the sane tine, Federal Street wll be
bl ocked. So we're thinking, use the back but allow
us to use the building for storage which woul d nake
everyt hi ng so nuch qui cker.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Ri ght.

MR WLSON: Because the liquor store
really doesn't have nuch space for storage for
anything. And they have no basenment so there's

no place to anything except on the floor of the store
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and that's probably not the best --

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | watched that pl ace get
built.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Yeah, |'ve been in
t here.

MR WLSON:. | think he did a pretty good
job but it is alittle snall and there's no storage
space. Once you go in with the racks of produce --

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COCPER: Al his plexiglass
he got up.

MR EINGORN:  Anybody here toni ght that
woul d be heard on the application of 14 S. 35th
Street? Seeing none and hearing none, we'll close
t he public portion.

The applicant is here tonight for use
variances. Use is not permtted; two principal uses
on the sane lot; storage is prohibited; off-street
parking is needed. Applicant is requesting a
one- bedroomunit and a rear storage area. The Board
shoul d do a discussion of the Positive and Negative
Criteria and nmake a noti on.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think it's a great
idea. That's a very busy area. You got a school;
you got a hardware store; you got a bakery; you got a

travel agency; you got a school; barber shop;
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Dom ni can food store across the street; 7-11 over
here. | think it's an excellent idea to pull al

t hose beer trucks off the nain Federal Street so they
can unload in the back. And he said that the
apartnment woul d be for people who |ive there -- |
nmean, people that work there or his famly.

MR WLSON: Yes. And that woul d be,
they would work there. They all work at the |iquor
store.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: W th the condition that
you clean all that up; all the weeds; all that
nonsense has been cleaned. And | would paint that
curb cause you got a cut-curb right there. Paint it
yell ow and that way you can nake a phone call.
Because, you know, they were parked on the curb.

MR EINGORN: | don't think you can tel
themto paint the public right-of-way.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: No. It's a cut; it's a
curb cut.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COOPER:  Yes, it's a curb
cut.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: But you got two cars
parked on the sidewal k so he's not getting in or
getting out.

MR EINGORN:  Unless you want to check
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with the City before you start painting the sidewal k.
That's all.

MR WLSON:. We'll call the Departnent of
Public Wrks to do it for us. That's not a problem
Maybe they can put up a sign that says, no parking.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Right. That's a one-way
street. There's very little parking. | think it's a
good idea. Not only for your but for the public
al so.

MR WLSON:  Yes.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER: | nmake a notion to
pass.

MR, EINGORN: Do we have a second?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Second.

MR EINGORN: I1'Ill take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR ElI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Merri cks.
MERRI CKS:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Nunez.

® 2 5 3 D D

NUNEZ: Yes.
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noti on passes.
MR W LSON:
MR. PATEL.:
MR, El NGORN:

Phi | adel phi a 76ERS, LLC.

MR FLYNN

M. Chairnan,

MR EINGORN. M. Still.

MR STILL: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.

MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Having seven in favor, the

Congr at ul ati ons.
Thank you.
Thank you.

The next matter iIs

we're fine with

M. Mrales would like to go first before us.

MR El NGORN:
MR MORALES:
MR El NGORN:

hand, pl ease.

Ckay.
Thank you.

Wul d you raise your right

JOSE C. ORTIZ MORALES, having first been

duly sworn/affirnmed, was exam ned and testified as

foll ows:
MR.  El NGORN:
address for the record.
MR, MORALES:
MR.  El NGORN:

Pl ease state your nane and

Jose C. Otiz Moral es.

You want to put on a
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second-fl oor addition and you want a six-foot fence?

MR MORALES. M address is 2201 Bank
Street, Canden, New Jersey 08105.

MR EINGORN: Are you the owner of 1428
Carl MIler Blvd.?

MR, MORALES: Yes.

MR EINGORN: And you intend to |ive
t here?

MR MORALES: Yes. Actually | bought
that house |like two years ago and |'ve been saving to
do all this type of work. This used to be ny first
house.

MR EI NGORN:  Congrat ul ati ons.

MR MORALES: [I'mjust trying to convince
you guys about the setback. That's all and the
fence.

MR, EINGORN: So the m ni num of each side
yard is ten feet but you have three feet three
inches? 1s that what is going on here?

MR MORALES:. But the house is existing.
So that's how | bought it. |If you see the pictures,
that's how | bought it and the red |ine, you can see
where the setback is not neeting exactly there,
right.

MR EINGORN:. This photo here?
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MR, MORALES: Yes.

MR, EINGORN: And the reason that it
doesn't neet the setback is because --

MR. MORALES: Because it --

MR EINGORN. -- it's up against the
street?

MR MORALES: Yes.

MR, EINGORN: Too close to the street.
And this is a preexisting non-conform ng condition?

MR MORALES: Yes.

MR, EINGORN: Does the Board see what
he's referencing in this photograph here, the top
| eft hand corner?

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Any questions about the
t hree-foot setback? There doesn't |ook like there's
any questions about the three-foot setback. Is
anybody here tonight that would like to heard on the
matter related to 1428 Carl MIler Blvd.? Hearing
none and seeing none, we'll close the public portion.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | was there today. |
don't know how they put a two-way street on the
| eft hand side where the apartnent buil dings are.

MR, MORALES: Yeabh.
CHAl RMAN HANCE: | don't how they did
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that. | really don't.

MR, MORALES: Me neither.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: But you guys have nice
| and around the house. Your only issue is on the
| ef t hand si de.

MR MORALES: Yes. |It's too near to one
of the streets.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: You definitely need that
6-f oot Fence.

MR MORALES: Yes. |I'mplanning to do
6-feet vinyl fencing all the way around just |ike ny
nei ghbor in the back has the sane thing.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Ri ght.

MR MORALES: So | can say that | want to
chop the head off of the house and put the second
floor up.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: You got a lot of roomto
do that.

MR, MORALES: | will make nice roons for
my little ones.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: It | ooks like they broke
in there a few tines?

MR MORALES:. Well, that was ne actually.
| forgot the key a couple of tinmes and you know. ..

CHAl RMAN HANCE: You' re tal king about the
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si de door?
MR. MORALES: Yeah.
VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  You just kicked it

in?
MR, MORALES: Yeah.
CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think it's a good
i dea. The house is very lonely. It needs sone |ove.

MR, MORALES: Yeah.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And t he nei ghbor hood
needs sone love. But | would definitely recomend a
6-foot fence in that area.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

MR MORALES: | nean, the area is great.
There's a playground in the back. They need sone
type of school in there.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: |'mvery famliar with
that area also. | grew up around that area.

MR MORALES: For ne it's good and |
think for the area. It will be better if | could do
t he wor k.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Get yourself a coupl e of
dogs?

MR MORALES:. Actually I do. |'m]looking
forward to it.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Anybody el se?
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MR EINGORN: Are you going to do a
6-foot fence across the front too?

MR MORALES: All the way around, yes.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN COCPER: At that corner,
what's that intersection? You got an intersection.

MR MORALES. | nean, there's existing
right in the front of it, it's like four feet but |
want to change that to a 6 feet all the way.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  No. That may
be --

MR, MORALES: |'m concerned because |
have little ones and | do want not anybody |i ke even
trying to reach them Plus | have dogs and | want
themto not available to junp; nothing like that.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: I n the front of
your property because you have a cross street, right,
now you're tal king about a 6-foot fence vinyl?

MR MORALES: Vinyl.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: You can't have vinyl .

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  They can't see
t hrough it.

MR EINGORN: Yes, that's the problem

VI CE- CHAl RVAN COOPER:  They can't see
through it so you could do a chain-Iink.

MR EINGORN: The problemyou have is,
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you come around the corner --

MR. MORALES: So where do | have to
change that; like right in front of the house or al
t he way around the house?

MR EINGORN:. On this corner here, right,
people are going to cone around the corner and

they're not going to be able to see through the

fence.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: When t hey nake t hat
right turn.

MR, MORALES: Oh, | see.

MR EINGORN. You're creating a dangerous
condition. They call it a sight triangle.

MR MORALES: Can | do like if -- let's
say if | start six feet fromhere going down and just
the rest of it, four feet the whole thing. | nean,
it's shorter now, right?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  You can do behind the
your house, righthand side, but the front where
they're making a right, you can't do that corner
because they can't see com ng either way.

MR. MORALES: How far fromthe corner to,
let's say, to the front of the house?

CHAl RMAN HANCE: You know where that big

tree was cut down at right here?
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MR, MORALES: Yeah.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: About right there.

MR MORALES: Oh, you saw it.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | wal ked i n your back
yard. | was there. | wal ked around the whol e house.

MR EINGORN. So you agree to do four
foot across the front so that people can see?

MR MORALES: Yes.

MR EINGORN:. And then | guess four feet

to a gradual six feet? How far do you think that

tree was?

CHAl RMAN HANCE: That tree, fromhis
property line, I would say it's probably about --

MR EINGORN: Ten feet?

CHAl RMAN HANCE: At | east ten feet.

MR MORALES: So ten feet away fromthe
cor ner?

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: So ten feet fromthe corner
of Hal |l owel | ?

CHAI RVAN HANCE: \Where that tree is,
let's stick to the tree back.

MR MORALES:. Ckay.

MR EINGORN: | need sonething for the

r esol uti on. For the resolution | need like a
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nunber .

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So ten feet.

MR EINGORN: Ten feet --

MR. MORALES: From the corner.

MR EINGORN. -- at four foot high on
Hal | owel I Lane and then four foot across Carl Mller?

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Right. You got the
i mage of that?

MR MORALES: Yeah, yeah.

VI CE- CHAl RMVAN COOPER:  Unl ess you cover
t hat .

MR EINGORN. And then the rest you can
do six feet. Al right?

MR MORALES: Ckay.

MR EINGORN: A notion with the condition
on the fence.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | nake a notion wth the
condition on the fence and | will be by to check.

VI CE- CHAI RMAN HANCE: And | second it.

MR EINGORN: ['ll take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Merricks.
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MERRI CKS:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
NUNEZ:  Yes.

EI NGORN: M. Still.
STILL: Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2533353930

El NGORN:  Seven in favor and none
opposed, congratul ati ons.

MR, MORALES: Thank you.

MR, EINGORN: The next matter is
Phi | adel phi a 76ERS, LP.

MR FLOYD: Good evening, M. Chair and
Menbers of the Board. For the record, ny nanme is
M chael Floyd. |I'man attorney with Archer & G einer
appeari ng on behalf of the applicant, Philadel phia
76ERS, LP which has submitted an application for
"d" use variance approval and bul k vari ance approval
for property |ocated along Martin Luther King Bl vd.
and Legends Lane and identified as Bl ock 139. 01,
Lot 1 on the Cty's official tax maps.

The applicant is requesting nodifications

to the existing signs at its headquarters and
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practice facility in the Gty of Canden. 1In
particular, they' re seeking "d(1)" use variance
approval or possible "d(2)" variance approval for an
expansi on of an non-conform ng use with respect to
the existing roof sign. Roof signs are prohibited
pursuant to Section 870-253 of the Gty of Canden's
Zoni ng Code.

And they are proposing to nodify the
exi sting roof sign by addi ng approxi mately
2,048 square feet of additional area. The applicant
is also seeking to nodify an existing wall sign.
These sign nodifications are all related to Penn
Medi ci ne who has partnered with the Phil adel phi a
75ERS i n connection with their use and enjoynent of
the property in Canden.

Wth nme this evening we do have three
W tnesses. Qur first wtness will be Lara Price,
chi ef operating officer of the applicant,
Phi | adel phia 76ERS, LP. W al so have Lance Landgr af,
Jr., a licensed professional planner in the State of
New Jersey with his a A I.C P. designation. And
Lance will be putting the proofs on the record, the
Positive and Negative Criteria in connection with the
request ed use vari ance approval and al so the

request ed bul k variance approval for the new signage.
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And | ast but not |east, and if necessary,
we have Ronal d Brody, the owner of Invision Sign that
has prepared these sign exhibits for this evening.
And if there are any questions regarding the proposed
signage in ternms of the color, utility connections,
how it'll be connected to the building, etc., Ronis
here to provide that testinony. But initially, we
wll be providing testinony fromlLara Price as a fact
W tness and then Lance Landgraf, Jr. as our
prof essi onal planner and expert w tness this evening.

|'ve passed out to all the Board nenbers,
a list of exhibits in connection with this
application. | don't think we're going to have to go
t hrough every one of these exhibits. But Exhibit A1
is an aerial photograph os the property and the
exi sting signage. And it's inportant to note that
this existing signage faces the Del aware Ri ver and
the Gty of Philadel phia, and that's where the
proposed nodi fications are going to occur. W're not
addi ng any new signs to any ot her facades of the
bui |l di ng or the roofs.

Exhi bit A-2A through A-2C are just the
phot ogr aphs of the property in question taken at
different angles as this Board |likes to see those

phot ographs. Exhibit A-3A through A-3F is a package
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of the proposed roof-side nodifications. Likew se,
Exhi bits A-4A through A-4G is the sign package with
t he proposed nodifications for the wall-nounted
si gns.

And | ast but not |east, Exhibits A-5A
t hrough A-5G are phot ographs and exanpl es of other
signage in the Gty of Canden that's very simlar to
t he proposed signage that we're seeking this evening,
especially with respect to the signage facing the
Del aware River and the Cty of Philadel phia in
connection with the Adventure Aquarium and Anerican
Wat er Headquarters Building, The Hilton Gardens
Hotel , Hol tec, Cooper Hospital signage and the MD
Ander son Cancer Center

And you'll hear testinony from Lance
Landgraf that due to the size of the 76ERS two
bui | di ngs and the mass of those buildings, the
signage that's being proposed in terns of size and
the overall area, is appropriate not only for this
building but it's also consistent with the character
of the nei ghborhood. But if there's no further
questions, I'd like to bring up Lara Price as our
first wtness.

Lara, if you can state your full nanme and

your position with the 76ERS on the record.
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MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

LARA PRI CE, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

M5. PRICE: Lara Price, chief operating
of ficer Phil adel phia 76ERS.

MR FLOYD: Lara, you just heard ne give
an overview of the Sixers and the proposed signage.
To the best of your know edge, is everything that |
just stated, accurate, true?

MS. PRICE: Yes.

MR FLOYD: Can you explain to the Board
your history with the 76ERS and in particular, your
hi story with the properties in Canden?

M5. PRICE: Absolutely. [|'ve been with
t he Phil adel phia 76ERS for 29 seasons. | was very
involved in bringing the facility and buil di ng our
offices and the practice facility to Canden. And
| worked very, very closely with the Gty of Canden

itself and a |l ot of the organi zati ons. W have a
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foundati on that supports a |ot of the youth around
Phi | adel phia, the Village Initiative. W' ve
renovated courts. W just did a park cleanup as
well. So Canden is our honme and we're happy to be
here and our practice facility and our offices are a
big part of that.

MR FLOYD: Thank you, Lara. Can you
just explain the new signage wth Penn Mdicine and
your relationship how Penn operates at the facility?

MS. PRICE: Absolutely. So Penn Medicine
is the official nedical provider for the Phil adel phia
76ERS. Qur players are there in the facility every
day. And providing needs, the doctors will cone in
and out as they need and physical therapists. They
are our primary partners. So having that presence is
really inportant to us. | think that shows the
staying power that: You want to be in Canden, we're
bringing our partners to Canden and they're proud to
be there as well as we are.

MR FLOYD: And Penn Medicine is aware
that this sign that is being proposed by the Sixers
for variance application?

M5. PRICE: Yes, they are.

MR FLOYD: Thank you, Lara. Are there

any questions for Lara at this tine?
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VI CE- CHAI RVAN COOPER: None.

M5. PRICE: Thank you for your tine.

MR EINGORN:  Thank you.

MR FLOYD: As we nentioned, we do have
Ron Brody here with Invision Sign to tal k about the
exi sting signage. |If there's no questions about
what's laid out in our exhibits, I'mgoing to nove on
to Lance Landgraf, our professional planner.
| would note that the sign packages both the
roof - mounted sign and the wall -nmounted sign, are
identical to the packages that were initially
submtted to the Board Secretary in connection with
this application.

The only thing that has been updated, the
actual neasurenents of the signage, that was
reflected in our notice that was published. | would
just nmake sure, Kyle, that these drawi ngs woul d be
attached to what's referenced in the Resol uti on of
Approval so there's no confusion when we go to pull a
zoning permt.

MR EINGORN:. No problem Do you want to
enter these Exhibits A-1 through to --

MR FLOYD: Yes. | would respectfully
request that Exhibit A-1 inclusive through A-5G be

entered into the record. And, again, we have all our
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prof essionals here, as well as Lara who can answer
any questions about themthat conme up during the
course of the hearing.

MR, EI NGORN:  Ckay?

MR, FLOYD: |If there are no other
gquestions, | can call our planner, Lance Landgraf.

MR EINGORN: Wuld you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

LANCE B. LANDGRAF, P.P., AICP, having
first been duly sworn/affirnmed, was exam ned and
testified as foll ows:

MR. EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address qui ckly.

VR. LANDGRAF: Lance B. Landgraf, Jr.,

9 S. Harvard Avenue, Ventnor City, New Jersey,
LB Landgarf Associ ates.

MR EINGORN:  Thank you.

MR FLOYD: Lance first, can you put your
qualifications on the record, your experience
educati on and credenti al s?

MR, LANDGARF: Sure. |'ve been |icensed
since 1991 as a planner in the State of New Jersey.

l"'malso A I.C.P. certified which is a Nati onal
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Certification since 1995. | currently represent the
City of Brigantine as their planner for the |ast 27
years |'ve been there. | currently sit as the

pl anning director for the CRDA Altantic Gty, The
Casi no I nvestment Devel opnent Authority. |'ve been
before this Board at | east once in the | ast several
mont hs. Years back, we used to neet in a different
building I think back in the 90's | was there quite a
bit with the Cooper Hospital site. |'ve been doing
pl anning and |l and use in the State of New Jersey.

MR FLOYD: | would ask that Lance be
recogni zed as an expert in the field of planning in
New Jer sey.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR LANDGRAF:. Thank you.

MR FLOYD: Lance, you' ve seen the
exhibits that were presented this evening, correct?

MR, LANDGRAF: Yes.

MR FLOYD: And you know the scope of the
proposed sign nodifications to the existing
roof - nount ed sign and wal | - nounted sign, correct?

MR, LANDGRAF: Correct.

MR FLOYD: And you know that we're
asking for both a use variance approval and also a

bul k vari ance approval, correct?
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MR. LANDGRAF: That's correct.

MR FLOYD: Can you wal k us through those
standards, what the required proofs are then your
testinony on the record?

MR LANDGRAF: Sure. During M. Floyd's
openi ng, he tal ked about a "d(1)" and "d(2)"
variance. They're very simlar. The "d(2) is really
t he expansion of an existing condition. That's
really what we're doing here. The signage on the
roof is existing. W're cutting off the ERS and
putting in Penn Medicine. So we're technically
expandi ng that by several thousand square feet.

That sounds like a lot. But if you guys know the
building, it's a very large building so this signis
pertinent and not oversized for this structure.

Plus, it faces the Del aware River |ike nost of the
other large signs in that area.

So what we have to go through is the
Positive and Negative Criteria for both the "d(1)"
and the bul k variances and you'll hear ne get into
those as well. So the Positive side of this, we have
to | ook at the purposes under the Minicipal Land Use
Law. So the first one I think we qualify for would
be Purpose "A" which is enhance -- the Sixers

training facility will pronote the partnership of
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Penn Medi cine and the nedical staff on-site. You
heard about that. To pronote the public health,
saf ety and norals and general welfare pursuant to
40: 55D-2(a) which is, provides that general health
and safety and wel fare.

The second one woul d be esthetic
i nprovenent. We think this is an enhancenent of the
property. WIIliam Penn Medicine is known as a great
opportunity but also it creates a nice anbi ance --
not anbi ance really -- an esthetic inprovenent to the
signage there. It adds to the facade of the
buil di ng. New signs and updated | ogos, they inprove
t he visual appeal of the buil ding.

And then you also have "G " and Item|,
Purpose "I," You have "G' which is sufficient space
in appropriate |location for a variety of conmerci al
uses in order to neet the needs of all New Jersey
citizens and busi nesses. So inproved signage, that
wll bring in a partner and will advertise that
partner. It's an appealing design. You see the
appl i cati on package has been brought forth.

In nmy opinion, it's limted to no inpact
on the nei ghboring properties. There's a |lot of
other signs that are simlar in the area; simlar

size; simlar facing direction. Also for that
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reason, we think this site is particularly
wel | -suited for the use. That's another prong of the
Positive Criteria.

The roof signs are already there. W're
just expanding on it. W actually |look at the super
structure behind the sign. W're not nmaking that any
larger. So if you neasure that, we're not changi ng
that at all. Al we we're doing is changi ng sone
text on one side. Taking out, again, that ERS and
addi ng Penn Medi ci ne. Adjacent two commercial uses
are simlar signage in that area. M chael talked
about Adventure Aquarium Anerican Water has got a
very large sign. Again, appropriate for their size
building. So we think that fits in with that
criteri a.

The second prong we have to |look at is
the Negative Criteria. Are we a substanti al
detrinent to the public good? | don't believe that
we are. |npact on surroundi ng properties is |imted.
It's already an existing sign. W just nodifying it.
The site has been designed to conply with the rest of
t he design standards you have in your |and use
ordinances. So the rest of the site is already
up-to-par with those standards. Surrounding

properties, again, comrercial uses, |arge signs.
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We're facing the Delaware Ri ver so you're not
i mpacti ng any nei ghboring properties.

The second prong of the Negative
Criteria, is that we would not inpair the intent and
pur pose of your Zone Plan or your Master Plan. The
sign, again, has been designed in conpliance, except
for size and the |ocation on the roof, wth the
desi gn standards under your ordi nance; denonstrate
that the roof sign can fit into the character of the
nei ghborhood. W' ve done that with the surroundi ng
uses. This sign, again, is going to be on that sane
super structure. So no negative inpact there.

We think it'll contribute positively to
the area's identity; the economc vitality. You have
a | ot of businesses, big businesses comng into

Canden over the past ten years. And that's been a

positive for this comunity. | was born in South
Phi | adel phia; I'ma Sixers fan born and rai sed. And
to have them nove to Canden, | was a little worked up

about that. But it seenmed to work out great. So
across the river, you guys are kind of paired cities
so it's nice to see the Sixers bring this use to your
community and help the Gty of Canden. It's a
positive inpact here. And having this sign and

bringing their partners here, it brings that sane
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partnership affect.

It's consistent with your Master Pl an.
The goals of the Master Plan is to pronpote econonic
growh. That is what this is doing. |It's putting
anot her busi ness here partnered with the Sixers. The
joint partnering with Philadel phia and the waterfront
region with the two cities, has really worked. You
guys are doing that here and we think we're doing
that as well with this partnership. So for those
reasons, | think the roof sign can be approved with
conpliance with the Master Plan and your |and use
regul ati ons.

The second variance we're |ooking for is
the bul k variances. That would be a "c(2)" type
variance which is the sane criteria that | just went
t hrough, the Muinicipal Land Use Law purposes and the
Positive and Negative Criteria. So for all those
reasons, the expansion of the sign on the facade
sign, it looks |ike we're adding about 1,277 square
feet -- no. W're adding 383 for a total of 1,277
where only 24 square feet is permtted. So, again,
goi ng pretty big, big building, big signs. Again,
simlar and | ess inpact to nei ghboring properties and
no really off-site inpact at all for these two signs.

Wth that, | think both of these sign
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packages can be approved with this Board' s confidence
that it's not going to be a negative inpact and with
t he confidence that we pronote with the purpose of

t he Municipal Land Use Law. | know | spoke really
fast and it has been a |l ong night and you guys are
troopers for being here this long. This is a long
agenda. Thank you for being here and waiting for us
to present this evening.

MR FLOYD: Thank you, Lance.

And, again, we do have Exhibit A-5 where
we put all the signage Canden facing Phil adel phi a.
| think those exhibits speak for thenselves --

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR FLOYD:. -- of those buil dings and
we're not going to go through them But if there are
any questions, Lance is here to answer them And
i kewse, M. Brody is here with Invision Sign is

there's any questions. But, otherw se, what we are

proposi ng, we require a "d" variance and a "c
variance and it's certainly consistent with the
spirit of the Gty of Canden Code and what the Gty
is trying to do with the waterfront, redevel opnent of
the waterfront area, and what the 76ERS are
proposing, is certainly inline with the character of

t he neighborhood and simlarly-sized buildings with
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signage facing west. Thank you for your tinme this
eveni ng.

MR EINGORN:  Anybody here in the public
tonight that would like to be heard on the
application related to 3 Banner Way/9 Legends Lane?
Heari ng none and seeing none, we'll close the public
portion.

The Board has been tasked tonight with an
application for use and bul k vari ance approval s
related to the signs. You heard the testinony and
you revi ewed the packet that's been submtted and
substantial exhibits. So nowis the tine for the
Board to do a discussion of the Positive and Negative
Criteria and nmake a notion.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think it's very
positive. W are big 76ERS fans over here to going
back to Darryl Dawkins, Dr. J. So |I'm happy to have
you guys here. | think that you need to expl ode
that sign up there. W're just as proud as
Phi | adel phia to have you guys here. It's like the
Eagles. So | think it's great for Canden and al so
great for Philly. And we shoul d al ways be
hand-i n-hand. | always believed in that. |If all the
mayors got together and shared, we could get sone

stuff done. | think it's a bl essing.
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M5. ALSTON: | was wondering how hard was
it to give up that 'ERS sign there? | nean, Penn
Medicine is a great place to partner with. \Wen |
first looked at it it said 76 and then Penn Medi ci ne
and | was |like, oh, does it say the sane thing. So
you guys nust have gone back and forth. Wo was
i nvol ved with that?

M5. PRICE: So obviously, they're a very
i nportant partner. W have different variations of
our logo that we can use in our grant strategy so it
wor ked out best to use that part of the logo for it.
And we do have anot her sign too where we're taking
off but it says 76ERS on that one. Any other
questions? CQur brand people probably felt alittle
bit differently about it but we do have different
vari ations of the | ogos that we can use.

M5. MASON: | nake a notion.

MR EINGORN. W have a notion to pass.
Do we have a second?

M5. ALSTON:  Second.

MR EINGORN: ['ll take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.
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MR EINGORN: Ms. Merricks.
MS. MERRI CKS:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: M. Al ston.
MS. ALSTON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
MS. NUNEZ: Yes.

MR EINGORN:. M. Still.
MR STILL: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR

El NGORN. Havi ng seven in favor and
none opposed, the notion passes.

MR FLOYD: Thank you very nuch for your
tinme this evening.

MR, ElI NGORN:. Thank you.

Now we have the Adoption of Resol utions
for July and August.

The Resol utions for July 2024 we have
Granting Use Variance Approval and Prelimnary Site
Pl an Approval for 958-960 North 27th Street, LLC &
964-966 North 27th Street, LLC 960 & 966 N. 27th
Street, Block 932, Lot 31, 32, & 33, 4-Unit
Apart nent s.

The Resol utions for August 2024 we have:

Granting Prelimnary and Final Site Plan Amendnent
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for PSE&G 900 S. 2nd Street AKA Locust Between
Wal nut Street & Spruce Street - Metering & Regul ating
(M&R) Stati on.

Granting Use Variance Approval and Site
pl an Waiver for Curtis Moore, 818 Kai ghns Avenue.

Granting Non-Conform ng Use for Joria
Om 1542 Bradl ey Avenue.

Granting Non-Conform ng Use for Lillian
Baron, 498 Boyd Street.

Granting Bul k Vari ance Approval for
El ving Figueroa, 762 Line Street.

Granti ng Non- Conform ng Use for Benzh
| nvest, LLC, 264 Boyd Street.

Granting Use Variance, Bul k Variance
Approval and Site Pl an Waiver for WIIliam Hargrove,
108 N. 7th Street.

Granting Bul k Vari ance Approval for Zayed
Abed, 316 Vine Street.

Granting Use Variance Approval, Bul k
Vari ance Approval for Prem er Construction, LLC 521
Cooper Street.

Granting Non-Conform ng Use for Elvis
Pena Rosado, 700 Pine Street.

MR. EINGORN: Do | have a notion?

M5. MASON: Mbtion to adopt Resol utions.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

T R N e R T N T e e e T S N S N S
O N W N P O © O ~N o O M W N B O

260

M5. ALSTON: Second
MR El NGORN: l|'lIl take a roll-call

Chai r ran Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
MR EI NGORN: Vi ce- Chai rman Cooper.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN COCPER:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Merri cks.

MS. MERRI CKS: Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Al ston.
MS. ALSTON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Nunez.
MS. NUNEZ: Yes.

MR EINGORN:. M. Still.
MR STILL: Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR

El NGORN: Now | need a notion to

adj our n.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:

M5. MASON:. Second.

MR EINGORN: Al in favor?
THE BQOARD: Yays.

(***Meeting concluded at 10:45 p.m **¥*)

vot e.
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CERTI FI CATI ON

| HEREBY CERTIFY that | ama Certified Court
Reporter and Notary Public.

| FURTHER CERTI FY that the wi tness was sworn
to testify to the truth.

| FURTHER CERTI FY that the foregoing is, to
the best of ny ability, a true and accurate
transcript of the testinony taken stenographically by
me at the tinme, place, and date herei nbefore set
forth.

| FURTHER CERTIFY that | amneither a relative,
enpl oyee, attorney or counsel to any of the
parties to the action, nor a relative or enpl oyee of
such attorney or counsel and that | am not
financially interested in the action.

STV 7/

ReginevA. Ervin, CCR
Certified Court Reporter
Li cense #30XI 000222200

(The foregoing certification of this transcript
does not apply to any reproduction of the sane by any
means, unl ess under the direction, control and/or

supervision of the certifying reporter.)
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